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Financial Highlights

2021 2020
FHET FAET
HK$’000 HK$’000

REXR OPERATING RESULTS
Yozm Revenue 1,047,330 819,503
EA Gross profit 194,262 156,892
< Svingl Operating profit 34,978 14,692
RARERIFE ARG EREF  Profit for the year attributable to equity holders 20,120 1,451

of the Company

BREARRESRNGEW) Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 1.01 0.07

BRI FINANCIAL POSITION
MENEE Current assets 798,815 637,049
mENBE Current liabilities 726,397 582,013
IEMBNVEE Non-current assets 98,394 108,517
EREEE Non-current liabilities 18,068 25,848
RRRERFFE AR Equity attributable to equity holders of the 152,744 137,705

Company
ERMBLER KEY FINANCIAL RATIOS

ERE Gross profit margin 18.5% 19.1%
SHFI & Net profit margin 1.9% 0.2%
RERR R (KEE1) Return on equity (Note 1) 13.9% 1.5%
A E DR (FEE2) Return on total assets (Note 2) 2.4% 0.2%
DIEIE RS Current ratio 1.1 f&times 1.1 fZtimes
FERBELE(EFES) Net gearing ratio (Note 3) 27.9% 19.7%

it

Notes:

1. FERSEIRER VIR F AR FIR A ARS8 1. The calculation of return on equity is based on profit for the year divided by

FUAT00%A1E -

BRIA100%:TE ©

average balance of total equity and multiplied by 100%.

WEEBRETRFNREFIRABEENTHLEE 2. The calculation of return on total assets is based on profit for the year divided

by average balance of total assets and multiplied by 100%.

3. FEARBELRTZERITESIBRESRIRESE 3. The calculation of net gearing ratio is based on total bank borrowings net of

BV IA IR B RIA100%at &

cash and cash equivalents divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Five-Year Financial Summary

mEXE CONSOLIDATED RESULTS
BZ12A310LLEE
For the year ended 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FET FAT FAT FAET FH&T
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Wz Revenue 1,047,330 819,503 980,844 1,257,295 1,232,653
R Operating profit 34,978 14,692 63,253 107,384 95,408
NN i Profit for the year
A ARG attributable to equity
F Rm holders of the Company 20,120 1,451 33,390 77,018 74,172
FoEERHEE CONSOLIDATED ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
M12831H
As at 31 December
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
FET FAT FAET FAET FET
HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
REEE Current assets 798,815 637,049 494,598 806,318 802,099
REBE Current liabilities 726,397 582,013 479,342 770,146 827,414
ERENEE Non-current assets 98,394 108,517 117,094 137,319 78,991
FEREBAE Non-current liabilities 18,068 25,848 80,195 48,774 145
RAEME=FFA A Equity attributable to equity
FEfG R holders of the Company 152,744 137,705 52,155 124,717 53,531
BEERERERAR 5
20214E3R
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On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors” and
each a “Director”) of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), | am pleased
to present to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the
annual results and consolidated financial statements of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2021 (“FY2021” or the “reporting period”)
together with the comparative figures for the year ended 31 December
2020 (“FY2020").

Approaching the third year of the COVID-19 crisis, though the economic
environment is still tough and challenging, we completed the year of
2021 with a very encouraging result.

The enormous trade tensions between the United States (the “U.S.”) and
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) together with the Ukraine
War have continued to affect the market demand for our products as
well as supply stability. As mentioned in the Company’s 2021 interim
report, the growth of the Group’s revenue in the first half of FY2021 was
adversely affected by the global supply chain and logistic disruptions and
intensified shortages of semiconductors and other electronic components
during the period. In addition, the power shortage in the PRC and the
lockdown and other safety measures implemented in Malaysia had
disrupted our production and affected our orders fulfilment during the
first half of FY2021. The combined impact of these factors adversely
affected the Group’s financial performance in the first half of FY2021,
by which the Group’s revenue only hit HK$421.3 million suffering
from a loss of HK$7.9 million for the first half of FY2021. In response
to the challenges and difficult operating conditions, by putting more
efforts in developing and exploring the new customer base, we have
been benefited from gradual rebound of the global economy leading to
a significant increase in sales orders received by our Group from some
of our major customers and the new customers in the second half of
FY2021. With our resilient manufacturing capabilities and our efforts in
overcoming the challenges, we achieved a revenue of HK$626.0 million
with a profit of HK$28.0 million in the second half of FY2021. As a
result, the Group recorded a total revenue of HK$1,047.3 million and
profit of HK$20.1 million for FY2021, reflecting an increase of HK$227.8
million or 27.8% as compared to the revenue of HK$819.5 million and
an increase of HK$18.7 million or 1,286.6% as compared to net profit
of HK$1.5 million for FY2020, despite the adverse impacts from the
COVID-19 pandemic.

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company for
FY2021 amounted to HK$20.1 million (FY2020: HK$1.5 million). The
increase in profit was mainly attributable to the substantial increase in
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly due to the gradual
recovery of the global economy which resulted in a significant increase
in orders from the existing major and new customers of the Group during
2021.

A tentative rebound of the global economy and gradual easing of
COVID-19 pandemic might have contributed, but, with certitude and
pride, it is the resiliency and dedication of our staff that underwrite this
significant upswing.

The Directors recommended a final dividend of HK$0.0025 per share for
the year ended 31 December 2021.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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PROSPECTS

Even as the Omicron variant of COVID-19 has begun to recede, the
world has not yet been able to return to ‘normalcy” when the Russo-
Ukrainian War erupted in what is arguably the greatest, most dangerous
military conflict since after World War Two. The human tragedy is
immense. The fallout could potentially be so enormous and profound
that it cannot be gauged or comprehended meaningfully at this stage.
New disruptions, surging inflation, and soaring interest rates, are about
the only ominous certainties in a sea of uncertainties.

In response, and going forward, the introduction of new pipeline
products will bring in new customers, and developing products of our
own brand will be pursued ardently and feverishly.

On top of the above, our collaboration with Talentone Technology
Limited, which has been licensed by a Fortune 100 company (the
“Licensor”) to use the licensed trademark (the “Licensed Trademark”)
in certain products in its ordinary course of business as a wholesale
distributor, has been consummated which should, with time and effort,
open up exciting growth opportunities in the area of floor care products.

The Licensor distributes products with their Licensed Trademark in
over 1,200 locations across over 70 countries. It is envisioned that by
leveraging this linkage, our Group’s capabilities and footprints can be
much expanded.

Despite all these current uncertainties, we are confident that the
Company will emerge fresher, stronger and worthier.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my sincere appreciation to our customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuous support. | would like to also thank the
management team and all staff members for their contribution during the
year.

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of HK$1,047.3 million for FY2021 (FY2020:
HK$819.5 million), reflecting an increase of HK$227.8 million or 27.8%
as compared to revenue of HK$819.5 million for FY2020, mainly due to
the recovery of business in the last quarter in 2021 despite the adverse
impacts from the COVID-19 pandemic as mentioned in the Chairman’s
Statement of this annual report.

For FY2021, our products were shipped to over 25 (FY2020: 24)
countries and regions. The U.S. continued to be our largest market,
which contributed to HK$430.9 million (FY2020: HK$439.7 million), or
41.1% (FY2020: 53.7%) of our total revenue. Sales to the U.S. showed
a minute drop in comparison with that of last year, as sales in the U.S.
were fairly stable. The percentage of U.S. sales displayed a fall of 12.6%,
which was attributed to remarkably expanded sales in other countries,
such as the Philippines and Ireland, in FY2021. The changes in sales mix
to other major countries of the world were mainly the combined impact
of the COVID-19 pandemic and change of distribution strategy from
some of our major customers between countries.

Gross profit amounted to HK$194.3 million (FY2020: HK$156.9 million),
representing an increase of HK$37.4 million, or 23.8%, while the gross
profit margin decreased from 19.1% for FY2020 to 18.5% for FY2021.
The increase in gross profit was mainly due to the increase in revenue
brought by new customers, whilst the decrease in gross profit margin
was a direct result of higher material costs driven by key components
shortage and supply chain disruption in FY2021.

The selling and distribution and administrative expenses amounted to
HK$145.9 million (FY2020: HK$135.7 million), reflecting an increase of
HK$10.2 million or 7.5%. The increase in expenses was primarily due to
an especially steep increase in global freight rates in FY2021.

Net finance costs decreased by HK$3.7 million, or 33.0% from HK$11.2
million for FY2020 to HK$7.5 million for FY2021. The decrease was
mainly due to the fact that some revolving loans and term loans were
repaid during FY2021.

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the year attributable to equity
holders of the Company for FY2021 amounted to HK$20.1 million
(FY2020: HK$1.5 million). The increase in profit for FY2021 was mainly
attributable to the profit attained in the second half of FY2021, which
was slightly offset by the loss suffered in the first half of FY2021 as the
global economy had been gradually adapting to the conditions of the
pandemic.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$5.0
million (2020: HK$10.0 million), representing HK$0.0025 (2020:
HK$0.0050) per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2021.
Subject to the approval by the shareholders of the Company at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be held on
Wednesday, 1 June 2022 (the “2022 AGM”), the proposed final dividend
is expected to be paid on or before Thursday, 23 June 2022 to the
shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Thursday, 9 June 2022.

There is no arrangement under which a shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group funded its liquidity and capital requirements primarily
through a combination of internally generated funds from its operating
activities and bank borrowings. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
bank borrowings were HK$249.9 million (31 December 2020: HK$261.5
million) while the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were HK$207.3
million (31 December 2020: HK$234.4 million).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total net borrowings amounted to
HK$42.6 million (31 December 2020: HK$27.1 million) while its total
equity amounted to HK$152.7 million (31 December 2020: HK$137.7
million), resulting in a net gearing ratio of 27.9% (31 December 2020:
19.7%). The net gearing ratio is calculated as total borrowings net of cash
and cash equivalents divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

The Group has adequate liquidity to meet its current and future working
capital requirements.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND COMMITMENTS

The Group incurred total capital expenditures of HK$16.9 million during
FY2021 (FY2020: HK$19.4 million) for additions of properties, plant and
equipment and intangible assets.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had capital commitments in relation
to the purchase of plant and machinery contracted but not provided for
in the amount of HK$1.8 million (31 December 2020: HK$4.9 million).
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Board, the Group
was not involved in any legal proceedings pending or threatened against
our Group which could have a material adverse effect on our business or
operations. Besides, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 December 2021.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, there were no charges over the assets
of the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

The Group did not have any material acquisition and disposal of
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures during the year ended 31
December 2021.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

As at 31 December 2021, there were no significant investments held by
the Group.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising primarily with respect to the United States
dollars (“USD”) and Chinese Renminbi (“RMB”). Most of the Group's
sales proceeds are received in USD and some of the Group’s purchases
and operating expenses are denominated in RMB. The Group closely
monitors its overall foreign exchange exposure from time to time and
will adopt a proactive but prudent approach to minimize the relevant
exposures.

The Group did not enter into any derivative instruments to hedge against
its foreign exchange exposure during the year ended 31 December 2021.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) have been listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange since 10 January 2020. Since the issue of
the Shares on the Listing Date, there has been no change in the issued
share capital of the Company.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s capital structure consisted of bank
borrowings and equity attributable to equity holders of the Company,
comprising issued share capital and reserves. There was no material
change in capital structure of the Group during FY2021.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately 1,300
(31 December 2020: 1,500) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Total staff costs for FY2021 amounted to HK$191.4 million (FY2020:
HK$160.8 million). The Group adopts a remuneration policy which
is commensurate with job nature, qualification and experience of
employees. In addition to the provision of annual bonuses and employee
related insurance benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to
employees based on individual performance. The remuneration packages
and policies are reviewed periodically. The Group also provides in-house
and external training programs to its employees. The emoluments of the
Directors are decided by the Board and the remuneration committee of
the Company having regard to the Group’s operating results, individual
performance and comparable market statistics.

The Group has also adopted a share option scheme on 10 December
2019 for the purpose of providing incentives to eligible participants of
the scheme, including Directors, full-time employees of and advisers and
consultants to the Group. No option was granted during FY2021 and as
at 31 December 2021, there was no outstanding option granted under
the scheme.
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FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS AND
CAPITAL ASSETS

The Group has set out its future plans in the prospectus of the Company
dated 27 December 2019 (the “Prospectus”). As part of its future plans,
the Group plans to establish production facilities in South East Asia
region and expand manufacturing platform in the PRC by acquiring
new surface mount technology (“SMT”) lines, upgrading the production
facility at the existing plant and strengthening the research and
development capability for the development and provision of loT related
solutions. The future plans will be funded by a balanced mix of internal
resources, borrowings and proceeds from the Global Offering (as defined
in the Prospectus).

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

(@ On 28 January 2022, Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“the Subscriber”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into the share
subscription agreement and the convertible bonds subscription
agreement with Talentone Technology Limited (“the Target
Company”), an independent third party of the Company, pursuant
to which the Subscriber conditionally agreed to subscribe for,
and the Target Company conditionally agreed to issue, the
subscription Shares (the “Subscription Shares”) at a consideration
of HK$2,000,000 (the “Share Subscription”) and the convertible
bonds at an aggregate consideration of HK$44,000,000 (the “CB
Subscription”) respectively. Reference is made to the announcements
of the Company dated 28 January 2022, 8 February 2022 and 22
March 2022 in relation to a discloseable transaction regarding the
Share Subscription and the CB Subscription in details.

The Target Company is principally engaged in the development and
sales of the high technology floor care products including, among
others, vacuum cleaners and has been granted the right to use the
licensed trademarks in certain products in its ordinary course of
business as a wholesale distributor.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Upon the completion of the Share Subscription and the CB
Subscription, the Group can leverage on the Target Company’s
experience and sales network and start establishing its own network
while also expanding the Group’s revenue sources.

The Share Subscription and the first tranche CB Subscription of the
convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$22,000,000 were
completed on 22 March 2022.

Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus pandemic, a number
of provinces and municipalities in the PRC have taken emergency
public health measures and various actions to prevent the spread of
the novel coronavirus.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of the outbreak of the
novel coronavirus pandemic on the financial performance of the
Group and operation of the Group’s production plant in Dongguan
and the Group’s exposure to the risks and uncertainties in this
connection. The Group will take appropriate measures as necessary.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Chu Wai Hang Raymond (“Mr. Raymond Chu”), aged 69, is our
Chairman, an executive Director and one of the founders of our Group
and has been the Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 30
September 2021. He is also a member of the Nomination Committee
and Remuneration Committee and an authorized representative of the
Company. He is responsible for the leadership of the Board, corporate
governance promotion, strategic planning, and major decision-making of
our Group.

Mr. Raymond Chu is a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.
Prior to the establishment of our Group in July 2010, Mr. Raymond Chu
worked for Defond Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited and its subsidiaries
since June 1990 as the chairman responsible for technical, information
technology and research and development functions and later for the
management and operation of the electronics manufacturing services
(“EMS”) division. From May 1977 to early 1990s, Mr. Raymond Chu
worked as an engineer for a company principally engaged in the supply
of electromechanical motion systems and solutions.

Mr. Raymond Chu graduated from the University of California, Berkeley
in the U.S. with a bachelor of science in mechanical engineering in
March 1977.

Mr. Raymond Chu is the father of Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton,
an executive Director and the managing director of original brand
development, and the elder brother of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (a
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company). He is also a
controlling and substantial shareholder of the Company and a director
and shareholder of each of Smart Union Global Group Limited and
Smartview Investments Limited, each of which has an interest in the
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571, Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

Mr. Chu Man Yin Arthur Newton (“Mr. Arthur Chu”), aged 39, was
appointed as an executive Director on 2 July 2021. He joined the
Group in January 2021 with the position as the managing director of
original brand development responsible for overall operation of the
New Branded Division of the Group. His duties include the formulation
of the marketing strategy of self-developed products, identification and
development of new sales opportunities, and maintaining long-term
relationships with internal and external partners.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Arthur Chu worked for Cornerstone
Developments Limited as research and development senior manager
from December 2015 to January 2021, responsible for research, planning
and overseeing the development of new LED lighting products. Mr.
Arthur Chu joined Defond Electrical Industries Limited (“DEIL”) as a
mechanical engineer in April 2008, and was responsible for monitoring
product design and development, testing schedule, collaborating with
different departments to drive and control the project progress. He was
later promoted to senior program manager in February 2013, responsible
for overseeing the new projects launching, budget control, coordination
and implementation of products, and handling commercial issues with
customers. Mr. Arthur Chu’s last position in DEIL was research and
development senior manager from April 2015 to November 2015,
responsible for research, planning and implementing new programs
development into the organization.

Mr. Arthur Chu graduated from the University of Southern California with
a Bachelor Degree of Science in Mechanical Engineering in 2006.

Mr. Arthur Chu is the son of Mr. Raymond Chu, the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer, an executive Director and a controlling and substantial
shareholder of the Company. Mr. Arthur Chu is also the nephew of Mr.
Chu Wai Cheong Wilson, a controlling and substantial shareholder of
the Company.

Mr. Lau Shui Fung (“Mr. Lau”), aged 55, was appointed as Chief
Financial Officer of the Company and an executive Director on 31
October and on 1 December 2021, respectively. He is responsible
for the financial and accounting management of the Group. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr. Lau has been the chief financial officer of Defond
Holdings (H.K.) Co Ltd., and held various positions, including vice
president of finance and company secretary in Defond Holdings (H.K.)
Co Ltd. from April 2016 to October 2021. From September 2013 to
March 2016, he was the vice president of finance of Computime Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 320). He had served as an independent non-executive director of
Kaisa Health Group Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 0876) for the period from
August 2019 to March 2020. He had also served as an independent non-
executive director of Nam Tai Property Inc. (formerly known as Nam Tai
Electronics, Inc.), a company listed on the New York Stock Exchange
(stock code: NTP), from June 2018 to June 2019. He held various
positions, such as group financial controller, vice president of finance
and corporate secretary of Nam Tai Property Inc. from November 2001
to September 2013.
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Mr. Lau obtained a bachelor degree of commerce in accounting from
The University of Southern Queensland and a master of professional
accounting degree from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. Mr.
Lau is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA Australia and a
fellow member of the Association of International Accountants. Mr. Lau
has over 20 years of extensive experience in accounting, auditing and
finance gained from the high technology companies listed in the United
States and Hong Kong.

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (“Ms. Ling”), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. She is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. She
is also the chairperson of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration Committee.

Ms. Ling is a Certified Public Accountant and a retired assurance partner
of PricewaterhouseCoopers. She is also an independent non-executive
director of Raymond Industrial Limited (stock code: 0229) and EVA
Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838), both of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. She has also been
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Arta TechFin
Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 0279), on 29 October 2021. Ms. Ling was an
independent non-executive director of Digital Hollywood Interactive
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 2022), from November 2017 to June 2021.

Ms. Ling is a council member and the treasurer of The Education
University of Hong Kong. She serves as a member of the Appeal Board
Panel (Town Planning) and the Hospital Governing Committee of the
Hospital Authority. Ms. Ling is a council member of The Hong Kong
Federation of Youth Groups and an executive committee member of the
Hong Kong Youth Hostels Association. She previously served as a board
member of the Estate Agents Authority during 2015 to 2021 and the
Employees Compensation Assistance Fund Board during 2006 to 2012.

Ms. Ling is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
Chartered Professional Accountants, Canada, and Chartered Institute of
Management Accountants. She is an accredited general mediator.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren (“Mr. Lee”), aged 58, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He
is also the chairman of the Nomination Committee and a member of the
Remuneration Committee and the Audit Committee.

Mr. Lee is an executive director of Da Yu Financial Holdings Limited,
which is principally engaged in the provision of corporate finance
advisory services and asset management services and listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1073), since July 2019. Mr.
Lee was an executive director and the chairman of the board of SHK
Hong Kong Industries Limited which was listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 666) in December 1990 but was delisted
on 23 April 2021 subsequent to its successful privatization. Mr. Lee first
joined SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited as a manager in July 1992 and
became an executive director in September 2004. He was appointed as
the chairman of the board and ceased to act as the managing director
of SHK Hong Kong Industries Limited in March 2009. From November
2007 to March 2015, Mr. Lee was a non-executive chairman of Rotol
Singapore Ltd which was listed on the main board of the Singapore
Exchange Limited until August 2011. He acted as an executive director
of Viva China Holdings Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 8032), from June 2010 to June 2013. From
February 2013 to April 2013, he was a non-executive director of China
Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1380). From December 2006 to May
2007, he was the chief executive officer of Nam Tai Electronics, Inc.
(currently known as Nam Tai Property Inc.), an electronics manufacturing
services provider listed on the New York Stock Exchange (stock code:
NTP). From March 2004 to February 2006, he was an independent non-
executive director of Nam Tai Electronic & Electrical Products Limited,
and from February 2006 to April 2007, he was re-designated as a non-
executive director. At the time of his directorship, Nam Tai Electronic
& Electrical Products Limited was listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 2633). From January 2007 to April 2007, he was
also a non-executive director of J.I.C. Technology Company Limited
(currently known as China Renewable Energy Investment Limited), which
is listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 987).

Mr. Lee graduated from The University of East Anglia in England in
1986 with a bachelor of science and obtained a distinction in master of
science from The City University Business School in London in 1988.

Mr. Lee is a responsible officer licensed to conduct type 1 (dealing in
securities), type 4 (advising on securities), type 6 (advising on corporate
finance) and type 9 (asset management) regulated activities under the
SFO.
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Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting (“Mr. Szeto”), aged 54, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2019. He is
mainly responsible for providing independent advice to our Group. He is
also the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the
Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee.

Mr. Szeto was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in September 1992
and is currently a practicing solicitor in Hong Kong. Mr. Szeto is the co-
founder of Messrs. Y.T. Szeto & Co., Solicitors that was established in
September 1996 and has served as the sole proprietor of Messrs. Szeto
& Co., Y.T. since January 2001. Mr. Szeto worked for Messrs. Paul Chan
& Co., Solicitors from October 1993 to August 1996 as an assistant
solicitor. Prior to that, Mr. Szeto served as an articled clerk in Messrs.
Norman Yung & Co., Solicitors from September 1990 to September 1992
and then as an assistant solicitor with the same firm from September
1992 to October 1993.

Mr. Szeto graduated from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong
with a bachelor of laws in December 1989 and was awarded the
postgraduate certificate of laws by the University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in June 1990. Since June 2017, Mr. Szeto has served as
an independent non-executive director of Evergreen Products Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1962). Since 4 March 2022, Mr. Szeto has served as an
independent non-executive director of Chiho Environmental Group
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 976).

Senior Management

Mr. WEI Andrew, Yick Siu, (“Mr. Wei”) age 52, was appointed as Vice
President of Client Base Management of the Company on 3 August,
2021. He participates in strategic planning and business development for
our Group. Prior to joining our Group, from October 2017 to June 2021,
Mr. Wei was managing the EMS Business Unit as a Director at PC Partner
Limited, a subsidiary of PC Partner Group Limited, a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1263), the principal
business of which is to develop and manufacture an OBM line of
gaming PCs as well as graphics interface cards. Mr. Wei was responsible
for developing new business, establishing new technology platform
and leading R&D for the EMS Business Unit. From 2000 to 2017, Mr.
Wei joined Electronics Tomorrow Limited, a subsidiary of Tomorrow
International Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (Former stock code: 760) principally engaged in the
designing and manufacturing of LCD time piece and LCD connected
consumer electronics for global markets. His last position for the group
was Chief Operation Officer. From 1995 to 2000, Mr. Wei worked as
Departmental Senior Manager for Hiraoka & Co., HK., a renowned
Japanese Trading firm that managed outsource manufacturing and
product development with their majority of clients portfolio from Japan.
Mr. Wei graduated from the University of Toronto in June 1992 with a
Bachelor Degree in Economics & Japanese Studies. During his years in
the University of Toronto, he participated in an exchange program with
Sophia University in Japan for his Japanese proficiency in 1990.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Ms. Choi Yuet Mei Mercury, (“Ms. Choi”) aged 50, has been appointed
as the Vice President of the Supply Base Management of the Group
since October 2021, and is primarily responsible for overseeing
the procurement and supply chain management of the Group. Ms.
Choi leads the procurement team to negotiate prices and terms,
promotes the formulation of alternative procurement plans to improve
material cost competitiveness, formulates strategic arrangements
for suppliers, establishes supplier partnerships, and manages sellers
service performance. In addition, Ms. Choi manages customs, logistics,
warehouse, material control and production control management and
leads the SCM team to ensure smooth operation of the supply chain
process.

Before joining the Group, Ms. Choi worked in the electronics and
enclosure manufacturing industry for nearly 30 years, responsible for
procurement, supply chain, logistics operation, production operation
management, program management and so on. Ms. Choi joined Karrie
Group (stock code: 1050), a Hong Kong listed company, from July 2017
to September 2021 as the Assistant General Manager of Procurement
— Supply Chain Management, responsible for formulating overall
procurement strategic management, procurement policy direction,
and ensuring the stability of supply chain management. From 2009 to
October 2013, she worked for a Chinese based EMS enterprise listed
on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, Shenzhen Sea Star Technology Co.,
Ltd. (stock code: 2137), as the Vice General Manager, responsible
for managing the Program Management Department, Purchasing
Department, Logistics Supply Chain and Operational Management.

Ms. Choi graduated from Macquarie University, Australia in July 2009
with a Master Degree in Logistics and Operations Management.

Mr. Wong Kin Man (“Mr. Wong”), aged 63, joined our Group on 13
December 2010 as the operations director of our Group. He is mainly
responsible for developing and improving manufacture processes
and plans. Mr. Wong has served as a director of Dongguan Wise Ally
Industrial Co., Ltd* (R FERE X B R A 7)) since 13 December 2010.
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Prior to joining our Group, from May 2007 to December 2010, Mr.
Wong worked for DEIL as the operations manager and was later
promoted to a position of senior operations manager. Mr. Wong was
employed by Kam Yuen (Group) International Limited, a manufacturer of
metal parts, from August 2000 to March 2007 as senior plant manager,
and he was responsible for exploring new business opportunities,
overseeing company-side quality improvement and establishing new
business units and factories. From September 1994 to December 1998,
Mr. Wong worked for IDT Technology Limited, a company principally
engaged in design and manufacturing of radio control clocks, electronic
thermometers, barometers and weather stations, as assistant quality
assurance manager, quality assurance manager, acting factory manager
and factory manager respectively, responsible for overseeing the daily
operations of the SMT factory and setting up a new factory for bonding
operations, development of local staff and productivity enhancement.
In July 1993, Mr. Wong joined a company principally engaged in the
design and manufacturing of audio products, namely Hi Tech Precision
Products Limited, as quality control manager, responsible for setting up
efficient quality control systems based on ISO 9000 requirement and
training staff members responsible for quality control to handle quality
matter independently. He left the company in June 1994. From March
1988 to June 1993, Mr, Wong worked for Team Concepts Manufacturing
Limited, a company principally engaged in manufacturing telephone and
answering machines, as quality assurance supervisor, incoming quality
control supervisor and assistant quality assurance manager respectively,
and he was responsible for overseeing quality management and the
development and implementation of ISO 9000 quality system. From
October 1983 to February 1988, Mr. Wong worked for Eastern Frontier
Company Ltd, a company principally engaged in manufacturing power
transformers and power adaptors, as a quality control supervisor, and he
was responsible for quality management, developing quality standards
and quality inspection.

Mr. Wong was awarded the ordinary certificate in textile technology and
the higher certificate in textile technology by the Hong Kong Polytechnic
(the predecessor of the Hong Kong Polytechnic University) in November
1978 and November 1980 respectively.
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Mr. Chan Wai Ho, aged 52, joined our Group on 6 April 2020 as general
manager of our Group. He is responsible for overseeing production
operation of our Group.

Mr. Chan Wai Ho has over 27 years’ experience in various multinational
companies in EMS and manufacturing industry. Before joining our Group,
from January 2018 to April 2020, Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked for an EMS
company as general manager and was promoted to the position of vice
president of operations, with the responsibility of formulating overall
strategy and establishing policies to ensure production runs smoothly
and efficiently. Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked for Meter Technology Limited,
a wholly owned subsidiary of The Hong Kong & China Gas Company
Limited, a company listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 3), principally engaged in design and manufacturing of utility gas
flow meter with micro electro mechanical system (MEMS) technology
for China market, from November 2012 to January 2018, where he was
the assistant general manager of operation, responsible for gas meter
production, gas flow senor design enhancement and improvement,
quality improvement, metrology development and manufacturing process
development.

During September 2010 to November 2012, Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked
as the head of manufacturing of IDT Technology Limited, a company
listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock code: 167),
principally engaged in design and manufacturing of radio control clocks,
electronic thermometers, barometers and weather stations, where he was
responsible for managing the affairs of the manufacturing operations.

From April 2008 to September 2010, Mr. Chan Wai Ho worked for
Rohm and Haas Electronic Material Dongguan Limited, a company
principally engaged in design and manufacturing of specialty chemical
for print circuit board production use, as a deputy general manager and
was responsible for daily operation, including supply chain management
team and quality & analytical laboratory.

Mr. Chan Wai Ho obtained a Post Certification in Manufacturing System
Engineering from University of Warwick in United Kingdom in July 1999
where he attended the course in Hong Kong and obtained a bachelor of
engineering in computer aided engineering from Liverpool John Moores
University in United Kingdom in July 1993.
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The Board is pleased to present this report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021.

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 15 January 2019 and was registered as
a non-Hong Kong company under Part 16 of the Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622, Laws of Hong Kong) on 14 March 2019. The Shares have
been listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 10 January
2020.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange since 10 January 2020 by way of Global Offering
and the net proceeds raised from the Global Offering, after deducting
the underwriting fees and other related listing expenses, amounted to
approximately HK$74.0 million. As of the date of this annual report,
the Company does not anticipate any change on its plan on the use
of proceeds as stated in the section headed “Future Plans and Use of
Proceeds” of the Prospectus.
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As at 31 December 2021, the details of the utilised and unutilised net

proceeds were as follows:

TEEA
REBRARE
IR
LIRS
Expected
FRr&RA timeline of
EEAR full utilisation of
FERERIEARE Proposed 28A KEA the unutilised
Intended use of proceeds use of proceeds Utilised Unutilised proceeds
BERER BEET BEEET
HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million
BIBAERA RN BRSNS T B IEINERE
Increasing production capacity by expanding 26.1 - 26.1  FA2023FEK
manufacturing platform in South East Asia (MF5E)
region and the PRC By the end of
2023 (Note)
BREETHENREARTRRERZEERE
H A EE AR AP T AR AR K A
Enhancing production efficiency and capability by 19.4 (2.8) 16.6  M2023F K
acquiring new machinery and equipment and (F5E)
upgrading the production facility at our existing By the end of
production plant in Dongguan 2023 (Note)
IN3R A% R AR M MIB AAR R R 70 SRV AR B RE
Strengthening research capability for the 4.0 (0.1 3.9 20229 K
development and provision of loT related By the end of
solutions 2022
AR AL S K BUM B 2 8 BE
Increasing marketing efforts in North America and 43 - 43 R2022F K
Europe By the end of
2022
IERBLEIIT R R B AR E R R I
Enhancing manufacturing execution system and 2.5 (0.6) 1.9 M2022F K
information technology infrastructure By the end of
2022
BE-FEAFIRITER
Repayment of a capital expenditure bank loan 10.8 (10.8) -
BN —REEES
Our general working capital 6.9 (6.9) -
74.0 (21.2) 52.8
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Note: Due to the border controls, travel restrictions and disruptions in supply
chain caused by the COVID-19 pandemic, the unutilised proceeds of
these expansion plans and enhancement projects are expected to be
utilised by the end of 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries of the Company are primarily engaged in the manufacturing
and sales of electronic products.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are set
out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
109.

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of HK$5.0
million, representing HK$0.0025 per ordinary Share (the “Proposed
Final Dividend”), for the year ended 31 December 2021. Subject to
the approval by the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM, the Proposed Final
Dividend is expected to be paid on or before Thursday, 23 June 2022 to
the Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on Thursday, 9 June 2022.

There is no arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or
agreed to waive any dividends.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The 2022 AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 1 June 2022.
For determining the entitlement to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM,
the register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday,
27 May 2022 to Wednesday, 1 June 2022, both days inclusive, during
which period no transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered.
In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2022 AGM, unregistered
holder(s) of share(s) of the Company should ensure that all share transfer
document(s) accompanied by the relevant share certificate(s) must be
lodged with the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong, for registration not later
than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 26 May 2022.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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For determining the entitlement to the Proposed Final Dividend (subject
to the approval by the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM), the register of
members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 8 June 2022
to Thursday, 9 June 2022, both days inclusive, during which period no
transfer of share(s) of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for the Proposed Final Dividend, unregistered holder(s) of share(s) of
the Company should ensure that all transfer document(s) accompanied
by the relevant share certificate(s) must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong, for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 7 June
2022.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business for the year ended 31 December 2021
including an analysis of the Group’s performance using key financial
performance indicators, principal risks and uncertainties facing by the
Company, important events affecting the Company that have occurred
since the end of FY2021, and a discussion on the Group's future business
development are provided in the “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to
7 and “Management Discussion and Analysis” on pages 8 to 13 of this
annual report. These discussions form part of this Report of the Directors.
Other than the events set out in other parts of this annual report, no other
significant event affecting the Group has occurred since the end of the
year under review and up to the date of this annual report.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to environmental responsibility through
minimizing the impacts to the community and environment while
safeguarding the health and safety of the public. More details regarding
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are provided in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 65 to 100 of
this annual report.

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

To the best knowledge of the Board, during the year under review, the
Group has complied in material respects with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and operation
of the Company. Further details regarding the Group’s compliance with
the applicable laws relating to the environmental and social aspects
are provided in the “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on
pages 65 to 100 of this annual report.
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Key Relationships with Employees, Customers and
Suppliers

The Group recognises that employees are one of the valuable assets
of the Group. The Group aims to continue establishing a caring
environment to its employees and emphasize the personal development
of its employees.

The Group maintains a good relationship with its customers and
suppliers. Despite the challenging business conditions, the Group aims
to continue providing products and services that meet or exceed its
customers’ requirement or expectation for quality, reliability and value.
In accomplishing this goal, the Group endeavours to build long-term
and mutually beneficial relationships with its suppliers, ensuring reliable
delivery to its customers.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there was no significant and
material dispute between the Group and its employees, suppliers and/or
customers.

DONATIONS

During the reporting period, the Group made charitable donation
amounting to HK$13,000.

PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the properties, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 12
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

Details of the significant event occurring after the reporting period are set
out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31
December 2021 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 26 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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SHARES ISSUED

In preparation for the listing of the Company’s Shares on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange, the Company underwent series of reorganisation
arrangements, which are more particularly described in the subsection
headed “History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in the
Prospectus.

The Company had 1,000,000 issued Shares immediately before
the capitalisation issue and the Global Offering. On 10 January
2020, immediately before the Global Offering, the Company issued
1,499,000,000 new Shares to the Shareholders whose name appeared
on the register of members of the Company at the close of business on a
date prior to the Global Offering by way of capitalisation of an amount of
HK$14,990,000 standing in the share premium account of the Company
credited as a result of the Global Offering. On 10 January 2020, pursuant
to the Global Offering, the Company issued 500,000,000 new Shares
at HK$0.25 each. The net proceeds received by the Company from the
Global Offering (after deducting the underwriting fees and other related
listing expenses), amounted to approximately HK$74.0 million. Details
of the Global Offering were disclosed in the Prospectus. Immediately
upon completion of the Global Offering and as at the date of this report,
the total number of issued shares of the Company is 2,000,000,000.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, distributable reserves of the Company
amounted to HK$80,896,000.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Details of the Company’s dividend policy are set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) or the laws of the
Cayman Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new Shares
on a pro-rata basis to its existing Shareholders.

RELIEF OF TAXATION

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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BANK BORROWINGS

Particulars of the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
are set out in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

The bank borrowings were secured by the Company’s corporate
guarantee together with certain covenants including the requirement
that Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson shall jointly
maintain, directly or indirectly, at least 50% of the shareholding of the
Company.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group for
the previous financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-Year
Financial Summary” in this annual report.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company did not enter into
any equity-linked agreements, save for the share option scheme of the
Company as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option Scheme”
in this Report of the Directors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this report are as follows:

Executive Directors:
Mr. Raymond Chu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 30 September 2021)
Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley (Chief Executive Officer)
(resigned on 30 September 2021)
Mr. Chan Chi Ming (Chief Operating Officer)
(resigned on 31 October 2021)
Mr. Arthur Chu
(appointed on 2 July 2021)
Mr. Lau Shui Fung (Chief Financial Officer)
(appointed as an Executive Director on 1 December 2021)
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Independent Non-executive Directors:
Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

Pursuant to Article 109 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Raymond Chu
and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting shall retire from office by rotation at the 2022
AGM and be eligible for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

Pursuant to Article 113 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Arthur Chu and
Mr. Lau Shui Fung who were appointed by the Board to act as Directors
on 2 July 2021 and T December 2021 respectively shall hold office until
the 2022 AGM and be eligible for re-election at the 2022 AGM.

All of them will offer themselves for re-election at the 2022 AGM. Details
of the Directors to be re-elected at the 2022 AGM are set out in the
circular to Shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Mr. Raymond Chu, executive Director, has entered into a director service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date while each of Mr. Arthur Chu and Mr. Lau Shui Fung,
executive Directors, has entered into a director service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 2 July 2021 and
1 December 2021 respectively (all are subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant director service agreement).

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date (subject to termination in certain
circumstances as stipulated in the relevant letter of appointment).

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2022 AGM
has a service agreement or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Save for the continuing connected transactions as disclosed below and
the related party transactions disclosed in note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements, other related party transactions disclosed in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements, did not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions as defined in Chapter
14A of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
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Continuing Connected Transactions — Master Purchase
Agreement

On 19 December 2019, Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“HK Wise Ally”),
an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and DEIL, which
is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong with limited
liability and beneficially held as to 50% by Mr. Raymond Chu and
as to 50% by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (younger brother of Mr.
Raymond Chu), each being a controlling Shareholder and a connected
person of the Company, entered into a master purchase agreement (the
“Master Purchase Agreement”), pursuant to which HK Wise Ally and
its subsidiary agreed to purchase, and DEIL and its subsidiaries (“DEIL
Group”) agreed to supply and/or manufacture a variety of switches
(the “Products”) to the Group for a term commencing on the Listing
Date until 31 December 2022. As such, DEIL is an associate of the
connected persons of the Company pursuant to Rule 14A.12(1)(c) of
the Listing Rules and the transactions contemplated under the Master
Purchase Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions for the
Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to the Master Purchase Agreement, DEIL Group agreed to
supply the Products to the Group at a price which shall be determined
on arm’s length negotiations based on the prevailing market prices for the
supply of similar Products. The parties agreed that each purchase order
(“Order”) placed by the Group with DEIL Group for the purchase of the
Products shall constitute a separate legally binding contract between
DEIL Group and the Group upon acceptance by DEIL Group. The terms
and conditions of the Master Purchase Agreement shall be deemed to be
incorporated into each Order and form part thereof. The parties further
agreed that prevailing market price of Products shall be (i) the lower
of the quoted prices for such Products of comparable quality ordered
in similar quantities obtained by the Group from no less than two
independent third parties; or (ii) in the event that the Group is not able
to obtain at least two quotes from independent third parties, determined
on terms no less favourable than terms available to independent third
parties for the purchase of such Products of comparable quality in similar
quantities from DEIL Group.

The Group has been purchasing the Products from DEIL Group since
2010. Given (i) the long-term business relationship of the Group with
DEIL Group, (ii) that the Group is satisfied with the quality and timely
delivery of the Products and (iii) the terms offered by DEIL Group to
the Group are of normal commercial terms and no less favourable than
those provided by independent third parties, the Directors are of the
view that it will be in the interests of the Group and the Shareholders as
a whole to continue such transactions with DEIL Group. Furthermore,
given the long-term business relationship with DEIL Group, DEIL
Group understands the quality, standards, and specifications that the
Group requires in relation to the Products, and the Directors believe
that the Group would be able to achieve better business and operation
efficiencies through the long-term working relationship with DEIL Group.
Thus, the Directors believe that the entering into of the Master Purchase
Agreement with DEIL Group will bring synergies to the Group’s business
and operations.
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The annual caps for each of the financial years ended/ending 31
December 2020, 2021 and 2022 in respect of the maximum purchase
price payable by our Group to DEIL Group in respect of the purchase of
the Products are HK$4.0 million, HK$4.0 million and HK$4.0 million,
respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group purchased the
Products from DEIL Group in an amount of HK$3.2 million. Details
of the transactions with DEIL Group are set out in note 30(b)(ii) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The transactions contemplated under the Master Purchase Agreement
constitute non-fully exempt continuing connected transactions which
are exempt from the circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements but subject to reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The Stock Exchange
has granted to the Company a waiver from strict compliance with the
announcement requirements of the Listing Rules in respect of the non-
fully exempt continuing connected transactions.

Annual Review of the Continuing Connected Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed
the above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions were entered into:

e inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
e on normal commercial terms or better; and

e according to the agreement governing the terms that are fair and
reasonable in the interests of the Company and Shareholders as a
whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the above continuing
connected transactions of the Group in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information”, and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
The Company’s auditor has issued its unqualified report containing
its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed on pages 30 to 31 of this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s
report has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Company confirmed that it has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules
regarding the continuing connected transactions for the year ended 31
December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements, and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the
Group’s businesses to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries, or
any of its holding companies was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended 31 December
2021.

DIRECTORS” EMOLUMENTS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements.

With effect from 1 April 2022, the monthly remuneration of Mr.
Raymond Chu will be increased from HK$200,000 to HK$300,000 and
the monthly remuneration of Mr. Lau Shui Fung will be increased from
HK$100,000 to HK$150,000.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which he/she shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of his/her duty or
supposed duty in his/her respective offices or trusts.

The Company has arranged for appropriate insurance coverage for the
Directors’ and officers’ liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising out of corporate activities. As
at the date of this annual report, the permitted indemnity provision is
currently in force for the benefit of the Directors.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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Name of Director

540 EEME

Capacity/Nature of interest

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES” INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE
COMPANY AND ITS ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying
Shares and debentures of the Company and/or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including any interests or short positions
which they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
352 of the SFO; or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules were as follows:

(1) Long position in the Shares

EARD T RER
BHOBDE
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

EBERHE
Number of
ordinary Shares

REBEE
Mr. Raymond Chu

Mi5E © 240,000,000 A% P& 3 LA Smart Union Global
Group Limited ([ Smart Union]) B)E & F 5 -
ifiSmart Union® 2 HEEHITRMDAREELE
2EHE ° 1,020,000,000 & f% 17 LA Smartview
Investments Limited ( [ Smartview | ) ) % % %
30 ° MSmartview#150% B 31T (h AR Z 18 L
AR o BREFEHFRABGKRD - REBELEW
3 A7 Smart Union & Smartview 15 8 ) 2 S5 %
DR ER
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R
Interest in controlled corporations

1,260,000,000 63.0%
(P EE)

(Note)

Note: 240,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Smart Union
Global Group Limited (“Smart Union”), all the issued shares of which are
wholly-owned by Mr. Raymond Chu. 1,020,000,000 of the Shares are
registered in the name of Smartview Investments Limited (“Smartview”),
50% of the issued shares of which are owned by Mr. Raymond Chu.
Under the SFO, Mr. Raymond Chu is deemed to be interested in all the

Shares held by Smart Union and Smartview.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including any interests or short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or as recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year ended 31 December 2021 was the Company, or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or their
associates to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’” AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

So far as known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2021, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executives of the Company)
had interests in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
Section 336 of the SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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TERRBE BB

Name of substantial Shareholder

Long position in the Shares

5 HEEME

Capacity/Nature of interest

BEBRR#E
Number of
ordinary Shares

EADERAEN

BYEI
Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

in the Company

Smartview
Smartview

Smart Union
Smart Union

Grandview Group Holdings Limited
([ Grandview ])

Grandview Group Holdings Limited
(“Grandview”)

REELE

Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson

EEELLE

Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina

REBLL

Ms. Ng Ching Annetta

BEERERERAR

20214 3R

B
Beneficial interest

B
Beneficial interest

2
S

Beneficial interest

XEslAEES
Interest in controlled corporations

[T e

Interest of spouse

[ e

Interest of spouse

1,020,000,000

240,000,000

240,000,000

1,260,000,000
(FF&ET)
(Note 1)

1,260,000,000
(FF&E2)
(Note 2)

1,260,000,000
(FF5E3)
(Note 3)

51.0%

12.0%

12.0%

63.0%

63.0%

63.0%
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Notes:

(1) 240,000,000 of the Shares are registered in the name of Grandview, the
entire share capital of which is wholly-owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong
Wilson (the younger brother of Mr. Raymond Chu). 1,020,000,000 of the
Shares are registered in the name of Smartview, 50% of the share capital of
which is owned by Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Under the SFO, Mr. Chu
Wai Cheong Wilson is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Grandview and Smartview.

(2) Ms. Tam Wai Yee Czarina is the spouse of Mr. Raymond Chu. Ms. Tam Wai
Yee Czarina is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Mr. Raymond Chu is interested by virtue of the SFO.

(3) Ms. Ng Ching Annetta is the spouse of Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson. Ms. Ng
Ching Annetta is deemed to be interested in the same number of Shares in
which Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson is interested by virtue of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, no person (other
than the Directors and chief executives of the Company) had interests
in 5% or more of the Shares and underlying Shares as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the
SFO or which would fall to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock
Exchange under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) pursuant to the written resolutions of the then Shareholders
passed on 10 December 2019 (the “Adoption Date”). No share option
has been granted by the Company under the Share Option Scheme since
the Adoption Date and up to the date of this report.

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share Option
Scheme.

(@) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to recognise and
acknowledge the Eligible Participants (as defined in paragraph (b)
below) who have contributed and will contribute to the Group.
The Share Option Scheme will provide the Eligible Participants an
opportunity to have a personal stake in the Company with the view
to achieving the following objectives:

(i) motivating the Eligible Participants to optimize their
performance efficiency for the benefit of the Group; and

(i) attracting and retaining or otherwise maintaining on-going
business relationships with the Eligible Participants whose
contributions are or will be beneficial to the long-term growth of
the Group.

(b) Participants

The “Eligible Participants” are:

(i) any full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries;

(i) any directors (including non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors) of the Company or any of

its subsidiaries;

(iii) any advisers, consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries; and
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(iv) such other persons who, in the sole opinion of our Board, will
contribute or have contributed to the Group, the assessment
criteria of which are:

e contribution to the development and performance of the
Group;

e quality of work performed for the Group;

e initiative and commitment in performing his/her duties; and

e length of service or contribution to the Group.

(c) Total number of Shares available for issue

The maximum number of Shares issuable upon exercise of all
options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not in aggregate
exceed 10% of all the Shares in issue as at the Listing Date, being
200,000,000 Shares (the “Limit”) (representing 10% of the total
number of Shares in issue as at the date of this annual report). The
Board may renew the Limit subject to approval of the Shareholders
and/or other requirements prescribed under the Listing Rules and
the Share Option Scheme but the Limit must not exceed 30% of the
issued Shares from time to time.

(d) Maximum number of options to any one individual

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted to each Eligible Participant (including both
exercised and outstanding options and Shares which were the
subject of options which have been granted and accepted under
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Company but subsequently canceled) under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in any
12-month period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% of the
Shares in issue as of the date of grant. Any further grant of options
in excess of this 1% of the issued shares of the Company should be
subject to approval of the Shareholders and/or other requirements
prescribed under the Listing Rules and the Share Option Scheme.
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Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of the
Share Option Scheme at any time after the date upon which the
option is deemed to be granted and accepted and prior to the expiry
of ten years from that date. The Board may at its absolute discretion
determine any minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised and/or any performance targets which
must be achieved before the option can be exercised, except that
no option may be exercised more than ten years after it has been
granted.

Amount payable on acceptance of the option and the
payment period

To accept the grant of an option, HK$1.0 as consideration for the
grant of an option must be paid by the grantee to the Company on or
before the relevant acceptance date, as defined in the Share Option
Scheme, which is a date not later than 30 days after the date of
grant.

Basis of determining the exercise price

The exercise price shall be such price determined by the Board in its
absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than the highest
of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotation sheets on the date of grant, which must be a day
on which the Stock Exchange is open for the business of dealing
in securities (“Business Day”);

(ii) the average of the closing prices of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five Business

Days immediately preceding the date of grant; and

(iii) the nominal value of a Share.
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(h) Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of
ten years commencing from 10 January 2020 up to and including 9
January 2030.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set out in the Prospectus.

As at 31 December 2021 and the date of this annual report, no share
options had been granted or agreed to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme. As a result, the total number of Shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme as of the date of this annual report was
200,000,000 Shares, representing 10% of the total number of Shares in
issue as of the date of this annual report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, no controlling
Shareholder or any of its subsidiaries has any material contract (including
material contract for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries) with the Company or its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of sales and purchases for the year ended 31 December
2021 attributable to the Group’s major customers and suppliers are as
follows:

Sales

— the largest customer: 12.6% of the Group’s total sales
- five largest customers combined: 52.5% of the Group’s total sales

Purchases

- the largest supplier: 10.5% of the Group's total purchases
- five largest suppliers combined: 26.5% of the Group’s total
purchases

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholder (who to
the best knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had an interest in the above major
customers and suppliers.
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RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Details of the Group’s retirement benefit schemes are set out in note 8(a)
to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

The Company has received confirmation letters from the Directors
confirming that other than the business of the Group, none of the
Directors holds any interest in business which directly or indirectly
competes or is likely to compete with the business of the Group.

As at 31 December 2021, to the best knowledge of the Directors, none
of the Directors was considered to have any interests in businesses which
compete or are likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group, other than those businesses where the Directors
were appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company
and/or the Group.

CONTRACTS WITH CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements and
in the section headed “Connected Transactions” in this annual report,
no contract of significance has been entered into between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling Shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries during the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Company’s corporate governance practices are set out in
the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

REVIEW OF ANNUAL RESULTS BY AUDIT
COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum (chairperson of the
Audit Committee), Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. The
Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial statements of
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float for the period during FY2021 and up to the date of
this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange since 10 January
2020 and there has been no change in auditor since then. The
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021
were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers whose term of office will
expire upon the conclusion of the 2022 AGM. A resolution for the re-
appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as auditor of the Company is to
be proposed at the 2022 AGM.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude to our
management and staff for their dedication and contribution to the Group
throughout the year.

By Order of the Board

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Chairman, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer
Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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The Board is pleased to report to the Shareholders on the corporate
governance of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Stock Exchange has announced amendments to Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules which shall apply to corporate governance reports for
financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2022. Appendix 14
to the Listing Rules has been restructured and renamed from “Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report” to “Corporate
Governance Code” and the code provision numbers are updated.
As such, the code provision numbers mentioned in this Corporate
Governance Report are referring to the code provision numbers in the
predecessor Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, unless otherwise stated.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance
standards.

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders, enhance corporate value, formulate its business strategies
and policies, and enhance its transparency and accountability.

The Company has in place a corporate governance framework and
has adopted a set of policies and procedures based on the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules. Such policies and procedures provide the infrastructure
for enhancing the Board’s ability to implement governance and exercise
proper oversight on business conduct and affairs of the Company.

In the opinion of the Directors, during the year ended 31 December
2021, the Company has complied with all the code provisions as set
out in the CG Code except as disclosed in this Corporate Governance
Report.

The Company has also put in place certain recommended best practices
as set out in the CG Code.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions.

Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and the Directors
have confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code
throughout the period during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up
to the date of this report.

The Company has also established written guidelines (the “Employees
Written Guidelines”) no less exacting than the Model Code for securities
transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession of
unpublished price-sensitive information of the Company. No incident of
non-compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees
was noted by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Company is headed by an effective Board which oversees the
Group’s businesses, strategic decisions and performance and takes
decisions objectively in the best interests of the Company.

The Board should regularly review the contribution required from a
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company, and whether
the Director is spending sufficient time in performing them.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the composition of the Board is as follows:
Executive Directors

Mr. Raymond Chu (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Arthur Chu

Mr. Lau Shui Fung (Chief Financial Officer)

Independent non-executive Directors

Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum

Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren

Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting

The biographical information of the Directors and the relationships

between the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 14 to 21 of this annual report.
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Board Meetings and Directors’ Attendance Records

Regular Board meetings should be held at least four times a year
involving active participation, either in person or through electronic

means of communication, of a majority of Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board held five meetings.
A summary of the attendance records of the Directors at the Board

meetings held during the year is set out below:

ESfS HEER
Name of Directors Attendance
REERE Mr. Raymond Chu 5/5
BB L Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley

(FR20214F9H30H EHF) (resigned with effect from 30 September 2021) 4/4
BREREE Mr. Chan Chi Ming

(R20214F10A31 HEFHE) (resigned with effect from 31 October 2021) 4/4
KXEFRE Mr. Arthur Chu

(R20219F7 A2 HEZF) (appointed with effect from 2 July 2021) 2/3
B tigsE Mr. Lau Shui Fung

(R2021F 1281 HEZF) (appointed with effect from 1 December 2021) 11
BRI Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 5/5
FEREE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 5/5
AITERRIESEE Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 5/5
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Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held one meeting

with the independent non-executive Directors without the presence of

other Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Under code provision A.2.1 (now C.2.1) of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. The Company has deviated from
this code provision as Mr. Raymond Chu has acted as both the Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer of the Company since 30 September 2021.
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Considering that Mr. Raymond Chu is the founder of the Group
possessing the expertise and extensive experience in the EMS
industry conducive to the Company’s development, coupled with his
responsibility in major decision-making concerning the Group’s daily
management and business, the Board believes that the roles of Chairman
and Chief Executive Officer being assumed solely by Mr. Raymond Chu
can provide the Group with strong and consistent leadership and allow
for effective development of long-term business strategies and efficient
execution of business decisions and plans.

The Board also believes that the balance of authority is adequately
ensured as the Board currently comprises three independent non-
executive Directors who offer different independent perspectives. At the
same time, all major decisions of the Company are made in consultation
with members of the Board as well as the senior management. Therefore,
the Board is of the view that the current organizational structure of
the Company is in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole, and
there is adequate balance of power and safeguards in place. The Board
will nevertheless review the organizational structure of the Company
and composition of the Board from time to time in light of prevailing
circumstances in order to maintain a high standard of corporate
governance practices of the Company.

Independent non-executive Directors

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive Directors representing at least one-
third of the Board with one of whom possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulated that non-executive
directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election,
whereas code provision A.4.2 stated that all directors appointed to fill
a casual vacancy shall be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment and that every director, including
those appointed for a specific term, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.

Under the Articles of Association of the Company, at each annual
general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being, or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest to
but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by rotation, provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall
be subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at least once every
three years. The Company’s Articles of Association also provides that
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his/her
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting whereas any
Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board
shall hold office only until the next following annual general meeting of
the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.

Mr. Raymond Chu, executive Director, has entered into a director service
agreement with the Company for a term of three years commencing
from the Listing Date. Each of Mr. Arthur Chu and Mr. Lau Shui Fung,
executive Directors, has entered into a director service agreement with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 2 July 2021 and
1 December 2021 respectively. Either party may at any time terminate
the director service agreement by giving to the other party three months’
written notice or payment in lieu of notice.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors, Ms. Ling Imma Kit
Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting, has entered
into a letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three years
commencing from the Listing Date, which may be terminated by not less
than three months’ notice in writing served by either party on the other.
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Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control of the
Company; and is collectively responsible for directing and supervising
the Company’s affairs.

The Board directly, and indirectly through its committees, leads and
provides direction to management by laying down strategies and
overseeing their implementation, monitors the Group’s operational and
financial performance, and ensures that sound internal control and risk
management systems are in place.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge
and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
The independent non-executive Directors are responsible for ensuring
a high standard of regulatory reporting of the Company and providing a
balance in the Board for bringing effective independent judgement on
corporate actions and operations.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company and may, upon request, seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s expenses, for discharging
their duties to the Company.

The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held
by them.

The principal functions of the Board are to supervise the Group’s
business and affairs; to review the Group’s financial performance; to
review the Group’s systems of risk management and internal control; to
approve the strategic plans; and to appoint directors of the Company.

Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board, directing
and co-ordinating the daily operation and management of the Company
are delegated to the management.
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors shall keep abreast of regulatory developments and changes in
order to effectively perform their responsibilities and to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.

Every newly appointed Director has received a comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on appointment and any necessary briefing
and professional development to ensure that he/she has a proper
understanding of the operations and business of the Group, and is fully
aware of his/her responsibilities under statute and common law, the
Listing Rules, legal and other regulatory requirements and the Group’s
business and governance policies.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
Internally-facilitated briefings for Directors would be arranged and
reading materials on relevant topics would be provided to Directors
where appropriate.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company organised
training sessions conducted by legal advisers for all Directors. The
training sessions covered a wide range of relevant topics including
directors’ duties and responsibilities, corporate governance and
regulatory updates. In addition, relevant reading materials including
compliance manual, legal and regulatory updates and seminar handouts
have been provided to the Directors for their reference and studying.
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The training records of the Directors for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been provided to the Company and are summarized as

follows:

EE -

BEx Type of
Directors TrainingNotes
HITES Executive Directors
KEBEE Mr. Raymond Chu AKB
Aand B
SRR S A Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley ANB
(20219 H30H FF(F) (resigned with effect from 30 September 2021) A and B
PRER A Mr. Chan Chi Ming AKB
(R2021F10/A31HEEE) (resigned with effect from 31 October 2021) Aand B
RANEFTE Mr. Arthur Chu ANB
(R2021%F7 H2 HEZ(F) (appointed with effect from 2 July 2021) Aand B
2T Mr. Lau Shui Fung AKB
(R2021F 1281 HEZ(T) (appointed with effect from 1 December 2021) Aand B
BYFBITES Independent non-executive Directors
BB Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum AKB
Aand B
FEMIELE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren AKB
Aand B
BIERRESEE Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting ANB
Aand B
MiEE Notes:
EIEER Types of training

A 2IEIIERE - BREETRRE®R  AEE 83
KEEIL

B: BIEARBIMEDRA - WAt - BT M RAERE T
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A:  Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, seminars,

conferences and workshops

B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and relevant

publications

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely, the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s affairs.
All Board committees of the Company are established with specific
written terms of reference which deal clearly with their authority and
duties. The terms of reference of the Board committees are posted on the
Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website and are available
to Shareholders upon request.

The list of the chairperson and members of each Board committee is
set out in the section headed “Corporate Information” on page 2 of this
annual report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive
Directors, namely Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum, Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren
and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting. Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum is the chairperson of
the Audit Committee. At least one of the committee members possesses
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise as required by the Listing Rules.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are of no less exacting
terms than those set out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit
Committee are to assist the Board in reviewing the financial information
and reporting process, risk management and internal control systems,
effectiveness of the internal audit function, scope of audit, relationship
with the external auditor, and arrangements to enable the employees
of the Company and those who have dealings with the Company to
raise concerns, in confidence, about possible improprieties (including
financial reporting and internal control) in the Company.
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The Audit Committee held three meetings during the year ended 31
December 2021 to review annual financial results and report in respect
of the year ended 31 December 2020, interim financial results and
report in respect of the six months ended 30 June 2021, significant
issues on the financial reporting, operational and compliance controls,
the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
and internal audit function, re-appointment of external auditor, audit
planning, engagement of non-audit services, continuing connected
transactions and arrangements for employees to raise concerns about
possible improprieties.

The attendance records of the members of the Audit Committee are as

follows:
EREEERERR HEER
Name of Members of the Audit Committee Attendance
RO Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 3/3
BEMGIE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 3/3
BITERRIESEE Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 3/3

FWESS

FMEZEemUEKEHER BB IFRITE
FRREGERE  BROKERFERELEN
RRTESRBIERE - AIESFELRERFHH
ZEEXF -

FMZBenBESERCEXE AT MEE
FEEE - TR E TN EERE IR E
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Szeto Yuk Ting, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum and Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Raymond Chu, executive
Director. Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting is the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are of no
less exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The primary
functions of the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management, the remuneration
policy and structure for all Directors and senior management, establishing
transparent procedures for developing such remuneration policy and
structure to ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates will
participate in deciding his/her own remuneration.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Remuneration Committee held five meetings during the year ended
31 December 2021 to review and make recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration proposals of the executive Directors, independent

non-executive Directors and senior management and the remuneration
policy and structure of all Directors and senior management. The
Remuneration Committee also made recommendations to the Board on
the remuneration packages of the newly appointed executive Directors

and compensation package of resigned executive Directors.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the remuneration of the senior

management by band is set out below:

AE
N E Number of
Remuneration band persons
1,000,001&7C21,500,000/5 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2
1,500,001 7T £2,000,000/5 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 3

HZE2021F12A31HILFES R EENFHIE
BERGR A P IEREM L3 »

= B e B HFREN T

Details of the remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31
December 2021 are set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial

statements.

The attendance records of the members of the Remuneration Committee

are as follows:

FHESEREME HEER
Name of Members of the Remuneration Committee Attendance
EBRLE L Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 5/5
FERELE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 5/5
BITESRESE 4 Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 5/5
KEBEE Mr. Raymond Chu

(R20219F9A30HEZF) (appointed with effect from 30 September 2021) 11
ERRELEE Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley

(R202149H30HEHT) (resigned with effect from 30 September 2021) 4/4

BFERERERAR
202143
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of four members, namely Mr.
Lee Wa Lun Warren, Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum and Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting,
independent non-executive Directors, and Mr. Raymond Chu, executive
Director. Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren is the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are of no less
exacting terms than those set out in the CG Code. The principal duties
of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board, developing and formulating relevant
procedures for the nomination and appointment of Directors, making
recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-appointment and
succession planning of Directors, and assessing the independence of
independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors concerning
Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board Diversity Policy.
The Nomination Committee would discuss and agree on measurable
objectives for achieving diversity on the Board, where necessary, and
recommend them to the Board for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s relevant criteria
as set out in the Company’s Nomination Policy that are necessary to
complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board diversity, where
appropriate, before making recommendations to the Board.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings to review the structure,
size and composition of the Board, the independence of the independent
non-executive Directors, the Nomination Policy and Board Diversity
Policy of the Company and to consider and recommend to the Board on
the Directors standing for re-election at the annual general meeting of the
Company. The Nomination Committee also made recommendations to
the Board on the appointment of new executive Directors and new Chief
Executive Officer of the Company.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



TEERRES

Corporate Governance Report

REZEERR EFSHZTILAEMSCE
EFEETE BEETESESCBRE
WEBRS AR EERR -

RELZEGRBMHFETENT

The Nomination Committee considered an appropriate balance of
diversity perspectives of the Board is maintained and has not set any
measurable objective implementing the Board Diversity Policy.

The attendance records of the members of the Nomination Committee
are as follows:

REZESRERSR HEER
Name of Members of the Nomination Committee Attendance
KEELE Mr. Raymond Chu 3/3
BRI Ms. Ling Imma Kit Sum 3/3
TEMEE Mr. Lee Wa Lun Warren 3/3
AITERRESE A Mr. Szeto Yuk Ting 3/3

EEESTIEE

ARRERMEFS SRR - ETHAE
HEZEZUENTE - ARRIAMBEEFS
TEMEZTEHRAERAMEN®EE - 1
TEHRANEFTEZ KPR AT ART
EREBEEERAFEERNEZRNR -

RIAEFGEXR - ARAFRERZETEE
BEFEEZTL - BRETRNAEE - X -
BERER  BUERAE CERERESE
Zeigsnk  EERMAZEHBERE
REGHS  YWRBEBREEZRIEA -

REESER - ARABERZEZ TICAERH
BIREAN  BREETRRARE - e FEL
8~ B R AE o REORTEFBURR FTE IR
BABREZEHRNEENER °

EEeRERREAFEZBERNERESS
ZTERE - TERFERERURREES
M WHEESEBUMFEEMELNER - B
Al - RELZEER/EERCEAZ T -

REZEEFNEERRIEFTEZTTIBR
PARERELARIE

EFBRERERAR
20214 3R

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity of the Board. The Company recognises and
embraces the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality
of its performance and sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of the Company’s strategic
objectives and sustainable development.

In designing the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been
considered from a number of aspects, including but not limited to talent,
skills, professional experience, independence and knowledge. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be
considered against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits
of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for appointment as Directors will be based on a
range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to talent, skills,
professional experience, independence and knowledge. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board.

The Board will consider setting measurable objectives to implement the
Board Diversity Policy and review such objectives from time to time to
ensure their appropriateness and ascertain the progress made towards
achieving those objectives. At present, the Nomination Committee
considered that the Board is sufficiently diverse.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.

55



ERERREE
Corporate Governance Report

RABERY  EFENERAHATERES
T AERRIT

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition can be summarised
by the following main diversity perspective:

EEAY
Number of
Directors
4 51 Gender
2z Female 1
ES Male 5
EiE:3 Ethnicity
Fh Chinese 5
mnex Canadian 1
FiR Age
31E405% 31-40 1
41E505% 41-50 0
512605% 51-60 3
612705% 61-70 2
PR % F PR Length of Service
DR1F Less than 1 year 2
1224 1-2 years 0
2E3%F 2-3 years 3
3ZEAEF 3-4 years 1
RAEBE Nomination Policy

EFERCAREZBEZREHESMHER
EHRE AR
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The Board has delegated its responsibilities and authority for selection
and appointment of Directors to the Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted a Nomination Policy which sets out the
selection criteria and process in relation to nomination and appointment
of Directors and aims to ensure that the Board has a balance of
expertise, skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The Nomination Policy sets out the factors for assessing the suitability of
a proposed candidate, including but not limited to the following:

e Skills, knowledge and experience relevant to the operations of the
Company;

e Commitment in respect of available time to discharge duties as a
member of the Board and/or Board committee(s) of the Company;

*  Various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy of the Company
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, and professional experience;

¢ Independence of the proposed independent non-executive Directors
in accordance with the Listing Rules; and

e Company’s business model and specific needs.

The Nomination Policy also sets out the procedures for the selection and
appointment of new Directors and re-election of Directors at general
meetings.

The Nomination Committee will review the Nomination Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness. The Nomination Committee
will also review at least annually the structure, size and composition
(including skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board and diversity
of the Board to ensure that it has a balance of expertise, skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives appropriate to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the code
provision D.3.1 (now A.2.1) of the CG Code.

The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate governance policies
and practices, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices
on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code, and the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report. A manual setting
out various corporate governance policies and procedures has been
adopted by the Company, which applies to assist the Board and the top
management to better perform their corporate governance duties to the
Group and delegate the responsibilities to the Board committees.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board has the overall responsibility for evaluating and determining
the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to take in achieving the
Company’s strategic objectives, and establishing and maintaining
appropriate and effective risk management and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in leading the management and
overseeing their design, implementation and monitoring of the risk
management and internal control systems.

The Company has developed and adopted various risk management
procedures and guidelines with defined authority for implementation
by key business processes and office functions, including sales and
receivables, procurements and payments, financial reporting, human
resources and information technology.

The Company’s risk management and internal control systems include
a defined management structure with limits of authority. Appropriate
policies and control procedures have been designed, implemented
and reviewed to ensure that assets are safeguarded against improper
use or disposal; established system, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with; reliable financial and accounting records
are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting standards and
regulatory reporting requirements; and key risks that may impact the
Company’s performance are appropriately identified and managed. Such
procedures are designed to manage the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The management, in coordination with department heads, assesses the
likelihood of risk occurrence, provide treatment plans, and monitor the
risk management progress, and reports to the Audit Committee and the
Board on all findings and the effectiveness of the systems. Any significant
internal audit issues identified and associated remedial actions are
followed up for proper implementation, and the progress is reported to
the Audit Committee periodically.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The management has confirmed to the Board and the Audit Committee
on the effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the year ended 31 December 2021.

During the year under review, the Company engaged its external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers, to conduct an internal control review on certain
operational processes of the Group. A report on the result of assessment
and recommendations was provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers to
the Audit Committee. The Group will take measures to implement the
recommendations made by PricewaterhouseCoopers on the internal
control system.

The Board, as supported by the Audit Committee as well as the
management report and the internal audit findings, reviewed the risk
management and internal control systems, including the financial,
operational and compliance controls, for the year ended 31 December
2021, and considered that such systems are effective and adequate. The
annual review also covered the financial reporting and internal audit
function and staff qualifications, experiences and relevant resources.

The Company has adopted a Whistle-blowing Policy to facilitate
employees of the Group to raise, in confidence, concerns about possible
improprieties in the practices and procedures, including financial
reporting, internal control and other matters, in their workplace.
It enables employees to report matters that may constitute (i) non-
compliance to laws or regulations; (ii) malpractice, impropriety or fraud
relating to internal controls, accounting, auditing and financial matters;
(iii) endangerment of the health and safety of an individual; (iv) damage
caused to the environment; (v) improper conduct or unethical behaviour
likely to prejudice the standing of the Company; and (vi) deliberate
concealment of any of the above.

The Company has developed its Inside Information Policy which provides
a general guide to the Directors, officers and relevant employees of the
Group in handling confidential information, monitoring information
disclosure and responding to enquiries. The Inside Information Policy
ensures that potentially price sensitive or inside information can be
promptly identified, assessed and escalated for the attention of the Board
to decide the need for timely disclosure in order to ensure compliance
with Part XIVA of the SFO.
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The Company has also adopted a Code of Business Conduct Policy to
ensure that the Group conducts its business activities and transactions
with honesty and integrity, and in accordance with moral, ethical
and legal standards of the countries in which the Group conducts its
business. This policy applies to the Company’s business worldwide and
to all employees of the Group (unless the subsidiary(ies) of the Company
has(have) its(their) own code of business conduct) and covers the
following aspects:

e Obligations towards the Group

e Personal conduct

e Employment practices

e Relations with customers

e Relations with suppliers and contractors

e Responsibilities to shareholders

e Responsibilities to the community

*  Monitoring of compliance and means of enforcement

e Compliance with laws, rules and regulations

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY THE
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Each of the controlling Shareholders, namely Smartview, Smart Union,
Grandview, Mr. Raymond Chu and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson, has
entered into a deed of non-competition in favour of the Company on 20
December 2019 (the “Deed”), details of which have been set out in the
Prospectus.

The Company has received written declaration from each controlling
Shareholder in respect of his/its and/or his/its close associates’
compliance with the terms of the Deed during the year ended 31
December 2021. The independent non-executive Directors have also
reviewed the compliance with the Deed and enforcement of the terms
of the Deed by the controlling Shareholders and confirmed that the
controlling Shareholders have not been in breach of the Deed during the
year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the consolidated financial statements is set
out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 101 to 108 of this
annual report.

There is no disagreement between the Board and the Audit Committee
on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of external
auditors.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

An analysis of the remuneration paid to the external auditor of the
Company, PricewaterhouseCoopers, in respect of audit services and non-
audit services for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

g1/
EHEA
Fees Paid/
Payable

ZH RS
FERZ B RTS
— BB AR R AR

— E b RRTE — IRIE

1,900,00078 7T
HK$1,900,000

Audit services

Non-audit services

— Tax compliance and advisory services 469,000/% 7T

HK$469,000
— Other advisory services — environmental, 260,0007% 7T
social and governance HK$260,000

2,629,000/ 7T
HK$2,629,000

B AR ARAR
20214 3R

61



TEERRES

Corporate Governance Report

REAME

BA AR BHIEARR Z ARME » 52021
F10A31 BRBER - RERHTRE - INERBSE
BEEREESEAERATNREB LT ERT
BARRRZATMWE - B2021F10A31HEEAE
oo RRBBLZERARNATNEBHE A BARD
AITEERERYHE S LIESLE -

HE2021F12831HIEFE BERLLER
B EWRAIE3. 200K - 2ENDR15/NEFRYAE
AL -

IR R R

ARREBS EBBREHEBR -

RIRER RS MAER - RRKRE LA S E
ARBBYHMEREBRBRER  BREERAE
ABFE - IAREERRAGHORBRSRE
EARABRERR  MRELERBESBRA
BERIED I AR R R B Fragus -

BRRREBEIAE

REARNPMABERZARIE6415 - MR T
ARZAFEARTCHRBA(HHRBE
RELEREOEN) APR+DZ2—H—RK
ZEBER - AIFERARBRRERIAS - BRAF
KEAEETAAEFELARRRAIMEN
- LB REF SR LA R REMEB ARG
EARBRRFERINE - ERERBERR%H
SKIERERARET - EEBRRBRE21AR
EFeREEHARERE  AFERAREAA
RGEAAITE  MERAREZTEREEHA
HeEmMELNMERERXBHARRMHE
FraakA e

62

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Kwong Tony Wan Kit resigned as the company secretary of the
Company with effect from 31 October 2021. Following his resignation,
Ms. Chan Sau Ling of Tricor Services Limited, external service provider,
has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company with effect
from 31 October 2021. The primary contact person of Ms. Chan Sau
Ling at the Company is Mr. Lau Shui Fung, executive Director and Chief
Financial Officer of the Company.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, Ms. Chan Sau Ling has
undertaken not less than 15 hours of relevant professional training in
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company engages with Shareholders through various
communication channels.

To safeguard Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolution
should be proposed for each substantially separate issue at general
meetings, including the election of individual Director. All resolutions
put forward at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to
the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the websites of the
Company and of the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

Convening an Extraordinary General Meeting

Pursuant to Article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
extraordinary general meetings can be convened on the requisition
of one or more Shareholders holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings. Such requisition shall
be made in writing to the Board or the Company’s company secretary
for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in such
requisition. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the Board
fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself/
herself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Forward Proposals at General Meetings

Any Shareholder who wishes to put forward proposals at a general
meeting of the Company shall submit such proposals to the Board in
writing for the Board’s consideration either via mail to the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong or via email not less than 15
business days prior to the date of the general meeting. The mail address
and email address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details”
below.

Putting Forward Enquiries to the Board

For enquiries about shareholdings, Shareholders shall direct their
enquiries to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited and the contact details are
set out as follows:

Address:  Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong
Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333
Fax: (852) 2810 8185

For enquiries about corporate governance or other matters to be brought
to the attention of the Board, Shareholders shall send their written
enquiries to the Company either via mail to the Company’s principal
place of business in Hong Kong or via email. The mail address and email
address are set out in the subsection headed “Contact Details” below.

Contact Details

Shareholders can send their proposals and enquiries as mentioned above
to the Company as follows:

Address:  Units 3203-3207, Tower 1, Enterprise Square Five,
38 Wang Chiu Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong
(For the attention of the Company Secretary)

Fax: (852) 2505 1283

Email: ir@wiseally.com.hk

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send
the original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or
enquiry (as the case may be) to the above address and provide their full
name, contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by law.

The Company will normally not deal with verbal or anonymous
enquiries.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and investor understanding
of the Group’s business performance and strategies. The Company
endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with Shareholders and
in particular, through annual general meetings and other general
meetings. At the annual general meeting, Directors (or their delegates
as appropriate) will be available to meet Shareholders and answer their
enquiries.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
at www.wiseally.com.hk where up-to-date information and updates on
the Company’s financial information, corporate governance practices
and other information are posted.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has not made
any changes to its Memorandum and Articles of Association. An up-to-
date version of the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association
is available on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website.

Policies relating to Shareholders

The Company has in place a Shareholder Communication Policy
to ensure that Shareholders’ views and concerns are appropriately
addressed. The policy is regularly reviewed to ensure its effectiveness.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy on payment of dividends.
Depending on the financial conditions of the Company and the Group
and the conditions and factors as set out in the Dividend Policy,
dividends may be proposed and/or declared by the Board during a
financial year and any final dividend for a financial year will be subject
to the Shareholders” approval. The Board currently intends to recommend
dividend no less than 30% of the net profit available for distribution to
the Shareholders beginning from the financial year ended 31 December
2021.
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OVERVIEW OF THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL
AND GOVERNANCE REPORT (THE “ESG REPORT”)

Wise Ally International Holdings Limited (the “Company”, and its
subsidiaries, collectively the “Group”, “we” or “us”) recognise the
importance of sustainability in contributing to long-term business
success. We are pleased to presents our Environmental, Social and

Governance Report (the “ESG Report”).
Reporting Scope and Boundary

The ESG Report summarises the strategy, practice and vision of the
Group in respect of the issues related to environmental, social and
governance (“ESG”), and conveys a clear message of the Group’s
devotion for sustainability. It also covers the Group’s ESG performance
within its core business operations and activities for the period from 1
January to 31 December 2021 (the “Reporting Period”). Unless otherwise
specified, the scope of the ESG Report covers all principal subsidiaries
during the Reporting Period, which include the businesses and offices in
Hong Kong and Dongguan production plant in the People’s Republic of
China (the “PRC").

It also provides relevant updates on the significant ESG matters identified
during the Reporting Period. For the Group’s corporate governance
practices, please refer to the section “Corporate Governance Report” of
this Annual Report. Overall, the reporting boundary remains the same as
the prior year.
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Preparation and Basis of this ESG Report

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG
Guide”) under Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules and complies with all
provisions of “mandatory disclosure” and “comply or explain”, as well as
the following reporting principles:
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ESG performance.
Remarks are
provided in case
of any change in
data compilation
methodologies and
scope.

management to
show an unbiased
picture of our ESG
performance.

In preparing the ESG Report, the Group has adopted the international
standards and emission factors specified in the respective guidance
materials on the ESG Guide for computing the relevant Key Performance
Indicators (“KPIs”)'. There is no change from the previous year in the
way the ESG Report has been prepared.

Source of Data and Reliability Statement

The information disclosed in the ESG Report is extracted from the
Group’s internal documents, statistical reports and relevant public
materials. The Group undertakes that the ESG Report does not contain
any false information, misleading statement or material omission, and
takes responsibilities for the contents hereof as to the authenticity,
accuracy and completeness.

1 How to prepare an ESG Report? — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs, https:/www.hkex.com.hk/-/media/hkex-market/listing/
rules-and-guidance/other-resources/environmental-social-and-governance/
how-to-prepare-an-esg-report/app2_kpis
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CONFIRMATION AND APPROVAL

The ESG Report was approved by the board of Directors of the Company
(the “Board”) on 30 March 2022 upon confirmation by the management
of the Company. The ESG Report is prepared in both Chinese and
English. In case of any discrepancy between the Chinese and English
versions of the ESG Report, the English version shall prevail.

ESG GOVERNANCE AND MANAGEMENT

Governance ensures there are appropriate structure and processes to
guide everyone in an organisation to build an environment of trust,
transparency and accountability where interests of all stakeholders are
protected. Effective governance is fundamental to enhance shareholders’
values and safeguard the interests of both our internal and external
stakeholders, including the community we serve.

Board Statement

The Board acknowledges the significance of effective sustainability
practices and are actively integrating ESG systems in making key business
decisions. The Board is ultimately responsible for overseeing the Group’s
ESG-related risks and opportunities, establishing and adopting the ESG-
related strategies and targets, reviewing the progress made against the
Group’s ESG-related goals and targets and revisiting the ESG-related
strategies as appropriate if the progress of achieving these ESG-related
targets is significantly behind.

The Board regularly evaluates and determines the risks (including ESG-
related risks) that are relevant to the Group and ensures that appropriate
and effective risk management and internal control systems are in place.
The Board has regular meetings and discussions on the effectiveness
of these systems, as well as the progress made against relevant ESG-
related goals and targets. To ensure that our operations are aligned with
our environmental targets, management will continue to review and
monitor the Group’s environmental performances against our targets to
ensure that we operate our business in an environmentally and socially
responsible model while generating strong returns for our shareholders.
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ESG Governance Structure

An ESG Working Group, which comprises of members from middle
£ A% 45E  to senior management, has been established to support the Board in
implementing ESG-related strategies and targets, conducting materiality
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relevant functional departments of the Group to take prompt actions to
address such deviations.
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Functional Department

Governance Structure

EEgRRERAR  YEERE HSRERGIEMNRY - EREE -
The Board is responsible for the overall decision-making and oversees the formulation,
administration, and assessment of the ESG system.
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The ESG Working Group is responsible for assisting the Board in managing and
monitoring the ESG matters on a day-to-day basis. Comprising of senior representa-
tives across departments, this working group aims to facilitate better coordination in
addressing ESG issues.
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Functional departments, such as Operations, Supply Base Management, Client Base
Management, Human Resources departments, are responsible for the execution of
implemented measures to achieve the set strategies and targets and the monitoring and
evaluation of the effectiveness of implemented measures on a regular basis.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, the Group acknowledges the
importance of robust ESG process and how we contribute to the
sustainable economic growth and development of our business. Being
a market participant in the Electronic Manufacturing Services (“EMS”)
industry, the Group strives to minimise our environmental impacts arise
from our operations. The Group has considered the climate-related issues
and incorporated them into our risk management system to enhance the
Group’s resilience and adaptive capacity to potential climate change
impacts. Risks that may have material impact on the Group’s businesses
have been considered and evaluated in the annual enterprise risk
assessment.

The Board will continue to review the Group’s progress in relation

to ESG issues in order to build a more sustainable business and bring
greater benefits for society as a whole.
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Engagement with Stakeholders

In the course of operation, the Group continues to pay attention to
the major concerns of internal and external stakeholders. Through
comprehensive and transparent engagement with stakeholders, the
Group continues to improve sustainable development strategies and
plans based on the feedback of stakeholders. Through addressing the
expectations and needs of stakeholders, the Group aims to build mutual
trust and develop cooperative relationships with stakeholders, and to

create a future of sustainable economic growth and an environmentally
friendly and social inclusive workplace.

RS HERERIER

Areas of ESG Concern

The table below summarise the Group’s communication and engagement
channels with its stakeholders as well as their major ESG concerns:

BHRE

Engagement Channels

Stock Exchange

B EWRA K
K BRI DS

Compliance with the Listing Rules; and
Timely and accurate announcements

Bk

o
38 -
=3
ot
=F
I

o 19
lji_\}'

Meetings;
Trainings and seminars; and
Company’s website and announcements

BF R EEHE

Government and regulatory
authorities

EIEAE
BOETL &
EEFEHRERIER

Operational compliance;

Tax payment as legally required; and
Disclosure of information and
submission of materials

FEESRERF M
ZANIFE VYN

Annual reviewal process; and
Company’s website and announcements

KREH

Investors

ﬁ%fﬁk*ﬁkIQEEiﬁi
BREEER
REAN R

& B2k

Business strategies and performances;
Effective corporate governance;
Sustainable profitability; and
Investment returns

BERERAE
MBHERRE + R
ZA/NSIFEr

General meetings;

Financial reports and announcements;
and

Company’s website

S
;

ERERAR

Media & Public

BEEA
BARE R
S AR

Corporate Governance;
Environmental protection; and
Uphold human rights standards

N

NN EHE, - &
FEEhg
Announcements;

Company’s website; and
Press conference
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Suppliers e Payment schedule; e Site visits;
e Demand stability; *  Meetings; and
e Operational Compliance; and e Conference calls and interviews
e Quality services and products
5P o BEMRFEER: s W&
o EmZTE . B
o BEREE o BEE®m M
. AMERRRE . BEHHEERE
. mEAH
Customers e Quality services and products; e \Visits;
e Product safety; *  Meetings;
e Commercial credibility e  Conference calls; and
e Intellectual property rights and e Customers’ enquiries handling
protection; and mechanism
e Operational compliance
B8 o EEHENREF o THIEH
o HIIMERE: o BB
o I{ERBEEBEZE R o FEE:
o FEHE o ERM: R
o WhatsApp XI5 &
Employees e Rights and benefits of employees; e Regular meetings;
e Training and development; e Employee training;
e Working environment and occupational ¢  Annual Appraisal;
safety; and e Opinion box; and
e Equal opportunities e WhatsApp and WeChat group
A o HEREE: o HER®ED :
o MEME o HREFEW K
o RIBRE N o FEBEMRAE
o HEWEi
Community e Community development e Community service activities;
e Employment opportunities; e Media enquiry; and
e Environmental protection; and *  Press release and announcements
e Social welfare
BEFBERZERARAR
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Materiality Assessment

The Group has identified ESG issues that may have potential impacts
on our sustainable development from various sources, including issues
identified and included in the Group’s previous ESG report, internal
policies, some reflected by industry trends, and areas of ESG concerns
raised by the Group's stakeholders as set out above. Such ESG issues
have been analysed with reference to an array of factors, including the
Group's overall ESG-related strategy, development, and goals and targets.
The Group has conducted a materiality assessment to rate the identified
ESG issues that are pertinent to our business and stakeholders, and their
respective levels of impact. The Group has adopted relevant measures
to cope with these factors, and therefore, the Group believes that
these factors do not have material impact on financial and operational
performance of the Group.

The table below illustrates the results of the Group’s materiality
assessment, which shows the issues that are considered to be the most
material and may have significant influence over the Group’s ESG

performance.
B B (] HE
Environmental Operations Employees Community
RE R R EER R EmEE &% HERRE

Greenhouse Gas & Air Product Responsibility Employment Community Investment
Emissions
RERBRE M RKE HEsEE R ST AR

Energy & Water
Consumption

Supply Chain Management

Labour Standards

Waste Management

i

an il

o

ZEee

Product Related Complaints

[EAEen

Health and Safety

B A

SEEL

Climate Change

=z

B5E

Xl

4

o

Anti-corruption Awareness

Development and Training

BEMEDER

Packaging Material
Consumption

A EE

Intellectual Property

R R &

Privacy Protection
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

The Group is an established EMS provider offering full turnkey solutions
to customers, with particular focus in consumer electronic products
that covers a broad spectrum of product applications, including vapour
products, appliances, commercial controls and heating, ventilation and
air-conditionings.

The Group acknowledge the importance of environmental protection
and follows the principle of sustainable development in our day to day
operations in an attempt to improve the environmental awareness of
employees and build a more sustainable environment. The Group has
formulated an ESG policy to guide the ESG practices, and our Dongguan
production plant has also established an environmental management
system with relevant policies and procedures for each business process
that met the international industry-specific environmental standards
and obtained ISO 14001:2015 certification. Some of these policies
and procedures include, but are not limited to, the Environmental
Management Handbook, the Procedure for Environmental Factors/
Hazard Source Identification, Evaluation and Updating, the Procedure
of Monitoring and Measurement of Environmental Performance, and the
Management Procedures for Electricity and Water Usage.

The Group strictly abides by the relevant environmental laws and
regulations in the PRC, including but not limited to:

o “Environmental Protection Law”

o “Law on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric Pollution”

o “Law on the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution”

o “Law on the Prevention and Control of Solid Waste Pollution to

the Environment”; and

o “Law on Energy Conservation”.
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Air Emissions

The Group’s air emissions derive mainly from automobiles. The table

below summarised the types and the amount of air emissions

20215 5B 20205 B E
EEHBY Bfy 2021 Amount 2020 Amount
Major Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission
AEILHNO) ¥
Nitrogen Oxides (NO) kg 63.55 73.02
HEILM(SO) ¥
Sulphur Oxides (SO ) kg 0.18 0.20
SERYE (PM) T
Particulate Matter (PM) kg 5.95 6.84

BEREHERK Greenhouse Gases Emissions

AEENRERBERFNEERRNHEH
K EWHREREAR B S BNER  RER
BREZFEREIERRNINEE N  ZRNER
AR (R B AEHERLHMIL -

The Group’s direct emissions of greenhouse gases result principally from

the burning of fuels in the generators and vehicles, as well as consuming

of refrigerants, while the indirect emissions of greenhouse gases are

mainly from the purchased electricity, discarded waste paper and the

flights that employees took for business trips.

20215F BB 2020FHENE
BERER By 2021 Amount 2020 Amount
Types of Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission
HE : BERPELH (T
Scope 1: Fuel burning in generators (Note 1)
—S{LH(CO,) AR
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Tonnes COze 162.33 9.15
FE(CH,) W= RS E
Methane (CH,) Tonnes CO,e 0.03 0.002
—SL=AN,0) WA R
Nitrous Oxide (N,O) Tonnes COze 0.14 0.01
At W _StREE
Total Tonnes CO e 162.50 9.16
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2021 F 5B 2020 H M E
REE By 2021 Amount 2020 Amount
Types of Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission
HE  FIENE
Scope 1: Combustion of fuels in vehicles
—&Lico,) M= SR R
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Tonnes CO,e 28.71 32.55
FR(CH,) M= LA B
Methane (CH,) Tonnes CO,e 0.05 0.07
— L= AN,0) Mo EILHEE
Nitrous Oxide (NZO) Tonnes COze 3.43 4.73
Mt B _SE{RER
Total Tonnes CO,e 32.19 37.35
HE : ERRSEI(ME27)
Scope 1: Use of Refrigerants (Note 2,7)
—&Lico,) MR R
Carbon Dioxide (CO,) Tonnes CO,e 166.52 83.26
BEVEEREHMEE (H5E3)
Total Scope 1 Greenhouse Gases Emissions (Note 3)
#Et WE—E(LIREE
Total Tonnes CO,e 361.21 129.77
#[E2 — LREE BN
Scope 2 — Energy Indirect Emissions
E(PE4) WE—E(LIREE
Electricity (Note 4) Tonnes CO,e 6,926.03 6,023.90
#[E3 — H bR
Scope 3 — Other Indirect Emissions
REAR (BRES) WE—E(LIREE
Waste Paper (Note 5) Tonnes CO,e 20.35 14.82
AT (P EE6) WE—RILIEE
Business Trips (Note 6) Tonnes COze 1.50 6.91
#Et WE—E(LIREE
Total Tonnes CO,e 21.85 21.73

BEFBERZERARAR
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2021588 20205 E

BRES By 2021 Amount 2020 Amount
Types of Emissions Unit of Emission of Emission
BERBERAE(KE7)
Total GHG Emissions (Note 7)
#Et MR —fULIRE &
Total Tonnes COze 7,309.09 6,175.40
B E WM-SLREE BRI Ea8EREN
Emissions Intensity Tonnes CO,e/every million units of production

by pieces 346.25 350.98

5T Notes:

1. BMEMEEENBEEREFMEEN2021FK 1.
TN - REA2021F5 AEZ10 81/ - TS
NEBRFHE  ERRTEEREENREEE
FOIKFBIE AN ©

2. FA=mFEE(  WLEHEMENANEZIEM 2.

3. BMEVRERBIROFERABRERZA 3.
TER [ARERE HERERARE] R
[Migk— - RIBEARAEBUERERIES) AR
HH PR BGEHE -

4. BBEVEREREHN FERINBENWEESE 4
B s R BEARREAEGR (2019
FREEMEESRFREAF) URPEMEE
N —B(CiREEHRARE (20209F) -

5. BEBRERBIRTAREANFERRHEIR 5.
BEZPATIEN [MARERE S RER
WE] A M8 RIRARERIERERE
5l PTREMBIA R B E -

6. REHEMEENGEIAZREBHMEEABEE 6.
RSO ERAES

7. AREEFFA2020F F2021FEFERESEEAE 7.
HENEEN - UFAREEREERN AR
MUR = REEHEREE -

The significant increase in the total emission of greenhouse gases from fuel
burning in 2021 is due to the continuous city power shortage problem of
during May to October in 2021, resulting in a greater reliance on fuel burning
for our Dongguan production plant.

The use of refrigerant has increased this year due to the aging of the air
conditioners.

The emission factors of Scope 1 GHG emissions was calculated based
on the emission factors provided in “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” in “How to prepare an ESG Report” published by the
Stock Exchange.

For Scope 2 greenhouse gas emission (indirect emission from consumption
of purchased electricity), the Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power
Grids in 2019 issued by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC,
and also the carbon dioxide equivalent emissions intensity of electricity sold
by CLP in 2020 is adopted.

The emission factor of paper consumption in Scope 3 GHG emissions was
calculated based on the emission factors provided in “Appendix 2: Reporting
Guidance on Environmental KPIs” in “How to prepare an ESG Report”
published by the Stock Exchange.

The emission of Scope 3 GHG emissions contributed by business travel
is calculated by International Civil Aviation Organization (ICAO) Carbon
Emissions Calculator.

The Scope 1 emissions due to the use of refrigerants in 2020 and 2021 are
incorporated this year to provide a more comparable and accurate reflection
of our total GHG emissions.

HELEMERANEZERNZRFMEEZIEFZ  As the operations in our Dongguan production plant gradually resumed
B FIRERESNER LERSEHMAEF  to normal this year, the amount of greenhouse gas emissions have
BN - AEEFFAFEZERFRR - B4 increased compared to the previous Reporting Period. To uphold
Bk R BR - WERER R PR EHE i i B ERAEHEM the principles of sustainable development, the Group is committed
TEHFFT380ME — A bk E 2 R MFFTAE  to reducing carbon footprint, and aims to maintain greenhouse gas

BEEEEMIAT - emissions intensity below 380 tonnes CO,e per every million units
of production by pieces through adopting the following mitigating
measures.
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Measures to Reduce Emissions

The Group has adopted a wide range of measures to reduce the
emissions that we generate. In relation to our fleet of vehicles, the
Group has prohibited the use of vehicles by our employees other than
for business purposes, whereas the use of vehicles for long-distance
travelling by employees would only be approved if it is strictly necessary.
The Group also conducts weekly inspections and regular maintenance of
the vehicles to ensure that they are operating at maximum fuel efficiency.

Desulphurization, dust removal and purification are scheduled on a
regular basis to reduce the emissions from the diesel generators in the
Group’s production plants. The Group also installed exhaust ventilation
systems to control emissions generated from the soldering process, and
such exhaust facilities are managed and maintained by responsible
personnel from the Administrative Department (“ADM”).

Due to the above measures, the Group has been maintaining a stable
emission level that meets the emission standards set out by law in order
to maintain I1SO 14001:2015 certification.

Waste Management

The Group advocates the idea of a green and sustainable working
environment, and adheres to the principle of the 4'R’s’ in environmental
protection (Reduce, Reuse, Recycle and Replace). The Group also
encourages digital communication to reduce the use of paper. Besides,
the Group also implemented the Waste Management Procedures that
categorises waste into hazardous waste and non-hazardous waste.

RERYEE Efy 20214 20204
Types of Waste Unit 2021 2020
BEERY
Hazardous Waste
BEERERYEE WA
Total Hazardous Waste Tonnes 0.72 0.41
BERENTE MRt E R ER BN
Hazardous Waste Intensity Tonnes per every million units of

production by pieces 0.04 0.02
Non-Hazardous Waste
MREREE I
Total Paper Consumption Tonnes 4.24 3.09
MREREE M REETEESES BN
Paper Consumption Intensity Tonnes per every million units of

production by pieces 0.23 0.18

EFBRERERAR
20214 3R
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For hazardous waste, the generation of hazardous waste results
principally from chemical waste, such as waste mineral oil, used mercury
containing lamps and paints. The Group has engaged an environmental
service provider with Hazardous Waste Business License to collect
hazardous waste on an annual basis. The Group will make continuous
efforts to keep the intensity of hazardous waste produced below 0.10
tonnes per million units of production by pieces.

For non-hazardous waste, the generation of non-hazardous waste
results principally from paper consumption and other various types of
general commercial wastes, such as office supplies and plastics. The
Group further categories non-hazardous waste into recyclable and non-
recyclable waste. The recyclable waste is sorted out and collected by
the recycling companies at the centralised location. Meanwhile, we
also require our employees to use both sides of paper when printing or
photocopying, and reuse single-sided paper for photocopying or printing
draft documents, and recycle them as long as there is no confidential
information. The Group will make continuous efforts to keep the intensity
of paper consumption below 0.30 tonnes per every million units of
production by pieces.

Use of Resources and Energy Efficiency

In terms of electricity saving, the Group has established the Management
Procedures for Electricity Usage to ensure industrial safety and encourage
energy conservation at workplace. Specific measures have been
implemented to conserve energy, such as requiring employees to turn
off electrical equipment and power supply before leaving the premises
and when not using such equipment; prohibiting employees from laying
cables without permission from the Admin Department; monitoring the
monthly electricity usage and following up with relevant departments
that exceed the electricity usage standards.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The table below summarised the Group’s direct and indirect energy
consumption results principally from the consumption of diesel for
generators and electricity respectively.

202145 HEE 20209 HES

REREm B 2021 2020
Types of Energy Unit Consumption Consumption
HEEEFORRE - BERIE)

Direct Energy Consumption: Generators (Note 1)

SEH F RS

Diesel kWh 664,671.42 37,461.35

BiREFERE &

Indirect Energy Consumption: Electricity

£ TELEF

Electricity kWh 8,651,576.00 7,519,287.00

REFUHERE FERKE

Total Energy Consumption kWh 9,316,247.42 7,556,748.35

RERERTE TRE e ES S

Energy Consumption Intensity kWh/total production units by pieces 0.51 0.43
BaE Note:

1. BRERESEMEEN2021FEXBIEN - BREA
202145 AZ2021F10 A8ART - WS HEER
SE - BREZEERE YR M EENKRTE
B e

AEBBARHEREHRE - W5 8EIRH
FAEREERES0TRE MR B E
BEBEMIAT - RFEREREREERESN
BENBER  RERSRZLEEREE FHFLE
B AT E R - B HEARE s
HBRNERZE - TR E-—FMHNER
’I‘EE'Z!»‘%@u,u\%ab/ﬁxﬁ%%?TﬁﬂAT FE IR
BEIEFEKF -

BEBEFIERER AR
202143

1. The significant increase in the total emission of greenhouse gases in 2021
is due to the continuous city power shortage problem during May 2021 to
October 2021, resulting in greater reliance on fuel burning to support the
operations in our Dongguan production plant.

The Group endeavours to promote a low-carbon culture and strives to
maintain the total energy consumption intensity below 0.50 kWh per
total production units by pieces. This year, our energy consumption
intensity has slightly exceeded our target because our Dongguan
production plant encountered continuous city power shortage in the
second half of the year, which resulted in a significant increase in the
consumption of diesel to support our operation. In view of the temporary
nature of this incident, the Group believes the energy consumption
intensity will resume to a normal level next year.
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Water Usage

The existing water supply adequately meets the Group's daily operational
needs and there has been no difficulty in sourcing water. Water is mainly
used in the offices in Hong Kong and the Dongguan production plant for
cleaning and sanitation. As the water supply of office premises in Hong

TR EREREERENRKIBR Kong is centrally managed by property management, the data below only
covers water usage in the Dongguan production plant.
2021FHER 2020 HFEE

Ak B 2021 2020
Water Usage Unit Consumption Consumption
RkieE AV
Total Water Consumption Cubic meters 101,930 95,390
RkEERE SR BRI EES BN
Intensity of Total Water Consumption Cubic meters per total production

units by pieces 0.01 0.01

RNEBIRE N HEITATETKIEE « IRATBIRAKEK
& FHREKEBRARETLENRKER
B RS AIEE - ERFRR RS EKEES
SRERED KRR IZRE AR T A £ [E B B MBI
FAKE#H - AEBEGFENAREFAKRE
BEHFE0.03 L KRRt ES BN
AT

BRI
AEEERNBEEIBEMMAR  EH - HE

AR - BRRIASOBRBBEM R - TRET
REBERNREHREERH BEMBEUE -

The Group strives to conserve water by implementing a series of
measures, such as: adopting circulating water system, performing regular
checks on faucets to avoid unnecessary leakage and to enable prompt
reporting of any damages. In order to raise our employees’ awareness on
water conservation, water-saving signs were placed inside the toilets and
next to every faucet. The Group will make continuous efforts to maintain
the intensity of total water consumption at or below 0.03 per total
production units by pieces.

Packaging Material

The Group uses materials such as paper, paper boxes, partition
cardboard, plastic bags and foam sponges for the packaging of products.
The table below shows the data of the amount of packaging materials
that the Group has consumed during the Reporting Period.

20215 KR 20206 HFER

BEMH By 2021 2020
Packaging Materials Unit Consumption Consumption
EREEMHEE 7]
Total Packaging Materials Used Tonnes 792.43 677.32
EREEMHEERE W R AR E R A
Intensity of Total Packaging Tonnes per total production

Materials Used units by pieces 43.32 38.50
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Specific risk

RixEEE
Types of Climate Risk

The Environment and Natural Resources

The Group constantly monitors the environmental impacts brought
by our operations and adheres to the 1ISO 14001:2015 environmental
management standards and our ESG policy, and ensures that we
minimises our carbon footprints and impacts on the environment through
systematic management of all environmental aspects of our activities,
products and services.

Climate Change

As threats of climate change is imminent, the Group has considered
the potential climate-related risks in respect of the recommendations
of the Task Force on Climate-related Financial Disclosures (TCFD) and
identified the following climate risks (both physical and transition risks)
that are relevant to the Group’s businesses.

NG g P

Description of the risk

EEEER (SZAME)

Physical risk (acute)

extreme heat flooding)

RomR R (AREER, ~ AREL ~ )

Extreme weather conditions (e.g. typhoons,

HARBPIN R R M AEERE T RN 5 X%
mARFENME - BINARER2HEE
FERAR - LARREARRAR -

Despite our offices and production plants
are not located in areas prone to extreme
weather conditions, safety measures and

drills should be implemented to mitigate

such risks.

B ER (REME) FESR

Physical risk (chronic)

Sustained high temperatures

RHNARLEENS RS EHMEER
e REERIREETREIE MR B, S A
BREREREERTEKT -

Chronic heat waves and sustained high
temperature results in greater electricity
consumption. The Group should adopt
energy conservation measures to reduce and/
or maintain the overall energy consumption
at a steady level.

EFBRERERAR
20214 3R
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Types of Climate Risk Specific risk Description of the risk

R EEARRER RIBETE BBERE - B R e
SRERRDEAN At - XEEFRED TH
HRARIA - (Mm@ REATTR

Transition risk Regulatory compliance risk With more stringent environmental
regulations and greater financial impact on
businesses from the imposition of carbon
taxes, the Group needs to be fully aware of
these matters to avoid violations of laws.

BEER BEER BB AR A A KR
AR RAN A ERFNEE -
AEEBRBEREEREEBRN - B
HEE T LS F B A E S E NN E R FBIRR
ELBEARHA -

Transition risk Reputation risk Wise Ally’s reputation may be impacted

by the change in customer behaviour or
perception of the Group’s contribution to
the transition to a low-carbon economy. The
Group's business model should be enhanced
to align with the low-carbon economy or
customers may have negative perceptions of
Wise Ally due to lack of progress.

BR ANEBRAHmIBKROEELANIRIER At the moment, the Group believes that the potential of extreme weather
BEPIMER e W AREBRELSELSE KNS conditions and changes in environmental-related regulations would not
2o BREBIS AL RTEFE - 28 result in a material impact to the Group’s operation. Nevertheless, the
HEMEE  UEAREMR LD EtEEER  Group continues to monitor and evaluate the situation and enhance
HIR 2 o relevant measures to minimise the exposure to the above climate-related

risks.
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SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Standards

The Group believes that employees are one of the most valuable assets
of an enterprise and we see human resource management as an integral
part of our overall business strategy. The Group strictly abides by all
applicable laws and regulations related to employment, including but not
limited to:

In Hong Kong:

e “Employment Ordinance”, the “Minimum Wage Ordinance”, and
e “Employees’ Compensation Ordinance”

In PRC:

e “Labour Contract Law”,

e “Labour Law”,

e “Regulations on Paid Annual Leave of Employees”,

e “Law on the Protection of Women’s Rights and Interests”, and

e “Law on the Protection of Disabled Persons” and “Social Insurance

"

Law

Going beyond compliance, the Group is committed to building a
diversified and inclusive working environment to ensure that no
employees are discriminated against or deprived of opportunities due
to their gender, ethnic background, religious belief, colour, sexual
orientation, age, marital status or family status in relation to recruitment
and promotion. The Group has specially formulated the Rules on the
Labour Protection of Female Employees and Anti-discrimination and
Harassment Procedures to protect the rights of all employees, so that the
employees’ talents can be reflected on, assessed and rewarded fairly.

The Group has zero tolerance on child labour and forced labour and
strictly prohibits any form of child and forced labour at work. To
avoid such practices, the Human Resources Department performs
detailed interview screening procedures on each candidate. A thorough
background check is carried out to verify the authenticity of personal
data stated on application forms by examining the applicants’ original
identity cards and making detailed inquiries to ensure that no child
labour is employed.
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Should any child labour or forced labour be discovered, the Group
would immediately terminate his or her employment and investigate the
root cause of such incident. We will reserve our rights to take disciplinary
actions against any employees who are accountable for the employment
of child labour or forced labour. During the Reporting Period, the Group
was not aware of any cases regarding the practice of child labour or
forced labour.

The Group has also established a Human Resources Policy to manage
our employee recruitment, resignation, promotion and other processes,
so as to standardize the workflow and improve the working efficiency
of the Group. In accordance with our needs, the Group hires suitable
candidates through a series of selection processes, including resume-
screening, background check and job interview. Employees who intend
to resign shall inform his or her Department Head or Manager-in-Charge
in advance notice in writing. On the last day of employment of the staff
who is leaving the Group, the Human Resources Department performs
an exit interview with the leaving staff to understand the reason of their
resignations, and collect further feedback or complaints to ascertain
if there is any rooms for improvement in the workplace environment.
Employee probation assessments and annual appraisals, serve as
an important basis for rewards and punishments, salary adjustment
and promotion, year-end bonus, etc. Our remuneration policy is
commensurate with the job nature, qualifications and experience of our
employees, and such policy is subjected to annual review. In addition
to the provision of annual bonuses and employee related insurance
benefits, discretionary bonuses are also rewarded to employees based on
their individual performance.

To attract high-calibre talents and motivate existing employees, the
Group offers competitive remuneration packages, fringe benefits, and
welfare allowances for our employees, such as the medical and social
insurances, travel and phone call allowances. The standard working
hours of the Group’s employees are 8 hours per day and 40 hours per
week on average with at least 1 rest day per week. In order to strengthen
team cohesion and create a harmonious working atmosphere, the Group
organizes various group activities on a regular basis.
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20214  REBBEFE NFESBHLEMRA  In 2021, the Group was awarded the “Caring Company Logo” by Hong
BeR P EARRBIENZE 58N RA Kong Council of Social Service for the 6 consecutive years to recognise
RPIEHREREXL EEReEAHMAIIEIR  our commitment in offering a caring culture and inclusive workplace

BRENE S -

environment.

EESREIE 20215 2020
Employees Demographics 2021 2020
BEAH Total number of employees 1,212 910
RUBB S HEEAR Number of employees by gender
pogid Female 609 477
S Male 603 433
RFRANEDNESAR Number of employees by age group
255 AT <25 167 102
25ZE295% 25-29 164 118
30ZE395% 30-39 427 379
40ZE495% 40-49 316 271
5088 A £ >50 138 40
RERELEINESAR Number of employees by employment type
28 Full-time 1,211 909
Fi i Part-time 1 1
BWEE D HEEAR Number of employees by geographical

region
B8 Hong Kong 61 73
e PRC 1,150 837
Hith Others 1 0
EER KR (MFE) 20214 2020%F
Employee Turnover (Note 1) 2021 2020
BREBRKLE Overall employee turnover rate 23% 10%
RIMEREISHEE MR R Employee turnover rate by gender
gegi Female 15% 7%
EE)i Male 31% 14%
RERERNEDHEEMALLE Employee turnover rate by age group
255 ATF <25 56% 25%
25F295% 25-29 33% 17%
30E395% 30-39 18% 7%
40E495% 40-49 12% 6%
5088 A k= >50 1% 18%
mihE B D HEE AL X Employee turnover rate by

geographical region
BB Hong Kong 80% 33%
o PRC 20% 8%
A, Others 0% 0%

FI&E Note:

1. BEM2020FKEHE - DIREBIIREEALE 1. To provide a more comparable and accurate employee turnover rate by
EHENEERENES MK REUE - categories, the figures for 2020 have been restated.

EERRZERAR AR
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Health and Safety

Employee’s health and safety is of utmost importance to the Group.
The Group complies with all relevant safety regulations such as the
“Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance” in Hong Kong and
the “Production Safety law” and “Fire Protection Law” in the PRC.
An Employee Safety Policy has been formulated to identify different
potential hazards and outline the safety procedures for different aspects
of our production activities. The Group also established contingency
measures in the Employee Handbook, which outlines the special work
arrangements in times of typhoons, rainstorms, serious communicable
diseases, etc.

As for our Dongguan production plant, the Environmental Health and
Safety (“EHS”) employee is responsible for handling all health and safety
related issues. All employees have to sign a confirmation notice after
inspecting their working environment. The Group also requires all new
employees to complete a “3-Level Safety Training” before commencing
work. This training provides both operational and preventative guidelines
to raise the employees’ awareness on work safety and guide employees
to operate equipment in an accurate and safe manner, and encourage
employees to respond swiftly in case of emergencies.

In addition, the Group has formulated a series of general safety measures,
which includes prohibit smoking in non-smoking zones (e.g. warehouse,
flammable and explosive areas, and other production areas); formulate
fire safety management plan and precaution procedures in accordance
with applicable laws and regulations, and carry out regular fire drills to
strengthen the safety awareness of all employees and help them to get
prepare when fire accidents occur.
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In the midst of COVID-19 pandemic, the Group established a COVID-19
emergency recovery team and developed contingency plans to ensure
that all practicable preventive and protective measures are in place to
minimise the risk of spreading COVID-19 at workplace. For instance,
we require employees and visitors to fill in health declaration forms,
perform daily temperature checks, wear masks at all time and keep
social distancing. We also provide employees with masks and sanitizers,
and allow work from home arrangements. The Group also formulated
a special plan to guide and manage cross-border drivers entering our
Dongguan production plant. The Group pays close attention to latest
developments regarding the COVID-19 pandemic and regularly reviews
and enhances our contingency plans to ensure its adequacy and
suitability.

During the Reporting Period, there were no work-related fatalities but 11
reported cases of work injuries, resulting in a total of 62 lost days.

20214 20204 20194

RERZZ Health and Safety 2021 2020 2019
IE8E Number of injuries 11 4 6
EIEELTER Lost days due to work injury 62 101 212
ETC#EH Work-related fatalities = = =
Nil Nil Nil

BE=-F(BREREHRE)  ~EEEEHLEN
THERUEBLEFERIEKF - NEBERKEE
MERENL 2R RUBRARB(CBE

REFEN

EFBRERERAR
20214 3R

Over the past 3 years, including the Reporting Period, the number of
work injuries suffered by our employees maintained at a relatively
low level. The Group continues to enhance existing safety procedures
committed to improving our occupational safety measures where
necessary.
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Development and Training

The skills and experience of our employees are critical to the long-term
development of the Group. Therefore, we invest in the growth of our
employees to enhance their knowledge and skills. Our training covers a
myriad of topics, ranging from technical knowledge, such as electronic
components and welding, to communication skills and relationship
building, which would in turn allow them to discharge their duties
more effectively while helping them to achieve their personal goals. The
Group is committed to providing our employees across all levels with
both in-house and external trainings to support their career development

and personal growth.

EE%3 20214 2020%F
Employee Training 2021 2020
RUBBSNZIEET DL Percentage of employee trained by gender

pegis Female 31% 31%
S Male 69% 69%
RESEMNESNZIEERT DL Percentage of employee trained by

employee category

EIRfE Management 2% 1%
FRES Mid-level employee 7% 7%
MikEE Junior employee 91% 92%

RIS S OF HRATREHI
FHHH

it

St
RERBAMS WS EREZRENN
FHHH

EBE

PR

VGRS

Average training hours completed per
employee by gender

Female 1223/ 11.91/ )i
12.23 hours 11.91 hours
Male 12.68/) K 12.66/)M
12.68 hours 12.66 hours

Average training hours completed per

employee by employee category

Management 4.96/NEF 7.86/ N
4.96 hours 7.86 hours
Mid-level employee 4.33/NEF 7.55/ ]\
4.33 hours 7.55 hours
Junior employee 10.07/) B 12.74/ N
10.07 hours 12.74 hours
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Geographical region of suppliers

Supply Chain Management

The Group understands that prudent supply chain management is
integral to sustainable development and therefore, we are committed to
establishing long-term and harmonious cooperation relationships with
our suppliers. The Group expects our suppliers to uphold the principles
of integrity and pragmatism, and provide products and services in strict
compliance with the requirements of applicable laws and regulations.
The Group requires suppliers to comply with applicable laws and
regulations in relation to relevant European Union (EU) directives and
regulation, such as the Restriction of Hazardous Substances Directive
2002/95/EC (“RoHS”) and the Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation and
Restriction of Chemicals Regulation (EC) No 1907/2009 (“REACH”).

In order to standardise the procurement procedures and strengthen the
monitoring and management of suppliers, the Group has established the
Supply Base Management (“SBM”) Standard Operating Procedure, which
includes key measures such as assessments prior to accepting a supplier as
an approved supplier, and on-going assessments and regular inspections
of approved suppliers.

When sourcing new suppliers, the SBM team and the supply quality
assurance team would evaluate the capability of the potential supplier,
while our engineers may request the supplier to submit samples for
testing. The SBM team would obtain relevant documents such as signed
supplier information forms with company chops and compliance
declaration forms in relation to RoHS and REACH from a new supplier.
New suppliers can only be added to the approved vendor list upon
passing the assessment and getting approval of the manager and
vice president of SBM. Our assessments include the new supplier’s
background information, product and service quality, reputation, human
rights management, etc. We would also investigate if the potential
suppliers were involved in any significant environmental non-compliance
incidents. Supplier performance appraisal is conducted on an annual
basis and those suppliers that fail to meet the Group’s standards may
result in termination of the cooperation.

20214 20205
HEFEE HEREE
Number of Number of

suppliers in 2021 suppliers in 2020

=s) PRC 697 508
BB Hong Kong 271 186
R BUM M es M E A B Kt & U.S., Europe and the rest of Asia 101 92
st Total 1,069 786

BFERERERAR
202143
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Product and Service Responsibility

Providing a safe, quality and reliable product and service to customers
is one of the core values of the Group, and we are committed to
maintaining high quality in our manufacturing process. The Group
adopted the principles of total quality management (TQM) and provides
our employees with ongoing trainings on quality assurance. We also
comply with all relevant regulations such as the “Product Quality Law”
in the PRC, the EU Directive 2006/122/EC, 2005/69/EC and 2011/65/EU,
and the Regulation (EC) No. 1907/2006.

The Group maintains stringent quality assurance and carries out in-
depth inspections throughout the manufacturing process, from the
incoming quality assurance of materials procured to performing in-
process inspections during production and outgoing quality assurance of
finished electronic products. The quality assurance officers will perform
periodic sample checks, including visual checks, functionality tests,
automated optical inspection (AOI) and/or x-ray inspections to ensure
that all products meet the specifications and standards before delivering
to customers.

To allow easy retrieval of production data, the Group has implemented
a traceability record system in the production line. All our products are
labelled with barcodes during the production process. Should there
be any quality issues with the Group’s products, the system enables
the Group to promptly ascertain the source of the defect throughout
the production process, identify the defective lot of products and take
appropriate remedial measures to rectify the issues and to prevent future
reoccurrence.

In addition, the Group has a Class 100K cleanroom production floor
with a gross floor area of approximately 2,700 square meters in our
production facility, which includes a Class 10K cleanroom laboratory
facility for the production of products with higher sanitary requirements,
such as medical and healthcare products.

With the stringent quality assurance in place, the Group has obtained,
among others, ISO 9001:2015 for quality management system in respect
of manufacture of printed circuit board assembly (PCBA) and design of
household control modules; ISO 13485:2016 for quality management
system for manufacture of electrocardiogram monitor patch; and pulse
oximeter QSR 820 for the United States Food and Drug Administration
Medical Device Quality System Regulation; and Good Manufacturing
Practice (GMP) certifications for food from both International
Electrotechnical Commission (IEC) and Underwriters Laboratories Inc.
(UL). In order to achieve the above certifications, the Group’s production
and quality management systems are subject to annual review and
inspection.
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Intellectual Property

The Group recognises the importance of protecting and enforcing
our intellectual property (“IP”) rights, and strictly complies with all
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us. These
regulations include but not limited to the “Trade Marks Ordinance”
and “Copyright Ordinance” in Hong Kong, and “Trademark Law” and
“Patent Law” in the PRC. The Group has adopted practices to avoid
infringements of intellectual property rights, such as entering into
Confidentiality Agreement (CA) or Non-Disclosure Agreement (NDA)
with our subcontracted manufacturer and employees; and registering IP
rights that are material to our business operations.

As of 31 December 2021, the Group has registered a total of 9
trademarks, 1 patent and 2 domain names that are material to our
business.

Privacy Protection

In the course of the Group’s business operations, we collect and maintain
basic information of our customers, suppliers and employees. To protect
the interest of respective stakeholders, any dispatch or use of such data
for purposes other than conducting normal business is strictly prohibited.
With reference to the requirements set out in the Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance in Hong Kong and the Cybersecurity Law in PRC, the Group
has established rules and formulated Personal Data Policy to handle
confidential information and prohibit any leakage of information relating
to the Group, our suppliers, customers, as well as any other external
parties.

During the Reporting Period, our Dongguan production plant has
organised regular Information System Safety trainings to employees to
raise their awareness on data protection and privacy matters.

Complaints and Responses

Customers feedbacks are important to the Group’s success, we take
all feedback and complaints from customers seriously and ensure that
immediate follow-up actions are taken upon receipt of complaints. The
Group has established a customer complaint handling procedure. In
cases where complaints are received, the quality engineers from the
Quality Assurance Department will investigate the incidents and issue
a report outlining the responsible department, the root cause of the
problem, and the corrective actions implemented.

During the Reporting Period, the Group received 33 complaints and all
have been resolved after proper follow-up actions were taken by the
Group. No products were subject to recalls due to safety and health
reasons.
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Anti-corruption

The Group strictly complies with all relevant laws and regulations over
anti-corruption, including the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance” in
Hong Kong and the “Criminal Law” in the PRC.

The Employee Handbook clearly outlines the expected business
conduct and professional ethics of our employees. Coupled with the
Corporate Governance Policies and Procedures and the Policy on Inside
Information, the Group is determined to convey a clear message to all
employees that any forms of bribery, corruption, extortion and fraud
are strictly prohibited. During the Report Period, more than 240 anti-
corruption training sessions were provided to our employees in the
Dongguan production plant, while more than 30 online anti-corruption
training sessions were provided to all employees and directors of the
Group’s Hong Kong office.

The Group has also established the Whistleblowing Policy for employees
to report any concerns about malpractices or improprieties. Should
employees have any concerns about malpractices or improprieties,
they can report to their supervisors or to the Whistleblowing Committee
via email. A full investigation will then be conducted, and disciplinary
action will be applied to the employees involved upon confirmation of
the allegation, and further legal action may be taken depending on the
nature and circumstances of each case.

During the Reporting Period, no legal cases regarding corruption were
brought against the Group or our employees, and the Group is not aware
of any incidents of bribery, extortion, fraud or other violations.

Community Investment

The Group earnestly fulfills our social responsibilities, actively carries
out public welfare activities, and regards public welfare as an important
aspect of our corporate culture.

In 2021, the Group participated in a Corporate Volunteer Program and
organised by the Salvation Army share our experience on how innovative
mindsets enable us to develop new products that can help the elderly
people surmount their major obstacles in their daily lives. Moreover, we
also participated in Smart Age Innovation Adventure Project organised
by the Salvation Army to improve the technology and application of 3D
printing on elderly products, ranging from multi-function sit-up stand to
eating aids. Through these community events and sharing, we hope to
emphasize the importance of elderly care and provoke their innovative
thinking and ideas.

The Group will continue to explore and host more public welfare
and community activities in the future when the COVID-19 situation
improves and the social distancing restrictions are lifted.
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A. Environmental

ATEERA

A1 Emissions

—RIEE ARBRRLRERBHN - FKR LS BERETE HE 73E808
SRS -
(@) HR: Rk
b) BFTHETAEEAFENEREERAPINEH -

General Disclosure Information on: Overview p.73-80
(@) the policies; and
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and
land, and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

IS RS 1RATLT PR R ARR PR ER B 745

KPI'AT.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions data. Air Emissions p.74

BRENERA1.  ER(EE)REREER(BE)RERBHNE (MR R AEREBHR 7TAET76E
HEWMER) WASEBEA - BERMEHE) -

KPI'A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas ~ Greenhouse Gas p.74-76
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per ~ Emissions
unit of production volume, per facility).

ARERERAIS  ELAZEEVAE(NETE)LEE(NER) (MARE BEWER 778
B - BEMEAHE) °

KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where Waste Management  p.77
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BRERIRITAIAY  EERZEEVASCAEHE)EE(NER)(MUEBE BEVER 778
BB BEREHE) -

KPI A1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where ~ Waste Management ~ p.77
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per
facility).

BRENUERALS BTN E SRR AEDEL R SR SR - BERBHN RS 768

fit
KPI'A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Greenhouse Gas p.76

them.

Emissions, Measures
to Reduce Emissions

B AR ARAR
20214 3R

93



R - g RERKRE
Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B P B/ R

Aspect Description Chapter/Section Page number

BRENERALe HIREAEREZERVNIIL  MELMFTIMREESR BEVER 77E785
RAEEEL B RARRA SR o

KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are ~ Waste Management ~ p.77-78

handled, and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

A2ETRER

A2 Use of Resources

—RINE ARERER(BIEER « K REMRME)BEE HE 788

General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, Overview p.78
water and other raw materials.

BARAEAUEIRA2.1 REREDNEER,/ IRRER(NE - Reoh) gE2(h  EREA 798
TETREAE) REE(NMASESEN - SEREAE) -

KPI'A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. Use of Resources p.79
electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in "000s) and intensity (e.g.
per unit of production volume, per facility).

MREREEA2 BRKBRAE(UASERRN - SERIEHH) « ER{Em 808

KPI'A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of Use of Resources p.80

production volume, per facility).

BRERUEIEA23 WA MARERNGE R ERARELASHRDNS BRER  RER 798

KPI'A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken Use of Resources, p.79
to achieve them. Energy Use
Efficiency
FIRERUEIRA2.4 $asdSKEGE AR LRI B ERERE - Fral LMk a B R K 808
REDFLR TR SR -
KPI' A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that Water Usage p.80

is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

FREMERA2S RRAREEMBNRE CAEE) R(NER) BEEEU BEMH 805
e -
KPI' A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)  Packaging Material p.80

and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.
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A3 The Environment and Natural Resources

—RIEE BEBRTABRBERAREREREATEORR BERBRER 811

General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the ~ The Environment and  p.81
environment and natural resources. Natural Resources

BASRABAUEIRA3. HAXHEDERERARERNEATERCENEREH REKARER 815
yENE -

KPI'A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the The Environment and  p.81
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to Natural Resources
manage them.

A4SRIRBE

A4 Climate Change

—RRIE Bol L ERHCERAREHETAELTENEARGHEBSE RIFEL 812828
EHBE o

General Disclosure Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate- ~ Climate Change p.81-82
related issues which have impacted, and those which may
impact, the issuer.

ISt A E 1R AT HWABERAEGHRTAELFENBEARGEREE - & RIREL 812828
FESHTE -

KPI' A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have Climate Change p.81-82

impacted, and those which may impact, the issuer, and the

actions taken to manage them.

BFERERERAR
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Page number
BAE
B. Social
B1{E{R
B1 Employment
—RRE ARAHM N EE - BERET  THERE - RY - TERe - EERRSIER 832855
ZIt - REGAREMEE BN :
(@ HBE: K
b ETFTHETAREATZENHEEEZRROINER -
General Disclosure Information on: Employment and p.83-85
(@) the policies; and Labour Standards

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

BASRAEAUIEIRB1 .1 IR - ERER (P2 BRE) « FRANEE DN ERRSTER 855
EEABZ -

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type Employment and p.85
(for example, full- or part-time), age group and Labour Standards

geographical region.

BRENUERB1.2 MR FleARIEEI D HERRALE - (EfE K 85 TR 855
KPI'B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical Employment and p.85
region. Labour Standards
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Page number
B2 R 2
B2 Health and Safety
—RRIEE ARRRLZ2TERELRBEE#LBRIIREN - Epaze 862878
(@ BE: R
b) BETHZETABEAZENHBERLRDIHER -
General Disclosure Information on: Health and Safety p.86-87

(a) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.

RSB AUIEIRB2.1 BEZF(BERSFR)BFRENATTHNABRRILE - REELZE 875
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of ~ Health and Safety p.87

the past three years including the reporting year.

RIS 4B AUEIRB2.2 ATERATERR - (R 878

KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety p.87

RIS IRIRB2.3 WLPARANBERERT 2HE  WREBRTRERS REEZE 862878
i o

KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures Health and Safety p.86-87

adopted, and how they are implemented and monitored.

B3% /R RIEH

B3 Development and Training

—fRIEE ARARTHER BT TEBEMAME R ERREMEBR - FFIE  BRIIE 885
& o

General Disclosure Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for Development and p.88
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities. Training

AR B AUIEIRB3.1 RUERIREERRN(NSREEE  PREEZE)ESNZIIE BFRIEY 885
RN -

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee  Development and p.88
category (e.g. senior management, middle management). Training

FRENUERB3.2 RMRIREBRERIES - BRER TR TS - BR LET 885

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender Development and p.88
and employee category. Training

BEFBERZERARAR
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BTE P /8 B
Aspect Description Chapter/Section Page number
B455 T2 8|
B4 Labour Standards
—REBE ARAPILETIRHIETH : B R 5 TER 832848
(@ BE: &
b) BTHBEITABEATENHEBERLAPINER -
General Disclosure Information on: Employment and p.83-84
(@) the policies; and Labour Standards
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to preventing child and forced labour.
RSB RUEIRBA. sl R E P AR R ET KA T - EfR & 55 TR 832845
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to Employment and p.83-84
avoid child and forced labour. Labour Standards
At A IR 1SB4.2 AR ERBREERARELARRN SR - EfRE RS TR 832847
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when Employment and p.83-84
discovered. Labour Standards
ZEEM
Operating Practice
B> EHEEE
B5 Supply Chain Management
—REE EBHAEGEORA R BEBRTK - HERER 898
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the Supply Chain p.89
supply chain. Management
RES 4B RUEIEBS.1 witEE D HHERSE e R 897
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain p.89
Management
A IR IRB5.2 HWOAMERMERNED  mERTEBEINMERE  fUERER 898
B AREBRTRERTA -
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number  Supply Chain p.89
of suppliers where the practices are being implemented, and Management
how they are implemented and monitored.
RS M IRIRB5.3 HWOLABBR RS ERGORE L SRROEDN - UK (fEEER 898
MERTRERTE -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental Supply Chain p.89
and social risks along the supply chain, and how they are Management
implemented and monitored.
MRENIEERS.4  RAEREHERREREZARRERMREHOED - URE HERERE 898
RBITRERIE -
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally Supply Chain p.89
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers, and ~ Management

how they are implemented and monitored.
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Aspect Description Chapter/Section Page number
BoEmE(T
B6 Product Responsibility
—RIKE ARAMRERERNRENRFERZE B  REIMEEE EnMREET 908
DA R ABROT AR -
(@) BR: R
b) BTHBITABEATENHERERLBAPINER -
General Disclosure Information on: Product and Service  p.90
() the policies; and Responsibility
(b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.
At WIS 1RB6. 1 EERCEXEREHT AR RRFEEMMANKNESY EREREEE 918
b
KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls ~ Product and Service p.91
for safety and health reasons. Responsibility
BRENUERB.,  BREBENERNKREHRFHE A REETE peE)ia 918
KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received ~ Complaints and p.91
and how they are dealt with. Responses
FASEMISIEB6.3 MLEREE LREAEEESENED - HBERE 9%
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting ~ Intellectual Property ~ p.91
intellectual property rights.
FISERUEIRBo.4  HUEEmEBREREMOKER o EmkRBEE 908
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Product and Service  p.90
Responsibility
FAREMIEIRBe.S  HURBEBRRELALBEE - UREBRTRERE . NBER 95
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, Intellectual Property ~ p.91

and how they are implemented and monitored.

BFERERERAR
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BTE P /8 B
Aspect Description Chapter/Section Page number
B7 &5
B7 Anti-corruption
—REBE ﬁ@%ﬁ%%\%%‘%ﬂ&%%%%i RES 928

(a) R

L#ﬁ% TABERZENEMERRROINER

General Disclosure Informatlon on: Anti-corruption p.92

(@) the policies; and

(b) compliance with relevant laws and

regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer relating
to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

RSB RUEIRBY .1 RRE ER S 8T T/\jiﬁ@é-\hﬂjj[ﬁ% ENBESHRARNN RED 928
EQEDSE TN
KPI'B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices  Anti-corruption p.92

brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.

RIS A RIE1RBY .2 P SRR RET - AREBRTREER A - R&EF 928
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing Anti-corruption p.92

procedures, and how they are implemented and monitored.

PsEMIEIER7.3  HEAESNKE TRENRESHE - RE5 928

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors Anti-corruption p.92
and staff.

HE

Community

BSHERE

B8 Community Investment

—RINE ﬁWMﬁE/AXTﬁ%@WE&E%E@%%ﬁ%%ﬁ@@ HERE 928
Z EALE RIS ABUR

General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand the needs ~ Community p.92
of the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its Investment

activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

BRUUIETBS]  TIABEROURE BEEE BTEL BE X HERE 928
BE) -
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental Community p.92
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport). Investment
FREMIEERs.2  AEIREMPHAER(NERLER) o HERE 928
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. ~ Community p.92
Investment
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Independent Auditor’s Report

pwc B 5 Rk i

BEFEMERERDGRKRE To the Shareholders of Wise Ally International Holdings Limited
(RESHSHME T HERAE]) (incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

R OPINION

BEMEETHAR What we have audited

BEEBIERERAR(ATEMEIEAR )X The consolidated financial statements of Wise Ally International Holdings
HMBARATHME SE®])F#HMN5E109  Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which are

E196 B HERE M BHE - B set out on pages 109 to 196, comprise:

° MR2021512 431 BRERAE MBI  the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021;

s BEZRLIFEMNGFAZERER  the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year
then ended;

s BEZRIFEMNGRAEREDHR » the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then
ended;

o HEZBIFEMGAESRER K e the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended;
and

s HFAMBHRERWE BRIESHBER

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include

HEMhREE R - significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
BEFBRZERAR AR
20214 3R ( 101
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BMRE  ZEREVERREBEE S S
MAgBEmaKE BT EREEINEEMT S
MRERT HEER2021F12 831 B4 EE
BRRAREHZEZB L FENGEMBREAR
RABeRE  WEBREBCARENER
ERTEL ANE -

RRNER

BPEREB LS ASEMAKELER
ZEREITE - BAEXFEMTAENE
EEEAREZBEN T 4R G M B RETA
ENEEIR D P IEE— SR -

HIFIRE - RAOIPTESNERTRERTE LB
SRR AINESF BRI HER -

By

STRD(ATERISFA) - RABILN ES

REFZEEHMASRMON(EXSFTENER
- WEBETTAIFNEMBERBREL -
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P

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s

Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RETFASRBRMNERAE - RRY

D I

M o Rk K 18

%

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment,

AEER B IEHMERNBRAEEMNEIE - &  were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
TR HERMPIEREGAVBRERNME R statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the

BEARETREN - BMATSHELEHEHR
BERNER -

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

BAAEERT BRI RIS E T =R EHER I
EEmizsBRE

BRETEE
Key Audit Matter

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to revenue recognition
for the sales of goods:

EPNEFNAEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

RIHE R mia

Revenue recognition for the sales of goods

B2 A M IERRMFE2.21 %5 ©
Refer to Notes 2.21 and 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

HZE2021F12A31BILFE  RAEEERME
£%8491,047,330,0008 T BEXENGEEE

Was RIER o

During the year ended 31 December 2021,
revenue from the sales of goods amounting to
approximately HK$1,047,330,000 was recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

PR e miHENE it KERENE —(E
5 R R R AR M et

Revenue from the sales of goods transferred at a
point in time is recognised when the control of the
goods has transferred.

BFERERERAR
20214

BB ERHE B m ST ARITOE 845
Our audit procedures performed on revenue recognition for the
sales of goods included:

HAIEAR - FHE MAERA R IHE S m s f RS H
We understood, evaluated and validated the key controls in
respect of revenue recognition for the sales of goods;

BT A EHATFPHHEERY YR BHERER
2 bl 4 2 B R 1R R 1“f¢‘$ﬁﬁ1ﬂﬁ¥’f pI(nA) - LARY
i EEENUEHERBRRELTARTEAEARE

We reviewed, on a sample basis, the sales contracts with
customers and identified the terms and conditions relating
to the timing of transfer of control of goods, along with other
customary business practices, if any, to assess if the Group’s
revenue recognition policies were in accordance with the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

TAIAED S F AR R 5 BN X - FFEHH
€ HEHEREREEAUNRRETHLE  tMEEHE
Ennlas R RE SRENRSERBR TIAER &
We compared, on a sample basis, revenue transactions
recognised during the year with delivery documents,
customers’ acknowledgement of sales, underlying sales
invoices and sales contracts to determine whether revenue
from the sales of goods had been recognised in accordance
with the Group’s revenue recognition policies; and
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BEPNETTNAEERRETSE
How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BAFERETE - RESNMELNKRERZE
BREA - Hit - RFIE T ERA DR ERA
We focused on this area due to the magnitude of
revenue transaction occurred. Hence significant
audit resources were allocated to audit this area.

ER ERFTAITORRF - HARSHEEMRN
Wt HERER A RIBSS -

HfER

BERRERAHEMERRE - AMESERE
FRAWMBER  BETEEFRAVHHRE R
BT BED RS

ﬁiﬁ%’ﬂﬁ/—\ MBRROBER L MR EEME
C BPIREZERMEEERRETAEAN

S 4 2A
2 A0 A ©

HJ}E‘%[
ok

HEERMERAUBHRENE RPN ET
BHMER - EIBRER - BEERAMER
BEGRE B mR B MEETBRERRT
HIERFEERKBE N EUTFEERER
FRALAY BN ©

| 8

ﬂﬁﬁimmmnw

ERBEMEATOIIE  REMBREME
EREEAHRRL  BHMIFEREZEE -
EETE - BVRBEMFRS -
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o RPILARES M EFA R Z A k2 R ERNHE B Rl
%Eﬁi XM BPHHE MBS R EHRETR
 RMETFHE SRR NEE Y B T AR
%7\]\ o
e We tested, on a sample basis, revenue transactions from the
sales of goods recognised before and after the financial year-
end to delivery documents, customers’ acknowledgement
of sales and underlying sales invoices to determine whether
revenue from the sales of goods had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period.

Based upon the above procedures performed, we considered that
the recognition of revenue from the sales of goods was supported by
available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises all of the information included in the
annual report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group'’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards
applied.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Cheng Lap Yam.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
BZ2021 F12 A31HIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
liEss TExT FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
I Revenue 5 1,047,330 819,503
HERA Cost of sales 6 (853,068) (662,611)
EF Gross profit 194,262 156,892
H b iFEEE Other losses, net 7 (14,743) (9,829)
Hg A Other income 7 1,740 4,800
HERDHERY Selling and distribution expenses 6 (52,414) (48,241)
THAX Administrative expenses 6 (93,481) (87,474)
S REERERIE Impairment losses on financial assets 6 (386) (1,456)
| fegmAl Operating profit 34,978 14,692
B WA Finance income 9 41 783
BhE Ak A Finance costs 9 (7,571) (11,980)
é%ﬂéﬁ&$ Finance costs, net 9 (7,530) (11,197)
BRFr SR AR Profit before income tax 27,448 3,495
FrER B Income tax expense 10 (7,328) (2,044)
AAREREEAEWN Profit for the year attributable
_ FrEF to equity holders of the Company 20,120 1,451
Hitt2EWE : Other comprehensive income:
Eig B 7 EE Item that may be subsequently reclassified
BB A to profit or loss
B HEZER Currency translation differences 4,919 3,749
BRETEEN 7 HE Item that will not be subsequently
EzsaE H reclassified to profit or loss
RERRTE 2T EIR Actuarial gain on long service payment
BE W scheme _ 5
FREMZEKE Total other comprehensive income
zE for the year 4,919 3,754
AT Total comprehensive income for the year
EanisE AEML attributable to equity holders of the
FREEBBEEE Company 25,039 5,205
RATERSE ARG Earnings per share attributable
BREF to equity holders of the Company
BEARR#EE GBI Basic and diluted (HK cents) 11 1.01 0.07

e sElERER
g o

BFERERERAR
20214

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BEMEIMIEE—OFBI  The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
#2021 %12 A31 B

As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
k=g THET FHET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current assets
Y - BB MR Properties, plant and equipment 12 90,433 92,740
EREE Intangible assets 13 935 2,460
e RTENFRIA Deposits and prepayments 15 2,905 8,249
ELFIE A E Deferred tax assets 20 4,121 5,068
98,394 108,517
REBEE Current assets
78 Inventories 16 288,728 135,954
B S rWEE Trade receivables 18 275,183 255,800
TANFIE - ek Prepayments, deposits and
H fth e GRIE other receivables 15 27,632 10,919
ReRREEEBY Cash and cash equivalents 17 207,272 234,376
798,815 637,049
HMEE Total assets 897,209 745,566
i EQUITY
RRBEHEFEA Equity attributable to equity holders
FEih s of the Company
A&7 Share capital 26 20,000 20,000
HE Reserves 132,744 117,705
HmEn Total equity 152,744 137,705
110 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
72021 F12 A31 H

As at 31 December 2021

2021 2020
b FET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
=R+ LIABILITIES
FREBEE Non-current liabilities
KRR T2 Long service payment scheme 25 25
B # BY Deferred government grants 23 132 170
FELEFRTBEE Deferred tax liabilities 20 2,170 1,164
HEAaE Lease liabilities 19 15,741 24,489
18,068 25,848
REBEE Current liabilities
Z G ENFIA Trade payables 21 233,494 180,228
EH8E  EMEMFIER Contract liabilities, other payables
IEETER and accruals 23 200,896 102,495
IR BT ED Deferred government grants 23 1,171 1,033
HEAE Lease liabilities 19 17,158 14,296
BT ZEiE Bills payables 22 15,680 20,328
RITEN Bank borrowings 25 249,900 261,456
FE{ B R R A 5RIE Amount due to a related company 30 636 126
BNEAFF1S fﬁﬁﬁ Current income tax liabilities 7,462 2,051
726,397 582,013
=R Total liabilities 744,465 607,861
REREEARE Total equity and liabilities 897,209 745,566

Pt A SN R BB AT s —Hf%]  The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in

iE o conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FE109Z=196 B FTHELAVER /\Hﬁ‘ﬁt&i’%ﬁ &EHEE  The consolidated financial statements on pages 109 to 196 were

R2022F3 A30BH#LERKESEE approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and were signed
on its behalf:
KEE 2+ 1g Chu Wai Hang Raymond Lau Shui Fung
= EE Director Director
BFBRERAR AR
202143 B 111



Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
EZE2021 F12 A31 BIEFE
For the year ended 31 December 2021

ARARBREAARL
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
kxRt AERE  ABRE  ENRR  BRkE aRs
Share Share  Statutory Other ~ Exchange Retained Total
capital  Premium reserve reserve reserve earnings equity
Tn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn Thn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

GED)

(Note b)
1202151 A1 B &R Balance at 1 January 2021 20,000 80,355 6,288 67 (5,159) 36,154 137,705
2EKE Comprehensive income
ERRF Profit for the year - - - - - 20,120 20,120
Hft2E b Other comprehensive income
ERIEFAEZERNES  ltem that may be subsequently

reclassified to profit or loss
BlAEEE Currency translation differences - - - - 4,919 - 4,919
2ANRESE Total comprehensive income = S = = 4,919 20,120 25,039
RERBEAETHRS Transactions with equity holders
&R (M) Appropriation (Note a) - - 1437 - - (1437) =
GRS Dividend (Note 24) - - - - - (10000 (10,000
EEREEAETHRZAE  Total transactions with equity holders - - 1437 - - (11,437)  (10,000)
B2021£12831 B &8 Balance at 31 December 2021 20,000 80,355 7,725 67 (240) 44,837 152,744
WD WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BZ=2021 12 A31 BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

LYNSIL: S22 PN
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
BA RiaE AERHE HtEE EBEREE #HehE  2Es
Share Share  Statutory Other  Exchange  Retained Total
capital  Premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings equity
Ter FTErT TAr TEr  TEr  TET  TER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

(Fffzth)
(Note b)

74202051818 #9458 Balance at 1 January 2020 10 - 6,205 62 (8908) 54,786 52,155
2EWE Comprehensive income
FRRF Profit for the year = = = = = 1,451 1,451
Hit2ERE Other comprehensive income
AR BH A EE Item that may be subsequently

BB H reclassified to profit or loss
ERBEEE Currency translation differences = = - - 3,749 _ 3,749
AETEEFAHEZ  ltem that will not be subsequently

BB H reclassified to profit or loss
RERB 2SI Actuarial gain on long service

BEWER payment scheme - - - 5 _ _ 5
2ERGEAE Total comprehensive income = = = 5 3,749 1,451 5,205
BEERIE AETHR S Transactions with equity holders
BA(LET(MiFF26(a) Capitalisation issue (Note 26(a)) 14,990  (14,990) = = - - -
R LR E TR Issuance of shares upon listing

(FizE26(b)) (Note 26(b)) 5,000 120,000 = = = - 125,000
BIDBITRA Share issuance costs - (24,655 = = = - (24,655
B (M) Appropriation (Note a) - - 83 - - (83) _
AR S (BitEE24) Dividend (Note 24) - - - - - (20,0000  (20,000)
HESHEEA Total transactions with

ETHR 248 equity holders 19,990 80,355 83 = - (20,083) 80,345
7420206128318 Balanceat

ka3 31 December 2020 20,000 80,355 6,288 67 (5159) 36,154 137,705

EERRZERAR AR
202158 113



mEEREEHR
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
#Z=2021 12 A31 BIEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

MIEE

(a)

hEEARAMBI([HE ) ERERRE - S E
MR R R AR A AR IKET - A
A EX BEEMBRKRAZBOMEHIRE
MO BEFEN R BRR) BROETA
ERBRHREE - TEEAERBORFTERN
MERIZ o HF B A B 0 Ik EL A 4 FE A A5 44088 )
Al - AEBEADRAEREEERF10%0E
BEETRHEE  BREATRKBFEEBRDE
& ANE50%8 » AR AIZ L8 © JETE AR
RBEBERRBEARER  BRARZER
BIMARER - fhHh - RAEAIRIBE = ERE
& E—SERHERREN SR ERMREE o

Hp#EREASERETREEAENRIR
Bt dMRENEE S - £EEEE RN
iR - ARAEEN QRN A GHIRAHEBE
EHMARMNNKE -

e 2 e e B B 5 P B BB P OB RE — O BEE o

11

4

Notes:

(a)

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) laws and regulations require
companies registered in the PRC to provide for certain statutory reserves,
which are to be appropriated from the profit after income tax (after offsetting
accumulated losses from prior years) as reported in their respective statutory
financial statements, before profit distributions to equity holders. All statutory
reserves are created for specific purposes. A PRC company is required to
appropriate an amount of not less than 10% of statutory profits after income
tax to statutory surplus reserves, prior to distribution of its post-tax profits
of the current year. A company may discontinue the contribution when
the aggregate sum of the statutory surplus reserve is more than 50% of its
registered capital. The statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the company, to expand the company’s operations, or to increase
the capital of the company. In addition, a company may make further
contribution to the discretional surplus reserve using its post-tax profits in
accordance with resolutions of the board of directors.

Other reserve represents the accumulated actuarial gains on the Group’s
long service payment scheme for its Hong Kong employees and the excess
of the combined share capital of the companies comprising the Group, after
considering the intra-group elimination, over the consideration given in
relation to the reorganisation.

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HZE2021F12A318IEFE

For the year ended 31 December 2021

2021 2020
k=3 TERT THT
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
RETHELENEESRE  Cash flows from operating activities
KEEENRS Cash generated from operations 27(a) 34,163 58,734
BRIE/(EM)FEH Income tax refunded/(paid), net

R 161 (10,427)
REEFHELRFRE Net cash generated from operating activities 34,324 48,307
REZHELEMNBESHRE  Cash flows from investing activities
EEWMZE - BB K& Purchase of properties, plant and equipment (16,720) (18,277)
HEWE - MENRER  Proceeds from disposal of properties,

FT{S3k3A plant and equipment 27(b) 827 117
BEELEE Purchase of intangible assets (137) (1,134)
EUHE Interest received 41 783
BRI T Change in pledged bank deposits - 10,000
FAIE B R EUWEURFME)  Receipt of government grants for purchase

of equipment 108 -
RE R FRE Net cash used in investing activities (15,881) (8,511)
BEEBHELMNIRSHAE  Cash flows from financing activities
RITE TS RIA Proceeds from bank borrowings 27(c) 873,143 644,672
BERIETER Repayments of bank borrowings 27(c) (884,699) (649,809)
SAHREBABRAELESD  Payment of principal element of lease

liabilities 27(c) (16,828) (13,925)
BEAEE Dividend paid 24 (10,000) (20,000)
BITRMH TS ROE Proceeds from issuance of shares 26(b) - 125,000
ERHE Interest paid 7,571) (12,690)
XA ks Payment of listing expenses = (17,629)
mMEEB(FTA)FE Net cash (used in)/generated from

FEE financing activities (45,955) 55,619
ReRREEEY Net (decrease)/increase in cash

CRD),/#EinRE and cash equivalents (27,512) 95,415
FUREMREEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of the year 234,376 138,623
BEMmEER Currency translation differences 408 338
FRBEEMAREEEYD Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 17 207,272 234,376

TR ERSMEREEBEMNAME—0B  The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
8 e conjunction with the accompanying notes.

BFREERARAR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1 —REBRKREA
1.1 —RER

116

RAT A —RBERESEHSENFE22
BERAE(1961 FEHI =) (&I E
&3] 2019F1 A15BERER ST
Mz ERRRBR AR o A
= R ik A 4th Floor, Harbour Place,
103 South Church Street, P.O. Box
10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands °

ARRBB/—RREER AR R ENE
REl([EBM)FEREETFERD
BUERHE - RREBBRRAKREE
FE(NRBEREE]) RREELLE
(IREREE]) (REERRR]) -
HEBEB AR EMAKILAR—FIE
AT

AATXDE2020F1 B10BRESE
BHAR AR AR ER LT °

BB HAN  REMBEHRERATE
([ FER)) SEMZT -

1 GENERAL INFORMATION AND REORGANISATION

1.1 General information

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
15 January 2019 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961 as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address
of its registered office is 4th Floor, Harbour Place, 103 South
Church Street, P.O. Box 10240, Grand Cayman KY1-1002,
Cayman Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) are principally engaged in the
manufacturing and sales of electronic products. The ultimate
controlling shareholders are Mr. Raymond Chu (“Mr. Raymond
Chu”) and Mr. Chu Wai Cheong Wilson (“Mr. Wilson Chu”)
(collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”) who have been
controlling the group companies since their incorporation.

The shares of the Company have been listed on the Main Board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 10 January
2020.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$’000”), unless otherwise
stated.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 ERESHEHE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES

RESAVBHRRARAOEIESTEER
HNTX - (RRAHBIN  ZFHRRRPT
2IREFEEREN -

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

2.1 fRBE%E

2.1 Basis of preparation

AEBEGEPBHRRIRER LGSR
fAg((BRETEAE])RMEPT
BEREEMHREE([ERME
BEER ) REERAIGIIFE22EH
BREREHRE - FAMBHRRIRRE
LKA LB

RAENETEVHRELENNGEEH
BHAFBEERE TRARS G
NERARNREENEAAEEER
BEREE L A - 3 R SIEE A
HEFEN - HEBREAFTERENB
BRMEBEEN T ERHE4RE

(@ AEERAEETER

AREBEDFH2021F1 A1 BHEBEH
FEREBHEE RN THEE
IR

BAGRTERIFE395 - BEMHRELERE4

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires the directors of the
Company to exercise their judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

(@) Amended standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following amended standards
for the first time for their annual reporting period beginning

1 January 2021:

BN E — [ ER2

5% - BEMBRELAE7HR - FEM RS
RERFISR M B EMIERELRE 1658 2185

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

BAMBHREERFE 165 21E5]
Amendments to HKFRS 16

PR % B AT 22 R 8 7R SR [
B BRREREAERTE - MHBEA
TEHIBWTEE -

BEERERERAR

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
HEERESHBEERS

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions

The adoption of these amended standards did not have any

significant impact on the Group’s accounting policies and
did not require retrospective adjustments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EXRETHEHBEE)

2.1 IRREE ()
(b) B SR 1i5 18 5 48 5 5 B ER 40 B9 37 4T
RAGETER - REREHHED

THIFR] RACIERTER] - 2B K
SRR R A EER2021F1 A1
BRGZREEE BARE E R
HR B W EEAREE R PR

EBH RS ER B 63 2 152

Amendments to HKFRS 16

SETHESIFH53 (KERD)

Accounting Guideline 5
(revised)

BB SEIERIE 165 2185
Amendments to HKAS 16

BBSFERIE3 75 2185
Amendments to HKAS 37

BB B HmEERE3INR 2
(EE
Amendments to HKFRS 3

118

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretation and
accounting guideline issued but not yet adopted by the
Group

The following new and amended standards, interpretation
and accounting guideline have been issued but are not
effective for the Group’s financial periods beginning 1
January 2021 and have not been early adopted by the

Group:
RET B
AL
ZERHEEX
Effective for
accounting
period beginning
on or after
20216 A30 AR 2 A EMNRS 20214 A1H
HEAEE RS
Covid-19-related Rent Concessions 1 April 2021
Beyond 30th June 2021
USRI ERTE3| B5FHRARIZEHIT 20221 A1H
AP A HrEstEE
Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger 1 January 2022

Accounting for Common Control
Combinations

W - BB KR - (FRE REAT 2 PSR 202251 H1H
Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds 1 January 2022
Before Intended Use

BIEAHN—BITEHZAA 20221 A1H

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a 1 January 2022
Contract

BoER 222 20221 A1H

Reference to the Conceptual Framework 1 January 2022

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 EXRSHEHEE)

2.1 IBEE ()

(b) © BB REREEERA B HET

REBTER - REREHES
(&)

FEUERE
Annual Improvements Project

BB SEERIE 15 2185
Amendments to HKAS 1

EE G ERE IR REENEME

HRIEH A2 2 1E5T
Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BAEGETERIFESI 2 1EF]
Amendments to HKAS 8

BBSFERIE 125 2 185]
Amendments to HKAS 12

BEERERERAR

20214 3R

POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

(b) New and amended standards, interpretation and

accounting guideline issued but not yet adopted by the

Group (continued)

BBMSIMEER20185 —20205FBH
ZEE
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020

BESEAREIIETE
Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current

SERTBRAEE

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

SHEENES

Definition of Accounting Estimates

B-RHFELREERAEMBRERLETIE
Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities
Arising from a Single Transaction

FALLT B
H 2 &R

ZERHEEX

Effective for
accounting
period beginning
on or after
20221 H1H
1 January 2022
20231418
1 January 2023
20231 H1H
1 January 2023
20231 H1H

1 January 2023

20231418
1 January 2023
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HKAS 28

AREBE KR L a] REETER] -
BERGHEEIEME T IARMA - &
BEEETIZ NG - ERERAZ
FHA MEERTER - REBREE
SR & HIAE B B 5 IR0R S
EEBNEMEATE -

120

2 EXEBERBIE(R) 2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
2.1 RBEE(E) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) EREMERZRNEBEHANHFHFT (b) New and amended standards, interpretation and
RBIETER - RBREFHES accounting guideline issued but not yet adopted by the
(#&) Group (continued)

RUTBEH
N2 &A%
ZEHBEEXR
Effective for
accounting
period beginning
on or after
BRMBHREENFE 7R RBBMBHR RRAH 202351 A1H
ELERNFE1 72 AEFT
HKFRS 17 and Amendments to Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
HKFRS 17
BEBREE55%(2020%) MBHRER 22V - ERAHBEBRERFERER 20231 H1H
Xz BHERZ D
Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements — 1 January 2023
Classification by the Borrower of a Term
Loan that Contains a Repayments on
Demand Clause
BRUBRELENF 10X LBESE REEFEHABENRAHSELEY FrEE
RIIZE285% 2 1E7T FNEELEITE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 and Sale or Contribution of Assets Between an To be determined

Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture

The Group will adopt the above new and amended
standards, interpretation and accounting guideline as and
when they become effective. Management has performed
preliminary assessment and does not anticipate any
significant impact on the Group’s financial position and
results of operations upon adopting these new and amended
standards, interpretation and accounting guideline.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BEAETBRMEE)

2.2 B A )

221 HRERE

MEAREASEHEARE
HEZHAER(BRERLEE
8 EAREEZ2EHZERMA
ERAIE DR ARIERAE
WetEs  WHENBRBEHZ
ERCENZENFORE - K
SEPAERIZERS - IWBRRFTY
REHEBEEEAKEE RES
PEARR - WHMEHIERIEE A
THatARK -

B EMRNERIN  AEH
RAKRBEBEBHAMA
fR- WEMBARMEENR
BRASEMEENEE
PREAMEENMATRITIRE
MR E- - FERNRER
RRSIARELHEENE
MEEXBENRAFE &
EBEHBETKRBHA
BRI EEANMAENRE
REABE  ORKEER
BERFEENIAE - K
SEAZFHEKEAER R
DB IR FF 1R B 25 7 1
WD Al Rl % B EC TR
& B A B A5 L O HE R 0 R UL
FB 7 (AR IR A s o

WEERRAR AR ELRI B
B

%A Gt DERTK - IR
F& 7 75 i AT R MR O O B
REEERKBEANAF
BEHMTE  BEEENE
BN B R o

BEERERERAR

20214 3R

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries

2.2.1 Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has
control. The Group controls an entity when the Group

is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a)

Business combination

Except for the reorganisation upon listing, the Group
applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair values of the
assets transferred, the liabilities incurred and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or
liability resulting from a contingent consideration
arrangement. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree on an acquisition-
by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
recognised amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.
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2 EXRSTHEHE(E)

2.2 B AT (&)

122

221 A&

(a)

fRE ()
EBavr(E)

AEBMBENEAIAR
BERUEBEEBENATEE
ReWER/—BREELER
MRARBRTENREE
B RREBMBHREER
FORMNIBRER - DER
RENHIARESTEHN
B MERKRGBEITRERA
B o

PrEEAE - REBEINE
I SEiE s & B R ER %
A B U 77 O B AR M s
WEEENRAFEBBAK
BHHEMNFEEAFENE
B ERBELK - HWATE
ERE - DHEAERER
RERTENERAENA
BERMKBEHERRFE
ENAHE(RZRERERE
AT RIEReEERE

Nz 25
IERR ©

SERNRAMRS  BHE
R B 2 ) 5 7 2 A
ARBRIREA T - KB
RSENT HE o KB
VB EE D R BN
8 . DAREIR A BB A
R o

% 4 S 48 0 B O O 2 )
PR R D)

A 5 BUPE 5k 42 i) 4 #O B2 3F
ERERNRHRERZ S
ARCMERIAEREAS DA
MERRHEEANRS) - £
ENREAFEENEA
AIFEERAENEWESR
BRMEE D 2B EZBNE
BARR o BRI RS
H W a5 S 5 18 TR X M 2 A
BE o

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

Business combination (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability
are recognised in accordance with HKFRS 9 in profit
or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified as
equity is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement
is accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amounts of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree
and the acquisition-date fair value of any previous
equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net assets
of the subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain
purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
profit or loss.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without
change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying amounts
of net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity.
Gains or losses on disposal to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)
2.2.1 Consolidation (continued)
(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amounts recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amounts for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company at cost less impairment. Cost includes direct
attributable costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

2.3 Segment reporting

Operating segment is reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker (“CODM”). The CODM, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segment,
has been identified as the Chief Executive Officer (the “CEQ”)
who makes strategic decisions.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

24.1 Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

2.4.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transaction. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, within finance costs. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on a net
basis within “other losses, net”.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised in profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or
loss and translation differences on non-monetary assets such
as equities held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are recognised in other comprehensive income.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (continued)

24.3 Group companies

The results and financial positions of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

e assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the date of that consolidated statement of financial
positions;

e income and expenses for each income statement and
statement of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this average is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of
the rates prevailing on the transaction dates, in which
case income and expenses are translated at the rate on
the dates of the transactions); and

e all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange differences
are reclassified to profit or loss, as part of the gain or loss on
sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing
rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.5 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure
that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets’ carrying amounts
or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the
asset will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to profit or loss during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of properties, plant and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate their costs, net of their
residual value, over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3 to 5 years
Plant and machineries 3 to 10 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

Right-of-use assets Over the lease term

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of lease term

and useful life of 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount.

Gain or loss on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount and are recognised in profit or loss.

2.6 Intangible assets

System software

Acquired system software licences are capitalised on the basis
of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use the specific
software. These costs are amortised using straight-line method
over the shorter of licence period and their estimated useful
lives of three years.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.7 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount
by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair
value less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at the end of each reporting period.

2.8 Financial assets

2.8.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets as assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets changes.

2.8.2 Recognition and measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.
Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered

in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)
2.8.2 Recognition and measurement (continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and the
cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Group classifies
its debt instruments to be measured at amortised costs.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments
of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method.

2.8.3 Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive
cash flows from the investments have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and reward of ownership.

2.9 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amounts
reported in the consolidated statement of financial position
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost are
subject to HKFRS 9’s expected credit loss model. The Group
assesses on a forward-looking basis the expected credit
losses associated with its assets carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables from third parties and related parties, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9,
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the trade receivables from third parties
and related parties. The Group has assessed the expected credit
loss by considering historical default rates, existing market
conditions and forward-looking information.

For other receivables, the Group measures the impairment
as either twelve months expected credit losses or life-time
expected credit losses, depending on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If
a significant increase in credit risk of the other receivables has
occurred since initial recognition, then impairment is measured
as lifetime expected credit losses.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business.
If collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less
(or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer), they
are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value

and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less allowance for impairment.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted-average method.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises raw
material, direct labour, other direct costs and related production
overheads (based on normal operating capacity). It excludes
borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale.

2.13Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
cash on hand.

2.14Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.15Trade, bills and other payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Trade and bills payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in
the normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.16 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried
at amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of
transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in
interest expense over the period of the borrowings using the
effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

2.17 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

2.18 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle
the obligation; and the amounts can be reliably estimated.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be
small.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Provisions (continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

2.19 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax
payable on the current period’s taxable income based on the
applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to
temporary differences and to unused tax losses.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of the reporting period in the countries where the
Company’s subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b) Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred
income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(c)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable that
future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amounts and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to
offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,

except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other

comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax

is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.

2.20Employee benefits

(@)

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary
benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within twelve
months after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect of
employees’ services up to the end of the reporting period
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as
current employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The obligations are presented as current liabilities in the
consolidated statement of financial position if the entity
does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months after the reporting period, regardless
of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

Defined contribution plans

The Group pays contributions to state-managed pension
insurance plans on a mandatory, contractual or voluntary
basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are
recognised as employee benefit expense when they are
due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to
the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future
payments is available.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on a formula that takes into consideration the profit
attributable to the Company’s shareholders after certain
adjustments. The Group recognises a provision where
contractually obliged or where there is a past practice that
has created a constructive obligation.

Long service payments

The Group’s net post-employment benefit obligation
in respect of long service payments to its employees
in Hong Kong upon cessation of their employment in
certain circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefits that the
employees have earned in return for their services in the
current and prior periods.
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POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

(e) Long service payments (continued)

®

The obligation is calculated using the projected unit credit
cost method, discounted to its present value and reduced
by entitlements accrued under the Group’s retirement
schemes that are attributed to contributions made by the
Group. The discount rate is the yield at each balance sheet
date of Hong Kong Government’s Exchange Fund Notes
which have terms to maturity approximating the terms of
the related liability. The expected costs of these benefits
are accrued over the period of employment using the same
accounting methodology as used for defined benefit plans.

The current service cost of the long service payment
scheme, recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income reflects the increase in the long
service payment’s obligation as a result of employee service
in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements. Past-service costs are recognised immediately
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income.
The interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate
to the balance of the long service payment’s obligation.
Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience
adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions are
charged or credited to equity in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to
either: terminating the employment of current employees
according to a detailed formal plan without possibility of
withdrawal; or providing termination benefits as a result of
an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy. Benefits
falling due more than 12 months after the end of the
reporting period are discounted to present value.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable, and represents amounts for the sale of
goods in the ordinary course of the Group’s activity. Revenue
is shown net of returns and after eliminating sales within the
Group.

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the
period between the transfer of the promised goods to the
customers and the payment by the customers exceeds one
year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the
transaction prices for the time value of money.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the consolidated statement of financial
position as a contract asset or a contract liability, depending
on the relationship between the Group’s performance and
the customer’s payment. A contract asset is the Group’s right
to consideration in exchange for goods that the Group has
transferred to a customer. Incremental costs incurred to obtain
a contract, if recoverable, are capitalised and presented as
assets and subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right to
an amount of consideration that is unconditional, before the
Group transfers the promised goods to the customer, the Group
presents the contract as a contract liability when the payment
is received or a receivable is recorded (whichever is earlier).
A contract liability is the Group’s obligation to transfer the
promised goods to a customer for which the Group has received
consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) from the
customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an unconditional
right to consideration. A right to consideration is unconditional
if only the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

Revenue is recognised when specific criteria have been met for
the Group’s activity as described below:

Sales of goods

Sales of goods transferred at a point in time are recognised when
control of the goods has transferred, being when the Group has
delivered the products to the customers and the customers have
accepted the products, the customers have full discretion over
the products, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products.
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Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using
the effective interest method.

2.23 Leases

The Group leases various properties and plant and machinery.
Rental contracts are typically made for fixed periods of
three months to five years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain various terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased assets
may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (included in
properties, plant and equipment) and the corresponding
liabilities at the date of which the respective leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is
charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to produce
a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured
on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present

value of the following lease payments:

e fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments),
less any lease incentives receivable;

e variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate;

e amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees;

e the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee is
reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

e payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease
term reflects the lessee exercising that option.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate

implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.23 Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at costs comprising the
following:

e the amount of the initial measurement of lease liabilities;

e any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received;

e any initial direct costs; and
e restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of
the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis.
If the Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option,
the right-of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s
useful life. The useful life used for the assets’ depreciation
purpose is:
Properties Over the lease term

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense
in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases for properties, plant
and machinery with a lease term of less than 12 months. Low-
value assets comprise machinery with value below HK$5,000.

2.24 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the years in which the dividend is approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.
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2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.25 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the higher
of:

e the amount determined in accordance with the expected
credit loss model under HKFRS 9; and

e the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance
with the principles of HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on
the present value of the difference in cash flows between the
contractual payments required under the debt instrument and
the payments that would be required without the guarantee, or
the estimated amount that would be payable to a third party for
assuming the obligations.

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to expenses are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the
expenses that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to the purchase of properties, plant
and equipment are included in non-current liabilities as deferred
income and are credited to profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Government grants that become receivable as compensation for
expenses or losses already incurred or for the purpose of giving
immediate financial support to the Group with no future related
costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
become receivable.
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POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.27 Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It can
also be a present obligation arising from past events that is not
recognised because it is not probable that outflow of economic
resources will be required or the amounts of obligation cannot
be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be
recognised as a provision.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and
seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

3.1 Market risk

3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC and is
exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to the USD and
RMB. Foreign exchange risk arises from future commercial
transactions, recognised assets and liabilities and net
investments in foreign operations, which are denominated
in these currencies.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the
Group has not entered into any derivative instruments to
hedge its foreign exchange exposures.
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3.1 Market risk (continued)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1.1 Foreign exchange risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if USD had
strengthened/weakened by 0.5% against HK$, with all
other variables held constant, profit before income tax for
each year would have changed mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of USD denominated
cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and trade and
other payables.
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3.1.2 Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk is mainly attributable to its
cash at banks and bank borrowings with floating interest
rates. Details of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents and
bank borrowings have been disclosed in Notes 17 and 25
to the consolidated financial statements respectively.

Other than cash at banks and bank borrowings, the Group
does not have significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, if interest rates on
cash at banks and bank borrowings had been 50 basis
points higher/lower with all variables held constant, profit
before income tax for the years ended would have been
approximately HK$213,000 (2020: HK$135,000) lower/
higher, mainly as a result of higher/lower interest expenses
on the bank borrowings netted with interest income on the
cash at banks.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group mainly arises from cash at banks
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and trade and other receivables. The carrying amounts of each
financial asset represent the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Risk management

The Group has policies in place to ensure that credit terms are
made to customers with an appropriate credit history and the
Group performs periodic credit evaluations of its customers.

The Group’s cash at banks were deposited with high quality
financial institutions. Therefore, the Group does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these counterparties.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, 53% (2020: 63%) of
the Group’s revenue was derived from its top five customers.
As at 31 December 2021, 61% (2020: 68%) of the total trade
receivables were due from the Group’s top five customers.

The credit risk on cash at banks are limited because deposits are
in banks with sound credit ratings.

(@) Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss models:

e trade receivables from third parties

e other financial assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measure expected credit losses which use a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade receivables
have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics and the days past due. Future cash flows
for each group of receivables are estimated on the basis
of historical default rates, adjusted to reflect the effects
of existing market conditions as well as forward looking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability
of the customers to settle the receivable.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
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Risk management (continued)

@ =REEREGE) (@) Impairment of financial assets (continued)
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Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

Trade receivables with known insolvencies are assessed
individually for impairment allowances and are written
off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators of insolvencies include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the
Group and a failure to make contractual payments. As at
31 December 2021, certain customers who did not share
the same credit risk characteristics as the rest of the debtors
were in delinquency of payments and their respective
trade receivable balances amounting to approximately
HK$1,555,000 (2020: HK$1,304,000) were therefore fully
impaired.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis

Remaining trade receivables without known insolvencies
are collectively assessed for likelihood of recovery, taking
into account the nature of the customer and its ageing
category, and applying the expected credit loss rates to the
respective gross carrying amounts of the receivables.

The expected credit loss rates are estimated on the basis
of historical credit losses experienced, adjusted to reflect
the effects of existing market conditions as well as forward
looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivable.

As at 31 December 2021, the balance of loss allowance
in respect of these collectively assessed receivables was
approximately HK$287,000 (2020: HK$152,000) based on
expected credit loss rates applied on different groupings.

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.2 Credit risk (continued)
Risk management (continued)

(@) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

The Group’s other financial assets carried at amortised cost
include other receivables in the consolidated statement of
financial position. The impairment loss of other financial
assets carried at amortised cost is measured based on the
twelve months expected credit loss. The twelve months
expected credit loss is the portion of lifetime expected
credit loss that results from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within twelve months after the
reporting date. However, when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the allowance will
be based on the lifetime expected credit loss.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, management
considered the credit risk of other receivables to be low
as counterparties have a strong capacity to meet their
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term. The
Group has assessed that the expected credit losses for
the other receivables were immaterial under 12 months
expected losses method. Therefore, the loss allowance
provision for these balances was close to zero and no
provision was recognised.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in the shorter
and longer term.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of approximately HK$207,272,000 (2020:
HK$234,376,000), that are expected to be readily available to
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The Group maintains liquidity by a number of sources including
orderly realisation of short-term financial assets, receivables
and certain assets that the Group considers appropriate.
Long term financing including long-term borrowings are also
considered by the Group in its capital structuring. The Group
aims to maintain flexibility in funding by keeping sufficient bank
balances, committed credit lines available and interest bearing
borrowings which enable the Group to continue its business for
the foreseeable future.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total undrawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$260,920,000 (2020:
HK$165,716,000) and the Group’s total drawn banking
facilities amounted to approximately HK$265,580,000 (2020:
HK$281,784,000).

The table below analyses the non-derivative financial liabilities
of the Group into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date.

The amounts disclosed in the table were the contractual
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the Group can
be required to pay. Balances within twelve months equal their
carrying balances as impact from discounting is not significant.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

ARME - HRESREREEGK Specifically, for bank borrowings which contain a repayment
(SRITA] 2REBRIBEITE)NRITRER on demand clause which can be exercised at the banks’ sole
ZOM IR EAEBBEER N KRR discretion, the analysis shows the cash outflow based on the
S HARR (ANfM B TR ATT 0 E (R R earliest period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is
EWERI B AER)FIRES R if the lender were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the

loans with immediate effect.

BRERHE PIME 1555 EH)
Repayable Less than Between

on demand Tyear  1and5 years Total
TR THET THET THET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000

R2021512A318 At 31 December 2021
BHERTE Trade payables = 233,494 = 233,494
HivEREREE R Other payables and accruals = 126,761 = 126,761
HEEE Lease liabilities = 18,670 16,197 34,867
AN Bills payables = 15,680 = 15,680
HFITER Bank borrowings 250,997 = = 250,997
(S BB X B Z0A Amount due to a related company - 636 - 636
250,997 395,241 16,197 662,435

120205124318 At 31 December 2020
BHENFE Trade payables = 180,228 = 180,228
HivERERETER Other payables and accruals = 68,096 = 68,096
HEaE Lease liabilities - 16,536 26,125 42,661
EREE Bills payables - 20,328 - 20,328
RITER Bank borrowings 263,157 = = 263,157
JE{ BB 1 B 0R Amount due to a related company - 126 _ 126
263,157 285,314 26,125 574,596

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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3 BEREE(E) 3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

33RBESRER(E)

3.3 Liquidity risk (continued)

TRIIRAEBRITEFIRR A
HER  REABREHRES OB
BERIREIREITTOMN - XL EETA
BRERERFRNTE -

The table below analyses the bank borrowings of the Group into
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period at
the end of the reporting period to the contractual maturity date
without taking into consideration the effect of repayment on
demand clause.

1EHR 1226 2855 ast
Within Between Between
Tyear 1and2years 2and>5 years Total
TET THET THT TET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2021%12A318 At 31 December 2021
RITER Bank borrowings 240,195 6,243 4,559 250,997
R20205128318 At 31 December 2020
RITER Bank borrowings 245,926 6,430 10,801 263,157
34EARERE 3.4 Capital management

AEEEREANERRERERNEE
FEKEMRE N - ARREEKE
¥} FRFREEMTSARENT
@ YHERRENERERIAURESR

RERIABRERERE  ~EEXE
FEABRRIK NS SR - MR
REEARSHHEEEAREET

EFBRERERAR
20214 3R

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order
to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group

may adjust the amounts of dividend paid to shareholders, return
capital to shareholders or sell assets to reduce debt.
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3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.4 Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the total debt to
total capital ratio. Total debt represents bank borrowings. Total
capital represents total equity, as shown in the consolidated
statement of financial position. The total debt to total capital

BRI - ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:
2021 2020
FHET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
B Total borrowings 249,900 261,456
AR Total equity 152,744 137,705
BEEHRERLE Total debt to total capital ratio 1.6% 1.915
1.6 times 1.9 times

BEEHBEARLER2020F12 H31
BE1.9F /P> Z=2021912 A31 B H
1.6(5  TERRNERRTERFEK
B R A AT IE INFTER »

3.5 A EMREE

M2021F 2020512 A31H » A&EE
RER A B SR R R I B ] LA A B
rENECREESSREE -

AEERBEMEELRBERAE
MEREERERE AR EmEE A
FERE - FRDEREERIRY
TRAEBNREERERRARSTE
AHEEEAFERS
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The decrease in total debt to total capital ratio from 1.9 times as
at 31 December 2020 to 1.6 times as at 31 December 2021 was
mainly due to the net repayment of bank borrowings and an
increase in total equity as a result of profit for the year.

3.5 Fair value estimation

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group did not have
any financial assets or financial liabilities in the consolidated
statement of financial position which were measured at fair
value.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s current financial assets and
current financial liabilities, approximated their fair values due
to their short maturities. The carrying amounts of non-current
financial assets and non-current financial liabilities approximate
their fair values which are estimated based on the discounted
cash flows.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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20214

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

ASSUMPTIONS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future.
The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal
the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
addressed below.

4.1 Net realisable value of inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated cost to
completion and selling expenses. These estimates are based
on the current market condition and the historical experience
of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature.
Management reassesses the estimation at the end of each
reporting period.

4.2 Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes mainly in Hong Kong
and the PRC. Significant judgement is required in determining
provision for income taxes. There are transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the amounts
that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred income tax provisions in the periods in
which such determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as management
considers it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences or tax losses
can be utilised. Where the expectation is different from the
original estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred income tax assets and tax expense in the periods in
which such estimate is changed.
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ASSUMPTIONS (continued)
4.3 Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based
on assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group's historical default rates, existing market conditions as
well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. The identification of impairment of receivables requires
the use of judgment and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will impact
the carrying value of receivables and loss for the impairment of
receivables recognised in the periods in which such estimates
have been changed.

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company is an investment holding company and the Group
is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CODM has been identified as the CEO of the Company. The
CEO reviews the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess
performance and allocate resources. The CEO has determined the
operating segment based on these reports.

The CEO considers the Group’s operation from a business
perspective and determines that the Group has one reportable
operating segment being the manufacturing and sales of electronic
products.

The CEO assesses the performance of the operating segment based
on a measure of revenue and gross profit.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, all of the
Group’s revenues were from contracts with customers and were
recognised at a point in time. Please refer to Note 2.21 for details of
accounting policies on revenue recognition.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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5. Wk oHER (&) 5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

@ RBEFERF (HERNERMESE (@) Revenue from major customers who have
EAKEE10%R L L) e individually contributed to 10% or more of the
total revenue of the Group

2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
ZFA Customer A 132,367 154,134
=FB Customer B N/A* 38 i * 138,572
BFC Customer C 125,387 N/A* A3 FA *
=FED Customer D N/A* A~ 38 F* 87,601
ZPE Customer E 120,556  N/A* TEFA*
* MHEEFPRARFEYEERAEEE *  The corresponding customers did not contribute over 10% of the
Wz #83B10% © total revenue of the Group for the denoted years.
(b) #REF i IB U E & 5 12 FBUR (b) Segment revenue by customers’ geographical
m location
REERMBME (ERRINUEE The Group’s revenue by geographical location, which is
E)E DS determined by the delivery location, is as follows:
2021 2020
FExT FA&T
HK$’000 HK$’000
== United States 430,948 439,680
JEEE Philippines 168,837 59,412
EEHE Ireland 129,224 71,517
[ United Kingdom 100,368 96,706
Wt Switzerland 35,458 15,240
i The PRC 36,383 33,292
EWfEar Estonia 24,480 21,057
=k Germany 24,154 16,496
fRri Netherlands 23,500 14,333
BB Hong Kong 6,980 20,812
HAt (B5E) Others (Note) 66,998 30,958
1,047,330 819,503
PEE Note:
Hiv =2 RE0OERAME R - BAFH - Others mainly include (i) European countries such as Czech Republic,
WE -~ mE s T EHEERMBER  Ri)R France, Italy, Norway, Sweden and Turkey; and (i) Australia, Canada,
M mEX - BE - BE - HREEE - 27 India, Korea, Malaysia, Mexico, New Zealand, Singapore, Taiwan,
I ETEEE - I - A REAEE - Thailand and Vietnam.
BFBRERAR AR
200155 : 151
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5. sk o EHER (&)

() ENEEFE

(continued)

(c) Details of contract liabilities

5 REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

2021 2020

FET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

BH#IEE23@Q) Contract liabilities (Note 23(a)) 61,161 22,257
B 5E: Notes:

() AREEERITEPOEGNEREET
EPERIEEPWEAERK -

(i) REITBHOED

R20214F %20205E12 A31 8 » A&EE M
KRBT BPEAEKH R E RBH
BAR—FNALH - At RIEFHH
BREEAF1SENERERER 25t
BE PEEZXSABTRAETNR
SBIEI RITE -

(d) ZHWEBNEBEEIPWIERBEE

2021 2020612 A31H - A"EE
IEREBEEARBCELEFHIBEERIN)

(i) Contract liabilities represent advanced payments received for
orders from the customers for goods of which the controls have not

yet been transferred to the customers.

(ii) Unsatisfied performance obligation

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, all performance obligations
not yet satisfied by the Group were from contracts with original
expected duration of less than one year. Therefore, as permitted by
the relevant practical expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction
price allocated to these unsatisfied performance obligations was

not disclosed.

(d) Non-current assets by geographical location

The total amounts of non-current assets, other than deferred tax
assets, of the Group as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were

IR A TR located in the following regions:
2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BB Hong Kong 15,494 11,219
F The PRC 78,779 92,230
94,273 103,449

o2
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6 EMHEBTHAX 6 EXPENSES BY NATURE
STAHERA - HE R A A RITH Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and distribution expenses,
R kemEERERIBNROITNAT administrative expenses and impairment losses on financial assets

are analysed as follows:

2021 2020
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT EM Raw materials used 693,649 529,363
BERFIKAERANEIR Employee benefit costs and manpower
AR (FisEs) service expenses (Note 8) 191,382 160,770
E(FEE12) Depreciation (Note 12) 34,016 33,066
BEEH (BE5E13) Amortisation (Note 13) 1,662 2,112
BRAMENREREED Rental expenses of short-term leases in
MHeFMZ (HFE19(c) respect of properties (Note 19(c)) 1,262 912
B KRAARMERX Electricity, water and utility expenses 7,270 5,764
HEMEMX Sales commission expenses 14,083 17,766
FEM Consumables 8,229 7,013
BERTEAE Freight and custom declarations 13,964 8,362
BIERIRE Repair and maintenance 1,936 1,631
PBEEHA Subcontracting fee 8,200 8,928
H g Other taxes 2,997 4,181
HENEAE Professional and consultancy fees 5,380 4,238
WAERZ Office expenses 1,377 1,295
& Auditor’s remuneration
—FET AR — Audit services 2,016 1,945
RITFEE Bank charges 1,661 1,244
IRB Insurance 1,923 1,521
B= Telecommunications 886 1,219
FERERRLFSE(ME16)  Net reversal of impairment of
inventories (Note 16) (88) -
B ZEWGRIB R B Provision for impairment of trade
(Mf7%18) receivables (Note 18) 386 1,456
Hitp Others 7,158 6,996
HEMRA - SHERDHEAY © Total cost of sales, selling and distribution
THESI AR EMEE expenses, administrative expenses and
BB BB AR impairment losses on financial assets 999,349 799,782
f}itﬁiz&ﬁﬂxﬁ FRAR] 1 5 3
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7 HFEEREMEA 7 OTHER LOSSES, NET AND OTHER INCOME
(@) HitFEsE (a) Other losses, net
2021 2020
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
HEME - BER Loss on disposal of properties, plant and
FAEHEE equipment (2,325) (731)
b 5 E5iE Exchange losses (12,418) (9,100)
ME B Gain on lease modification - 2
(14,743) (9,829)
(b) Hfbg A (b) Other income
2021 2020
FEx FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT 5 B) Government grants 1,740 4,800

8 EEEBINKRAEAREANERR®E 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS AND MANPOWER

Y BEEEMS SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS
2021 2020
FExT FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
TE& - e RkiEs Wages, salaries and bonus 168,554 140,573
BRSNS — FE HEK Pension costs — defined contribution
FT &I (ffzEa) schemes (Note a) 13,768 11,571
LIEEF Termination benefits 2,151 =
Hith & 27 Other staff welfares 6,909 8,513
HESRNAX Total employee benefit expenses
(BIEESFM) (including directors’ remunerations) 191,382 160,657
ANERIRBF X (FEtb) Manpower service expenses (Note b) = 113
191,382 160,770
154 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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8 EEEBARARADEREKRHE 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS AND MANPOWER
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SEFIMEEFII AT A1,5008 05 LR °

TR 2 U SR AT A TOR A SR FE A RO 3K

#

1ZIRAP BEARRB AR A SORRMARE - ARERTE
BEMME R RARERE S ABFK AR
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BMEERAESRE -

HE2020F12A31HLEFE - ExmANE
BT SREREEM © K2020F2 A %6 A
HARS - M AT A ME - /NI E RERE
MEZTHEKS - RERTHEREEIETN
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(b) ADERRIHMX

HZE2020F12A31HLEFE - AEEEHER
R ESNIBA N ERIRES BT LB T AN ER
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ANEBREREOA LI EENE BT
IEIBEAE -

BFERERERAR
20214

SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:
(@) Pension costs — defined contribution schemes
Hong Kong
Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”), a defined
contribution scheme managed by an independent trustee. Under the
MPF Scheme, the Group and its employees make monthly contributions
to the scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the
employees’ mandatory contributions were subject to a cap of HK$1,500
per month.

No forfeited contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable
in future year.

The PRC

As stipulated under the relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, the
Group’s subsidiary operating in the PRC contributes to state-sponsored
retirement plans for its employees. Depending on the provinces of
the employees’ registered residences and their current region of work,
the subsidiary contributes certain percentages of the basic salaries of
its employees and has no further obligations for the actual payment
of pensions or post retirement benefits beyond the contributions. The
state-sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Human Resources
and Social Security Bureau of Dongguan Municipality has announced
that all micro, small and medium size enterprises in Dongguan were
exempt from 50% of employer contributions to pension, unemployment
and work-related injury insurance schemes from the period between
February and June 2020.

(b) Manpower service expenses

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group entered
into certain manpower service arrangements with several external
manpower service organisations in the PRC. Under these arrangements,
certain of the Group’s manpower requirements were fulfilled by these
organisations at agreed service fees whereas the human resources
provided were directly employed by the relevant service organisations.
The individuals providing services to the Group did not have any
employment relationship with the Group.
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8 EBEBIABERARANDERR®E 8 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS AND MANPOWER
SERVICE EXPENSES, INCLUDING DIRECTORS’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

X BRESHME(A)

BiaE : (%)
(0 EEBEFMAL

HE2021F12A318LLFE  AEBRER
BEHMALBEE=BRESE(2020F : MBE
£)  HIME RBAENE3T1 20T o &
FE2021F12A318IEFE - BABTMBEA
(2020 : ZBA TS T :

Notes: (Continued)

(o)

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
include 3 directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 2
directors) whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
Note 31. The emoluments payable to the remaining 2 individuals for the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: 3 individuals) are as follows:

2021 2020
FExT FHT
HK$’000 HK$'000
TERF® Wages and salaries 3,556 4,355
TEAL Bonus _ _
BIRE A — FEHEGTE Pension costs — defined contribution schemes 29 54
3,585 4,409
Be@EmT : The emoluments fell within the following bands:
AE
Number of individuals
2021 2020
e EE Emolument bands
1,000,001 52 1,500,00078 7T HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 - 2
1,500,001/875%2,000,000/%8 7T HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 2 1
2 3

HE2021FE%2020F12 A31 B IEFEE - A&
EERT A EER AR THHALTIMAE
AT BN <2 1 5 00 BE =X 72 i BE 7K 42 [ B 1 28 B sl
BEERAE -
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During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no emoluments
were paid by the Group to any of the directors or the five highest paid
individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office.
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9 FEEMRA 9 FINANCE COSTS, NET

2021 2020
FTET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000

BOERTBMA | Interestincomeonbankdeposits IS - )
RITERFEFX Interest expenses on bank borrowings 5,111 9,055
FEBEF SR (M3E19(b)) Interest expenses on lease liabilities (Note 19(b)) 2,460 2,925
BERA Finance costs 7,571 11,980
JFRLE B A Finance costs, net 7,530 11,197

B AR RAR

20214 3R 1 57
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10 FTBFHBEX

HE2021F N2020F12 A31HIEFE -
NEBEFBNHBRARESRSERE
EREF 28 F o

HZE2021F 128318 LLFE - AEEER
B K FT B A B BRI E T R 25 % AN 2
FriSfi ([ ¥MEHR]) - BZE2020F12 A
31BLIEFE @ AEEEFRAHE QB
ESERCEAMEH 28 F o

HE2021F N2020F12 A31HIEFE -
FLARR IR A B ) B SR AN R B R A AR B
B 5% TBHIES -

10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s
subsidiary in Hong Kong had no assessable profit under Hong Kong
profits tax.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s subsidiary
in the PRC was subject to corporate income tax (“CIT”) at a standard
rate of 25%. During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s
subsidiary in PRC had no assessable profit under CIT.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, a 5%
withholding tax was levied on dividend declared by the Company in
the PRC to its foreign shareholder.

2021 2020
FTExT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BVHAFr 15 Current income tax

—PERRMAER - PRCCIT 4,662 -

BAFEREETT,(HBEEEE) Under/(over)-provision in prior year
— B EMEH -PRCCIT - 30
—EBNEH — Hong Kong profits tax - (193)
- (163)
BNERFF1S T 42 %8 Total current income tax 4,662 (163)
RSB (MiEE20) Deferred income tax (Note 20) 2,666 2,207
FriSEif X Income tax expense 7,328 2,044
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10 FriS®ifA < () 10 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued)
NEE KSR AR MO IES IR FER The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the
AR AN B BB A B FI A AN AE 55 theoretical amounts that would arise using the weighted average tax
MEFAEAMIERESENT ¢ rate applicable to profits of subsidiaries of the Group as follows:
2021 2020
TET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
R PSR A& Al Profit before income tax 27,448 3,495
RERR AR E AR Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to
R F R R ET E MR profits of the respective subsidiaries 6,453 710
A TIEENMRIAZE Tax effect of:
R AL ON Income not subject to tax (330) (760)
NRIHNHF X Expenses not deductible for tax purpose 961 330
RS ARFEREY Recognition of temporary difference
ERERE previously not recognised - 2,846
FEFENR A E Effect of PRC withholding tax 719 35)
TR IR Research and development tax credit (475) (884)
BT FE B Over-provision in prior year - (163)
FrE iR~ Income tax expense 7,328 2,044
BERBRERERAR]
AR 159
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11 ZREF 11 EARNINGS PER SHARE
FRRERNEF BB ARAREZREE AR The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
i3 FIBR A A B 21T S @A A hkE 15 attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
HEtHE - average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
RETEZE2020F12 A31 B L FEH In determining the weighted average number of ordinary shares
REBEEITH BRI EF S EET deemed to be in issue during the year ended 31 December 2020,
1,500,000,000 0% & 3@ f% (4L 5+ & M 3E26(a) 1,500,000,000 ordinary shares, after taking into account the
Fr#i 7220201 A10 B #ETHE AL BT capitalisation issue that took place on 10 January 2020 as set out
MR EEE EMEAETHRM T HER in Note 26(a) and the issue of shares pursuant to the reorganisation
BBE2020%F1 1 BED LT ° in relation to the listing, were deemed to have been issued since 1
January 2020.
BE12A310LFE
Year ended 31 December
2021 2020
KA FERFFE AR Profit for the year attributable to equity holders
FRHEM(TET) of the Company (HK$’000) 20,120 1,451
BT E B 2 Nk Weighted average number of ordinary shares in
FHEB(TH) issue ('000) 2,000,000 1,987,705
FRREAR REEERF OBIL) Basic and diluted earnings per share (HK cents) 1.01 0.07
MR FRALEBETEINNEERS LB There were no differences between the basic and diluted earnings
I MERERREERN 2 R EEEE - per share as there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares
outstanding during the year.
WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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12 9% - BERKRE

12 PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

HENE HR #ER BER
EREEE £ N Hes AE @t
Furniture,
fixtures
Right-of-use Leasehold and office Plant and Motor
assets improvements  equipment  machineries vehicles Total
AT AT TAL THL THL AT
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$/000
7202061818 At 1 January 2020
%S Cost 91,939 41,486 18,643 95,353 2,926 250,347
ZEHTE Accumulated depreciation (48,442) (33,184) (11,583) (51,600) (1,629) (146,438)
EEFE Net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
220205 Year ended 31 December 2020
12A31HILEE
HBEREE Opening net book amount 43,497 8,302 7,060 43,753 1,297 103,909
RE Additions 3,383 54 2,195 13,056 = 18,688
e Depreciation (14,590) (2,593) (2,489) (12,003) (535) (32,210)
& Disposals (71) = (326) (522) = (919)
[ENES Exchange differences 1,248 148 202 1,662 12 3,272
HRIREF(E Closing net book amount 33,467 5,911 6,642 45,946 774 92,740
R2020%128318 At 31 December 2020
A Cost 91,066 43,015 20,831 106,096 3,002 264,010
ZEHE Accumulated depreciation (57,599) (37,104) (14,189) (60,150) (2,228) (171,270)
EERE Net book amount 33,467 5,911 6,642 45,946 774 92,740
BR01E Year ended 31 December 2021
12A31HILEE
HREFE Opening net book amount 33,467 5,911 6,642 45,946 774 92,740
RE Additions 9,768 647 3,550 17,754 169 31,888
it Depreciation (15,920) (1,815) (2,590) (13,904) (337) (34,566)
HeE Disposals - (27) (529) (2,263) (333) (3,152)
BRER Exchange differences 972 166 286 2,086 13 3,523
HIRERE$E Closing net book amount 28,287 4,882 7,359 49,619 286 90,433
20215128318 At 31 December 2021
AR Cost 104,687 44,980 23,949 123,709 2,277 299,602
ZiHE Accumulated depreciation (76,400) (40,098) (16,590) (74,090) (1,991) (209,169)
EEFE Net book amount 28,287 4,882 7,359 49,619 286 90,433

HE2021F12A31BILLFE - TERAX
#99,194,000/% 7T (20204 : 8,740,00075
J0) B TR 32 0Bk K 4924,822,00075 7T
(20204 : 24,326,000/ 70) B R $H & B A

R e

BFERERERAR
20214

During the year ended 31 December 2021, depreciation expenses
of approximately HK9,194,000 (2020: HK$8,740,000) have
been charged in administrative expenses and approximately
HK$24,822,000 (2020: HK$24,326,000) have been charged in cost
of sales respectively.
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13 ELEE 13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

RIGEM
System
Software
FHT
HK$’000
R20205F141H At 1 January 2020
(D% Cost 5,695
RETEE Accumulated amortisation (2,257)
BREFE Net book amount 3,438
HZE2020F12831HILEE Year ended 31 December 2020
HAIBREFE Opening net book amount 3,438
INE Additions 1,134
BigH (Fiske) Amortisation (Note 6) (2,112)
HREREFE Closing net book amount 2,460
120205128318 At 31 December 2020
(DN Cost 6,829
ZEHE Accumulated amortisation (4,369)
BREFE Net book amount 2,460
HZE2021F12831HILLEE Year ended 31 December 2021
HRWIER A F(E Opening net book amount 2,460
INE Additions 137
254 (Mske) Amortisation (Note 6) (1,662)
HRBREDFE Closing net book amount 935
20215128318 At 31 December 2021
DEN Cost 6,966
Kt Accumulated amortisation (6,031)
BREFE Net book amount 935

HE2021F12A31BILFE - #EMASY
1,662,0007%8 7T (20204 : 2,112,000 7T)

ERTTERF SRR
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, amortisation expense
of approximately HK$1,662,000 (2020: HK$2,112,000) has been

charged in administrative expenses.
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14 RERETHNEMTE

14 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

BRBERATENEREE

Financial assets carried

at amortised cost

2021 2020
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$'000

FEMBRRRAMTEE Assets as per consolidated statement of

financial position

B S rEWRIA(FIEE18) Trade receivables (Note 18) 275,183 255,800
% R EAEWTIE(MFE15) Deposits and other receivables (Note 15) 2,933 2,848
ReMEESEM(HFE17)  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 17) 207,272 234,376
485,388 493,024

BBHERATENERMAE

Financial liabilities carried

at amortised cost

2021 2020
FExT FET
HK$’000 HK$'000
HREMBRRERAREE Liabilities as per consolidated statement of
financial position
B SN IR (ME21) Trade payables (Note 21) 233,494 180,228
HhEAIA R ERTE A Other payables and accruals (Note 23)
(B&E23) 126,761 68,096
HEaECPTF19) Lease liabilities (Note 19) 32,899 38,785
FEAH =R (PfE22) Bills payables (Note 22) 15,680 20,328
FEHRAES A R E (M3E30)  Amount due to a related company (Note 30) 636 126
RITRER(M7E25) Bank borrowings (Note 25) 249,900 261,456
659,370 569,019
ii%ﬁ%&ﬂxﬁﬂﬁAﬂ 1 63
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15 FBENFRE REREMEWR 15 PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

I8 RECEIVABLES
2021 2020
TR THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEENER AR 2 Non-current portion
& (MizFa) Deposits (Note a) 1,708 1,707
WHEIZ ~ B KRR Prepayments for acquisition of properties,
SEANEeEE plant and equipment 1,197 6,542
2,905 8,249
BNHAER Current portion
TERTRIE Prepayments 11,401 4,598
Ze (fiita) Deposits (Note a) 297 311
Hith e U FR 8 2 ATUR I {EFE  Other tax receivables and VAT recoverable 15,006 5,180
H fth e Yo 50 (P aEa b)) Other receivables (Notes a and b) 928 830
27,632 10,919
30,537 19,168
BaE Notes:
(@) F2021F K%2020F12A318 @ B REAE (@) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of deposits
WHER BRI E R E N TEEE © and other receivables approximated their fair values.
b) ZESTREEIR  RENARELEE - (b) The amounts were unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.
REBERZES RHEBHRENREERA TEE The carrying amounts of the Group’s deposits and other receivables were
FHE denominated in the following currencies:
2021 2020
FHET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ARE(TARYE]) Renminbi (“RMB”) 1,624 1,674
BT HK$ 1,309 1,174
2,933 2,848
‘l 64 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16 7E 16 INVENTORIES
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
EA Raw materials 206,607 87,720
R o Work in progress 17,233 16,485
RUAK i Finished goods 64,888 31,749
288,728 135,954
BHZE20215F12 A31 BHIEFE BRE The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in cost
BAY Wt AHERANTEER ALY A of sales during the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to
844,864,000 7T (20204 : 651,325,000 approximately HK$844,864,000 (2020: HK$651,325,000).
BIT) °
HZE2021F12A318ILFE - FERER Net reversal of impairment of inventories amounting to
[O] /5 EE4988,00078 7T (20204 : )R 1EZE approximately HK$88,000 (2020: nil) was credited to profit or loss
ABRIET ASEER A | o and included in “cost of sales” during the year ended 31 December
2021.
17 BERAESZEEY 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
RITES Cash at banks 207,172 234,263
FHEES Cash on hand 100 113
ReERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 207,272 234,376
aEERR Maximum exposure to credit risk 207,172 234,263
RekEeEBYNGEEEERERMS Cash and cash equivalents include the following for the purpose of
BRELATIAR ¢ the consolidated statement of cash flows:
2021 2020
FEx FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
RERBEEEY Cash and cash equivalents 207,272 234,376
BFBRERAR AR
202143 : 165
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17 BENRSEEY(E) 17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (continued)
NEBRSNRESEBYHNEREEEN T The carrying amounts of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were
g E - denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020

FET THETT

HK$’000 HK$'000

AE® RMB 18,763 12,668

=TT usD 146,707 181,553

BIT HK$ 41,609 40,103

Hit Others 193 52

207,272 234,376
RITRSBIBEF B R|RITFERAHIZE B IR Cash at banks earned interest at floating rates based on daily bank
BUFR o 7220214 2020612 A318 - deposits rate. As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying
Re kR FEYNERIERL QT ER amounts of cash and cash equivalents approximated their fair values.

o

2021128318 - AEENRE KR As at 31 December 2021, cash and cash equivalents of the
S EEMH A12,630,0007 7T (2020 : Group amounting to approximately HK$12,630,000 (2020:
12,619,000 7T) » FRHFBEIRARERTT HK$12,619,000), were deposited with the banks in the PRC
i % & < I H R B8] 52 B0 IR 08 44 B M where the remittance of funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules
E IR BISERFTARR - and regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the

government of the PRC.
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18 EZ EWFIE

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES

2021 2020

FET FET

HK$’000 HK$'000

=) e Trade receivables 277,025 257,256

B BB ENEOR R ER G Less: provision for impairment of trade

receivables (1,842) (1,456)

275,183 255,800
2021 2 2020E12831H - B EW As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of trade

FIAMBREERE A HERS

REBHEENEEHRNT15 21207 -

20214 % 20205612 A318 -

FOR(FNERIELE) I %R A B AR AT 40

receivables approximated their fair values.

The Group’s sales are made on credit terms ranging from 15 to 120
days.

=z el As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of trade
receivables, net of impairment, based on invoice date, were as

T follows:
2021 2020
FET T
HK$’000 HK$’000
0E90K 0 to 90 days 240,049 241,248
91E365K 91 to 365 days 33,871 12,107
365K E Over 365 days 1,263 2,445
275,183 255,800

72021F12 A31H

HEBHERRE -

BFERERERAR
20214

' #970,160,0005% 7T
(20204 : 30,004,00078 7T ) HI & 5 & WX

As at 31 December 2021, trade receivables amounting to
approximately HK$70,160,000 (2020: HK$30,004,000) were past
due but not impaired.
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18 EZEWRIE(E)

B RUGRRERBEBNT

18 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movements of the provision for impairment of trade receivables

were as follows:

2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
REH At beginning of the year 1,456 1,556
B 5 UGB B B Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(AR E2E) on an individual basis 251 1,304
Z S R TE R ER Provision for impairment of trade receivables
(FRHERIEAE) on a collective basis 135 152
b Gz Written-off - (1,556)
RER At end of the year 1,842 1,456

AEBENE 5 EWFIENREEATIE
#atE -

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade
denominated in the following currencies:

receivables were

2021 2020
F#&T Tt

HK$’000 HK$’000

ETT usD 262,827 244,042
BT HK$ 662 1,893
BT EURO 12 -
AR # RMB 11,682 9,865
275,183 255,800

MR2021FE K2020F12 A3 B HE S E
B A ATl B 5 W Z B R EE -
ANE B ER G TR R E AT o

168

The maximum exposure to credit risk as at 31 December 2021 and
2020 was the carrying value of the trade receivables mentioned
above. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

Annual Report 2021



e MR EE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

19 HE
(@) REAUBRRRBEIZNTIE

A MBIRRRIIRIA T HERBR
B iasREt AR 12[% - BER

19 LEASES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The consolidated statement of financial position shows the
following amounts relating to leases and that the balances were

& included in Note 12 “Properties, plant and equipment”:
2021 2020
FET THET
HK$’000 HK$'000
EREEE Right-of-use assets
LS Properties 28,287 33,467

HZE2021F12A31BIEFE  AE
FER#EEE9,768,00078 T (20204 :

There were additions to the right-of-use assets amounted to
HK$9,768,000 during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:

3,383,00087T) ° HK$3,383,000).

2021 2020
TFHET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000

HESE Lease liabilities
IEMENEE Non-current portion 15,741 24,489
mENEL S Current portion 17,158 14,296
32,899 38,785

AEENHERENREEAL NS

The carrying amounts of the Group’s lease liabilities were

HEHE - denominated in the following currencies:
2021 2020
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 7,236 619
ARE RMB 25,663 38,166
32,899 38,785

EFBRERERAR
20214 3R
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19 HE (&) 19 LEASES (continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income

(b) RERE2EKRERBEZNRER

The consolidated statement of comprehensive income shows the

FAEZEKRERTIRATHEHEREN

g : following amounts relating to leases:
2021 2020
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ERAEEENENRX Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets
S Properties 15,920 14,590
HESBRERA(KEE9)  Finance costs on lease liabilities (Note 9) 2,460 2,925

(c) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of cash flows

(C) BA:N\ = ‘I‘Eﬁlilbgiﬁﬁ E,J

The total cash outflows for leases during the years ended 31

HZE2021F N2020F12 A31 8 IEF

€ EEEENARSRENT December 2021 and 2020 were as follow:
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000

KETHELEMNBESRE  Cash flows from operating activities

BRANTEIER Payments for short-term leases
FEERMEE R in respect of:
— 1z (Fiste) — Properties* (Note 6) 1,262 912
METEHELNRELSHE  Cash flows from financing activities
YRHEREZ Payment of interest element of lease
FEH /‘(Mﬁm liabilities (Note 9) 2,460 2,925
xNHEEaEZ A Payment of principal element of lease
liabilities 16,828 13,925
20,550 17,762
* EHEENRALKRBBERI - EREHE *  Payments for short-term leases were not shown separately, but

BORTTARK 27 @ 25K EEEN
FHREERNFRASHENEN PRA A -

170

included in the line of “profit before income tax” in respect of the
net cash generated from operations which were presented in Note
27(a) using the indirect method.
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20 EEFTBH 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX
REVBARRRIRFERFEATIER ¢ The amounts shown in the consolidated statement of financial

position include the following:

2021 2020
FER FAT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BERIBEE Deferred tax assets 4,121 5,068
ELEFRIBBAE Deferred tax liabilities (2,170) (1,164)
BEFTRIBEE Deferred tax assets, net 1,951 3,904
BIEFHIBEECZBAOT - The movements on net deferred tax assets were as follows:
2021 2020
FET FAT
HK$’000 HK$’000
M®1A18 At 1 January 3,904 5,078
INGREEAEEoT Charged to the consolidated statement of
HIBR (MI5E10) comprehensive income (Note 10) (2,666) (2,207)
FRRH Payments during the year 524 840
DE X EHR Exchange differences 189 193
M12A31H At 31 December 1,951 3,904

BEERERERAR

20214 3R 1 71
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20 IEIEFRSH (4 20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)
HE2021F 2020512 A31BHIEEE -
BT RIB B M B (R R SR
AR M T -

The movement in deferred tax assets during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020, without taking into consideration the
offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as
follows:

e
BEER
e HEAE RIEEE @5t
Right-of-use
assets and
lease
Provisions liabilities Tax losses Total
FHET FHT FHT THT
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7K2020F1A1H At 1 January 2020 3,974 1,104 - 5,078
REFE EERE R (Charged)/credited to the
(0% ),/ ABR consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (1,348) 168 1,769 589
bE i R Exchange differences 104 50 39 193
M2020%F12A31HK At 31 December 2020 and
20211 A1H 1 January 2021 2,730 1,322 1,808 5,860
RiFa 2EKRER Credited/(charged) to the
AR (3BR) consolidated statement of
comprehensive income 146 (167) (1,808) (1,829)
e =5 Exchange differences 138 51 - 189
#20214€12 8318 At 31 December 2021 3,014 1,206 - 4,220

EERIEEE A EEERASFEE s
BBARREFRTOG A BEIR Mt ArAEE 2 A
A E/ERERR © 1220214F K%2020F12 A
318 « AEEWEEME K RERELER
BEE -

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through the future
taxable profits is probable. The Group did not have other material
unrecognised deferred tax assets as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
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Lﬁﬁ ﬁ(mﬁ)

HZE2021F K2020F12A31BIEFEE -
FERIA B B S E) CREFT R HEER
TERVAERAMEAR)IOT ¢

20 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

follows:

The movement in deferred tax liabilities during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020, without taking into consideration
the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, was as

DR R RE H & F e
Accelerated tax Unremitted
depreciation earnings Total
T FHETT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
72020451 A1H At 1 January 2020 = = -
REFE 2N EERINE  Charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income (387) (2,409) (2,796)
NS ET S NG Reversal of deferred income tax
M) 1 1 [ R AE liabilities upon distribution of
FriSTHBE profits from PRC subsidiary = 840 840
7202012318 & At 31 December 2020 and
2021F1 18 1 January 2021 (387) (1,569) (1,956)
MRAZ2EUWEREXIIB  Charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive
income (118) (719) (837)
5 Ik A BB 8 2 7 Reversal of deferred income tax
i M) 1 1 [ R AE liabilities upon distribution of
FrstiaE profits from PRC subsidiary - 524 524
R2021F12 4311 At 31 December 2021 (505) (1,764) (2,269)

R2021612 8318 » F R B AR R AME
HE R 4584 /535,276,00058 7T, (20204

31,380,0005&7T) ©

BFERERERAR
20214

As at 31 December 2021,

HK$31,380,000).

total unremitted earnings of PRC
subsidiary amounted to approximately HK$35,276,000 (2020:
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21 E5EMNFRIA 21 TRADE PAYABLES
2021 2020
FET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
Z SRR Trade payables 233,494 180,228
20214 2020512 A318 - E S E( As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of trade
FIBREZ BRSO ITOT - payables, based on invoice date, were as follows:
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
0E90X 0 to 90 days 186,639 168,145
91£365K 91 to 365 days 45,429 7,994
365 ALA E Over 365 days 1,426 4,089
233,494 180,228
AEEESEMNFIENRAENTIIEE The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables were
FHE : denominated in the following currencies:
2021 2020
FET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT HK$ 15,800 22,693
e usD 73,947 62,282
AR RMB 143,325 93,968
Hi Others 422 1,285
233,494 180,228
20214 2020512 A318 - E 5 E( As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of trade
FAMREEEE A FERES - payables approximated their fair values.
174 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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22 BNEE

22 BILLS PAYABLES

2021 2020

THET FHET

HK$’000 HK$'000

NS Bills payables 15,680 20,328

MR2021FE 202012 8318 » ENEE

BREZAHNRESTAOT

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of bills
payables, based on invoice date, was as follow:

2021 2020
TR TAT

HK$’000 HK$'000

=EAURA Within 3 months 15,680 20,328

M2021F K 202012 8318 » EAZEE
REREEHIASITHE R BE N FEEE -

23 EHEE

Hitt BN RIBERE
=T 58 A LA % 3R FiE XA #76 BY

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of bills
payables were all denominated in HK$ and approximated their fair
values.

23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER PAYABLES AND
ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED GOVERNMENT

GRANTS
@ EHNEE - HtENRERE (a) Contract liabilities, other payables and accruals
it EH
2021 2020
TERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
JEFHE BRI Accrued employee benefit expenses 12,839 12,039
T HERESMAX Accrued sale commission expenses 13,984 17,047
Hib ezt &R Other accruals 7,749 10,376
WEETZ - BB & Payables for acquisition of properties,

RAER R FRIE plant and equipment 1,805 2,625
BFEES Customer deposits 78,925 16,114
H b e 1~ FIH Other payables 24,433 22,037
BHEEPLES(C) Contract liabilities (Note 5(c)) 61,161 22,257

200,896 102,495

R2021FEK2020F12 A31H » 648
& EtENRENESFERANER

EREAHEMES -

B AR RAR
20214 3R

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts of
contract liabilities, other payables and accruals approximated
their fair values.
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2 EHNEE HitENZRIERE 23 CONTRACT LIABILITIES, OTHER PAYABLES AND

STERURIELEBRFER (8) ACCRUALS AND DEFERRED GOVERNMENT
GRANTS (continued)

@ GHEE  HtENFERE

(@) Contract liabilities, other payables and accruals

TEAGE)

ANER B EL A FE A5 SRR K A B B RO AR
EEATIIEREHE

(continued)

The carrying amounts of the Group’s other payables and
accruals were denominated in the following currencies:

2021 2020
THET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
ARE RMB 3,882 7,895
v usD 94,263 19,273
BT HK$ 28,616 40,928
126,761 68,096
(b) IEFE B AT 5 BY (b) Deferred government grants

2021 2020
THExT FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
K1ATH At 1 January 1,203 1,577
FREW Received during the year 1,762 =

BOoZEire2mliiER Released to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income (1,662) (374)
1,303 1,203
FERNEREL Non-current portion 132 170
BRERER 5 Current portion 1,171 1,033
1,303 1,203

HE2021F12A31H » KEBKRE
SR TZERT R E R E BT
AF o Bt - AEENFKIEERK2021
F12A31BELE - B Lt RBH S
HN - R E BB A E A M R E K
IR RREL -

Up to 31 December 2021, certain of these expenses and the
equipment and software licenses have not been incurred or
purchased by the Group. Therefore, the corresponding advance
payments have been deferred as at 31 December 2021. Except
for the aforementioned unutilised portions, there are no other
unfulfilled conditions or contingencies attached to these grants.

1 76 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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24 |RE 24 DIVIDENDS

KRAREEZITERKNSEZ2020F12 A31
BItFERPERS -

R2021F3 A29HBITHES S E3
BEREFRMNEE2020F12A31 B ILEE
KR HEARR B &R EmAR0.0058 7T « &3
10,000,000/ 7T ° I B REE2021F12 A
318 IEFEIRST ©

AABEEITEZRKNEZE2021F12 A31
BIEFERNHEIRRE -

M202243 A30BBITHNEZTESZE L
RABESERRNEZE2021512 A31
B It FE R AR S F T EI0.00257
JT * A 35,000,000/ 7T o REARR B2 E
REMBHRRPARMABEMNKRE - BFF
RERAEER AT RS EHER - Z%
BN AEE2022F12A31HIEEER
BirWESE -

BFERERERAR
20214

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2020.

At the board meeting held on 29 March 2021, the directors
recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.005 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2020, amounting to
a total of HK$10,000,000. The dividends were paid during the year
ended 31 December 2021.

The directors of the Company did not recommend the payment of an
interim dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021.

At the board meeting held on 30 March 2022, the directors of
the Company recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK$0.0025 per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2021, amounting to a total of HK$5,000,000. The final dividend was
not reflected as dividend payable in these consolidated financial
statements, but will be reflected as an appropriation of retained
earnings for the year ending 31 December 2022 after receiving
shareholders” approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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25 $RITER 25 BANK BORROWINGS

2021 2020
FET FETT
HK$’000 HK$’000
WITEF—FEEL Bank loans — secured and repayable
BIREREE on demand 249,900 261,456

Ret RBRERER G BERRITE
A

The bank borrowings were repayable, without taking into account
the repayable on demand clauses, as follows:

2021 2020

FET T

HK$’000 HK$’000

—F R Within 1 year 239,400 244,956
== Between 1 and 2 years 6,000 6,000
—ERF Between 2 and 5 years 4,500 10,500
249,900 261,456

72021F12 8318  £58/4%249,900,000
HIT(20204F : 261,456,00078 7T ) HYERTTE
KB EERARHER ZoR(EEN BRI
FIEMER (TR ER AT ATREGENRS|I B
BREBR)  nERRBAE -

M2021FKR12A318 @ SRITERIEF
BEBRERNZE52.0%(2020%F : 2.1%) °

MR2021F %2020%F12 A318 » ZEEH
RITER T LABITEHE + BEE A FENE

++

Eo

PR2021F & 2020F12 31 H » AEER
ITIERMRITRE AR R B ES MER
RERAEBEERARBIERBEABE
ST HE RS BRI o

178

As at 31 December 2021, bank borrowings of approximately
HK$249,900,000 (2020: HK$261,456,000) which contain a clause
that gives the lender the unconditional right to demand repayment at
any time have been classified in current liability irrespective of the
probability that the lender will invoke the clause without cause.

As at 31 December 2021, the weighted average effective interest rate
on bank borrowings was 2.0% (2020: 2.1%) per annum.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, bank borrowings of the Group
were denominated in HK$ and approximated their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s bank borrowings
and banking facilities were secured by a letter of undertaking from
Mr. Raymond Chu, a director and Controlling Shareholder of the
Company, and Mr. Wilson Chu, a Controlling Shareholder of the
Company.

WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



e MR RME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

25 RITEF(E) 25 BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

&P IR1T

REZE2021F12A31BIEEE - Bt
MEI AEBEDETHRITBENH
EHE - R2021F12A831H » REBRE
REBAEEE -RBPITAREEARME
#9 % 326,500,000 % T M B & &/ T B
HRFE - BZE2021F128318  EF4H
230,263,000/ 0 E A A5 B A EIRTTIE X
MERZE -

RBERRERER  GEREREGHR
TTHRITRER T B - EEEH
RITEAKEREHTE - YELBHBORE

ANEEEEABRITEINIRITRAEGR -
BB PR 58K 2220,000,00078 7T °

LEER2021F12A31BNBESRREE
BH%207,272,0007 7T ~ AEEB iR
IR A8 R B DA R B2 EL M SR 1T Y SR AR ENER
1TRIE 49164,684,0008 7 * BIEER AL
MERBITHEBE TN BEAEANEE
ST EATFIRE -

BFERERERAR
20214

Compliance with bank covenants

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group was in
compliance with the financial covenants of its bank facilities save
as the facilities described below. As at 31 December 2021, the
Group was in breach of certain financial covenants in respect
of the Group’s facilities with a bank with the total facilities
granted amounting to approximately HK$326,500,000, of which
approximately HK$230,263,000 was utilised by the Group as bank
borrowings and bills payables as of 31 December 2021.

After the end of the reporting period, notwithstanding the breach of
financial covenants under the bank facilities with the relevant bank,
upon the mutual agreement of the relevant bank and the Group, and
having settled part of the drawn down amount and the breach of
covenant penalty imposed by the relevant bank, the Group renewed
the bank facilities with the relevant bank and with facilities limit
reduced to HK$220,000,000.

With the consideration of the cash and cash equivalents amounting
to approximately HK$207,272,000, the financial position and
operating activities of the Group and the undrawn bank facilities
with other banks amounting to approximately HK$164,684,000 as
at 31 December 2021, the management considers that the breach of
financial covenants under the bank facilities described above did not
have any material adverse impact to the Group.
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26 BRAR R RE 26 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
R{EE HE MR A7 8
Number Nominal Share
of shares value premium

T TAET TET
'000 HK$'000  HK$'000

7202051418 At 1 January 2020 1,000 10 =
B3 (MtzEa) Capitalisation issue (Note a) 1,499,000 14,990 (14,990)
A TR RIS (FTEED) Issuance of shares upon listing (Note b) 500,000 5,000 120,000
R& 15 BT R 2R Share issuance costs — — (24,655)
2020912 A31H ~ 20214 At 31 December 2020, 1 January 2021 and

1ATBX2021F12A31H 31 December 2021 2,000,000 20,000 80,355

B

@@ BEARAFTMEN2019F12108 B BHE
EREE » 202051 A108 » RAEERAR
A IR R AR B R 34T 4 ££1,499,000,000 3% F A%
EE0.01/8 AR + I L B BRI Al B A
A B R BR 19 i B BR 15 14,990,000 7T & A
1t °

(b) 202018108 @ REFBAFEE RER
AL - AR RIAFRR0.25BTTHERIEITA R
500,000,000/% & :@AX - Fr{SRIBRRE (k%
FERAN D BE1TRN AN 2 BT ) 4125,000,0007 7T ©

180

Note:

(a)

Pursuant to a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the
Company on 10 December 2019, a total of 1,499,000,000 shares of
HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at par value to the shareholders
of the Company as of 10 January 2020 on a pro rata basis by way of
capitalisation of HK$14,990,000 from the Company’s share premium
account on the listing date.

On 10 January 2020, pursuant to the Hong Kong public offering and
international placing, the Company issued a total of 500,000,000
ordinary shares at a price of HK$0.25 per share for a total gross proceeds
(before related share issuance costs) of HK$125,000,000.
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27 REREREBRM

@ FARAERAENEEEE

27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS

(@) Reconciliation of profit before income tax for the

EWERESHER year to net cash generated from operations
2021 2020
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
BR TS % ATR T Profit before income tax 27,448 3,495
HATZIRELFE Adjustments for:
B WA (K17E9) Finance income (Note 9) @1) (783)
BhE A (FEE9) Finance costs (Note 9) 7,571 11,980
e (fax12) Depreciation (Note 12) 34,016 33,066
B (MIRE13) Amortisation (Note 13) 1,662 2,112
FERERRLFRE(KIFE16) Netreversal of impairment of inventories
(Note 16) (88) -
B 5 WK IER B Provision for impairment of trade receivable
(FH7E18) (Note 18) 386 1,456
HEMZE - BE REER Loss on disposal of properties, plant and
B (Mistb) equipment (Note b) 2,325 731
HE ez (KEE7@) Gain on lease modification (Note 7(a)) - )
B BN (FiF7E23 (b)) Government grants (Note 23 (b)) (1,662) (374)
71,617 51,681
EEECHEE Changes in working capital:
—E 5 MEMEKFIA — Trade and other receivables (34,987) (59,196)
—FE — Inventories (144,398) (5,286)
— BLRAE 5 2 s — Balances with related parties 510 3,058
—B 5 NEMERIRIA — Trade and other payables 144,415 78,548
—FETEIE — Bills payables (4,648) (10,071)
— EREER T B — Deferred government grants 1,654 -
REEFHFRE Net cash generated from operations 34,163 58,734
b) REREHRERERD HEY (b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows,
¥ BERRBREFREESE proceeds from disposal of properties, plant and
equipment comprised:
2021 2020
FERT FHET
HK$’000 HK$’000
H &R EHE Net book amounts disposed 3,152 848
HEMZE - BER Loss on disposal of properties,
ZErEsE (M7 @) plant and equipment (Note 7(a)) (2,325) (731)
HEME - BEK Proceeds from disposal of properties,
RGPS IR plant and equipment 827 117
BEERERARAT
oI 181



REMBRRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27 EHERERMT(E) 27 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) MEFHELENEGEHRNT : (c) The reconciliations of liabilities arising from
financing activities were as follows:

HERE SRITER
Lease Bank
liabilities borrowings
FHET FAT
HK$'000 HK$'000
20201 81R At 1 January 2020 47,951 266,593
WEmE Cash flows
— SRITEKPTSFIE — Proceeds from bank borrowings - 644,672
—EERITER — Repayment of bank borrowings = (649,809)
—SNHEEBEBZAREEH - Payment of principal element of lease
liabilities (13,925) =
—SNHEEBGEZFEES - Payment of interest element of lease
liabilities (2,925) -
Hib IR & #H) Other non-cash movements
—AEHEERE — Addition of lease liability 3,383 _
—MEBRX — Interest expenses 2,925 -
— e TEEaE — Written-off of lease liability (73) =
—[EN =58 — Exchange difference 1,449 =
720205128318 & At 31 December 2020 and
20211818 1 January 2021 38,785 261,456
WemE Cash flows
—IRITIE PSR — Proceeds from bank borrowings - 873,143
—(BRIFTTER — Repayment of bank borrowings - (884,699)
—SNNHEEBEZALEH - Payment of principal element of lease
liabilities (16,828) =
—SNHEEBBZFEED - Payment of interest element of lease
liabilities (2,460) -
Hi IR & EH) Other non-cash movements
—AEHERR — Addition of lease liability 9,768 =
—HMERX — Interest expenses 2,460 -
—[EHERE — Exchange difference 1,174 -
20215128311 At 31 December 2021 32,899 249,900
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28 TEMB A TFE

ANEBEN2021F 2020512 A31 B E

ZMBARMNT - REAHABIN -

T8

EHEANBRAERASEERRANE A
ARk - AR B EEESEL PISERA
SERROREE o FEMAKLK BB R I

REEBLERMA -

28 PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The Group’s principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2021 and 2020
are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital
consisting solely of ordinary shares that are held directly by the
Group, and the proportion of ownership interests held equals the
voting rights held by the Group. The countries of incorporation or
registration are also their principal place of business.

FEERANFAERES
Ownership interest held
by the Group
2021 2020
B Al ]
HBERBHREA ITEEBR BRTR
WEARER BERNER e ERRRE ESEL BAED
Place and date of
incorporation/
registration and Principal activitiesand  Issued and fully Interest Interest
Name of subsidiary kind of legal entity place of operation paid up capital held held
B
Direct interests:
Brilliant Holdings RBRUEE NRBRZES 1%7T
Investments Group 201914108 : ETREER
Limited BRAA
Brilliant Holdings BVI; 10 January 2019; Investment holding USD1 100% 100%
Investments Group limited liability in BVI
Limited company
R -
Indirect interests:
BBk BE REBHEETEm 100,000 7T
201067 A298
BRAT
Wise Ally Holdings Hong Kong; 29 July Trading of electronic HK$100,000 100% 100%
Limited 2010; limited liability products in Hong Kong
company
REFENEXBROA  PE: R EEGE R 64,800,000/87C
2010F123138 : HEETEM
BRRA
Dongguan Wise Ally The PRC; 13 December  Manufacturing and trading  HK$64,800,000 100% 100%

Industrial Co., Ltd.*
(RERENEXBRAR)

BFERERERAR
20214

2010; limited liability
company

of electronic products in
the PRC

*  The English translation is for identification purpose only. This company
does not have official English name.
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29 EXENE 29 CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
RER  BRINERAREEEBEERE Capital expenditure in relation to the purchases of plant and
Rihes 2 EARRAZAT machinery contracted for but not yet incurred at the end of the year

was as follows:

2021 2020
THET FHET
HK$’000 HK$'000
B ET4E M AR BHE Contracted but not provided for 1,823 4,870
30 BBET R 57 RAGER 30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
RAEE T R A R R - HRIE SIS HK Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control,
REHUSFTHERNNEMTITRERATE jointly control or exert significant influence over the other party in
7 B RSEWRE S RANEEMESSK holding power over the investee; exposure, or rights, to variable
BRZAAEO®R  URBREIEHERE returns from its involvement with the investee; and the ability to use
HREREN  UREREELHRNEHE its power over the investee to affect the amounts of the investor’s
BE T o RANE 5 X B RIE H sk L F 1% returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
fll - TR SR T o BAEE S AT A A common control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals
HHEHMER - or other entities.
PERR AR ERPABIFET. 13 EE » The Controlling Shareholders are disclosed in Note 1.1.
WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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30 BARE S X 7 K 4 ek ()

FRARASEFEXZNTEMBTIT

B

Related parties

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

Major related parties that had transactions with the Group during the

year were as follows:

7A2021F % 20205F12 831 B EAREBERBIF
Relationship with the Group as at

31 December 2021 and 2020

REEBRE
Mr. Raymond Chu

Mr. Wilson Chu

WO S
Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley

BRERLE
Mr. Chan Chi Ming

KXERE
Mr. Arthur Chu

gt
Mr. Lau Shui Fung

REEXARRAA

Defond Electrical Industries Limited

meER(BB)BRAR ([EBEFE])
Defond Holdings (H.K.) Co. Limited (“Defond HK")

PG

(a)

SRR SLAEER2021F9 A30HBHEARAE
ERTHAEE -

PRAEBEAER2021F10A31 BT ARQR]
EEREEEER °

ANERECR2021F7 A2BEZEAEEAR
RIEE o

2|+ 1& %4 B R 2021F10 8108 K%20214F
AT EZEARNARERVEE RE
$o

BEERERERAR

20214 3R

ERRRRAARES
Controlling Shareholder and Director of the Company

PERR
Controlling Shareholder

RABIEER(MEa)
Director of the Company (Note a)

AAFIEE(FIEEb)
Director of the Company (Note b)

AAE|EE(KisEc)
Director of the Company (Note c)

ARBEF(HED)
Director of the Company (Note d)

i P22 P A R 22
Controlled by Controlling Shareholders

P PR A A SRR
Controlled by Controlling Shareholders

Notes:

(a)

(b)

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit, Stanley has been resigned as the director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 30 September 2021.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming has been resigned as the director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on 31 October 2021.

Mr. Arthur Chu has been appointed as the director of the Company
since 2 July 2021.

Mr. Lau Shui Fung has been appointed as the Chief Financial Officer and

the director of the Company since 10 October 2021 and 1 December
2021 respectively.
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30 BEE S R Z R EEeR(48)
BALANCES (continued)

(a) EREBERE TS 2 A5 ER

(@) Balance with related party

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

2021 2020
FHET THET
HK$’000 HK$’000
a8 Trade nature
PE{S BAE A B FOR Amount due to a related company
—REEXARAIA] — Defond Electrical Industries Limited
([=e)]) (“Defond”) 636 126

20214 K2020%F 12 A318 » Ef
BmERIBAEET - 2B RARKK
+Z@AAEE -

R2021FEK2020F12 A31H @ BRNE
SHEEREMNEERIEREZER RN

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the amount due to Defond
was unsecured, interest-free and repayable within the next
twelve months.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the aging analysis of the
amount due to Defond of trade nature, based on invoice date,

ERERDATAAT was as follows:
2021 2020
FHET FET
HK$’000 HK$’000
0&30K 0 to 30 days 636 126

(b) EEEB IR S
BRI ER A ISR R M S D P &S
AN BZE2021F KX2020F12 318 1E
FE - UTRZIEESTRBEE
FREBHR S HETT

FEXS

() FBEM

(b) Transactions with related parties

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, the following transactions were carried out with
related parties during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020, at terms mutually agreed by both parties:

Continuing transaction

(i) Purchase of goods

2021 2020

TR TET

HK$’000 HK$’000

BELREER Purchases of goods from Defond 3,249 2,172
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30 BARE S X 7 K 4 ek ()

(b) EREBEE T I 5 (1K)

EEREE T R 5 TR T A1
ERIRTETT - RRBESIRE ° %
EXGIRAKENAEEZBKBRES
WAREA B 1552 MO 1T

(i) BAEBEBTETRSEALRR
HZE2021F %2020512 A318 1k
FE BTAREBBEITEFAK
5 25 FTEARR R AR SR A FGE
R EHR AR ©
(c) TEEEEFH M

IEERFENKENEEZEEEN
FENZI RN -

30 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)
(b) Transactions with related parties (continued)

The above related party transactions were carried out on terms
mutually agreed between the parties. In the opinion of the
directors of the Company, these transactions were conducted in
the ordinary course of business of the Group and in accordance
with the terms of the underlying agreements.

(ii) Personal guarantee to secure the Group’s bank borrowings

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
certain bank borrowings of the Group were secured by a
letter of undertaking from the Controlling Shareholders of
the Company as set out in Note 25.

(c) Key management compensation

Compensation paid or payable to key management for employee
services is shown below:

2021 2020
FHET TET
HK$’000 HK$'000
TENFHS Wages and salaries 18,152 18,452
RIKE KA — Pension costs —
REHKETE defined contribution plan 107 132
18,259 18,584
BEERERARAT
202158 187
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31 EENF R ER 31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(@ EEME (@) Directors’ emoluments
BREENSNEYT - The remuneration of each director is set out below:
B
BER  BREHE
e e BERL  BUNE MR KSR @t
Employer’s

Allowances  contribution
Discretionary ~ and benefits  to pension  Termination
Fees Salary bonus in kind scheme benefits Total
TR AT TR TER TR TR TR
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK§000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

BE20215 For the year ended
12A31BILEE 31 December 2021
HTES Executive directors
—-REE ~ Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Gl e5:9) (CEO) (Note i)
(Bt = 1,046 600 = = - 1,646
— BB (fi5Hi) - Tsang Ming Chit Stanley
(Note ii) - 2,340 - 1,080 13 528 3,961
—BE5EA (Fff5Eiii) - Chan Chi Ming (Note iii) - 1,669 154 - = 144 1,967
—RXE(HfiEv) - Chu Man Yin Arthur
Newton (Note iv) - 692 20 - 9 - 721
—3IT&(Fiskv) - Lau Shui Fung (Note v) - 100 15 = 2 = 17

BUJFHTEE  Independent non-executive

directors
— &R0 ~ Ling Imma Kit Sum 300 = = - - - 300
—FEfy — Lee Wa Lun Warren 300 - - - _ _ 300
— AR - Szeto Yuk Ting 300 - - - - - 300
900 5,847 789 1,080 24 672 9,312
188 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
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31 EEMRENK Em (HE

@ EEM<E (&)

BrESNFHEIOT - (B)

31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

The remuneration of each director is set out below: (Continued)

EXY
RRHR BAEEE
ik e BIEIEA B ey @5t
Employer’s
Allowances  contribution
Discretionary ~ and benefits ~ to pension
Fees Salary bonus in kind scheme Total
TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE2020F For the year ended
12A31BLEE 31 December 2020
HTES Executive directors
-] ~ Chu Wai Hang Raymond - 484 = = - 484
— B - Tsang Ming Chit Stanley - 3,158 45 1,440 18 4,661
—R+H — Chan Chi Ming - 2,033 - - - 2,033
BAJFHTEE  Independent non-executive
directors
— BB - Ling Imma Kit Sum 293 - - - - 293
—FEfR - Lee Wa Lun Warren 293 - - - - 293
—AfERE - Szeto Yuk Ting 293 - - - - 293
879 5,675 45 1,440 18 8,057
FeE Notes:

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

REEBEEER2021FIA30BEZE
BARRITREE,

WEFIE S A B 202149 A30 B BEAR
NREE RITHAES -

FRAERR LA ER2021410 831 BEHER
NAEEREFEEE -

AXERECR2021FE7 A2 ERT A
RNAFEE -

2+ 1E A B 20214108108 2021
F12A1B0 R EZEAEEARRIERENS
BERE=E -

EFBRERERAR

20214 3R

(iii)

Mr. Raymond Chu has been appointed as the Chief Executive
Officer of the Company since 30 September 2021.

Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley has been resigned as the director and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company on 30 September 2021.

Mr. Chan Chi Ming has been resigned as the director and Chief
Operating Officer of the Company on 31 October 2021.

Mr. Arthur Chu has been appointed as the director of the Company
since 2 July 2021.

Mr. Lau Shui Fung has been appointed as the Chief Financial

Officer and the director of the Company since 10 October 2021
and 1 December 2021 respectively.
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

None of the directors of the Company (i) received or paid any
remuneration in respect of accepting office; (ii) received or
paid emoluments in respect of services in connection with the
management of the affairs of the Company or its subsidiaries’
undertaking during the years ended 31 December 2021 and
2020.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, none of the directors
of the Company waived or has agreed to waive any emolument.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, Mr. Raymond Chu,
Mr. Tsang Ming Chit Stanley and Mr. Chan Chi Ming waived
emoluments of HK$36,000, HK$342,000 and HK$151,200
respectively.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination

benefits

No emoluments, retirement benefits, payments or benefits in
respect of termination of directors’ services were paid or made,
directly or indirectly, to the directors; nor were any payables
during the years 31 ended December 2021 and 2020.

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making

available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

Wise Ally Holdings Limited, Rayson Innovations Limited and
Defond HK entered into a joint bank facility under which the
borrowers provided cross guarantees as part of the securities
since 2019. The cross guarantees were released upon the listing
of the Group in January 2020. Maximum liability that may be
incurred under the guarantee was as below:

RERTIHELHRARE REBEE
Maximum liability that may be incurred RETER
under the guarantee FBRERN
BfiRE/
BREAELN
A/ RER
Amounts/aggregate
amounts paid or
liability/aggregate
liabilities incurred
RENER/ during the
E4 RERER/ financial year
Individually/ Ea for the purpose
in aggregate Individually/ of fulfilling
ERDEAME at the in aggregate the guarantee or
ERAZR BEME Nature of guarantee beginning at the end RER discharging
Name of the borrower Nature of connection  or security of the year of the year During the year the security
AT AT AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HEWNFNANBLEE
For the year ended 31 December 2021:
ReER HRIRRE i
REEAER
Defond HK Controlled body Guarantee
corporate of
the Controlling
Shareholders - - - -
BENNF12A3NALFE
For the year ended 31 December 2020:
ReER PRIRRE i
REEAER
Defond HK Controlled body Guarantee
corporate of
the Controlling
Shareholders 282,000 = 282,000 =
ii%ﬁ%&ﬂxﬁﬂ&gﬂ 1 91
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31 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(continued)

(e) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or at any time during the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020.
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company

2021 2020
k=3 TET FET
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
BE ASSETS
FRBEE Non-current asset
RENBLRR Investment in a subsidiary 67,908 67,908
REBEE Current assets
SEUNEE Prepayments 23 243
) NGIE e Amount due from a subsidiary 100,328 96,073
ReRRSEFED Cash and cash equivalents 538 4,005
100,889 100,321
WEE Total assets 168,797 168,229
S EQUITY
ARBRBHFEA Equity attributable to equity

bz holders of the Company
[N Share capital (b) 20,000 20,000
&= E Share premium (b) 80,355 80,355
BAREE Capital reserve (b) 67,898 67,898
Bl Retained earnings/

(R:tE1E) (accumulated losses) (b) 541 27)
s Total equity 168,794 168,226
RBEE Current liability
Hih R IA R ETE A Other payables and accruals 3 3
EEREEARE Total equity and liability 168,797 168,229

ARAEHFERNATKE R2022F3 A
S0RESEEEHME  WRRUATA

T%RE

KEIE
EF

BFERERERAR
20214

2 tug
EF

Chu Wai Hang Raymond
Director

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 March 2022 and was
signed on its behalf:

Lau Shui Fung
Director
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2 ARDNFB BRI TR EESE 32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

(&) RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)
(b) RABRAR HEEE (b) Share capital and reserve movement of the
Company
BrkE/
R& KiiaE Exfis  (RiER) Y
Retained
earnings/
Share Share Capital  (accumulated Total
capital premium reserve Losses) equity
TARL TAL TEL TAL TEL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(Fit3EG)
(Note (i))
_RUNFIAIAZGE  Balanceatlamay2020 0o T 6788 573 S1%
2EFE Comprehensive loss
RRER L lesfrtheyer L S S . L B
i - - 35,726 35,726

BREARTHRS Transaction with owners

EMRME77(26(a)  Capitalisation issue (Note 26(a)) 14,990 (14,990) = - -
R EmBETRD Issuance of shares upon listing

(FE26(h) (Note 26(b) 5,000 120,000 = - 125,000
BREITAA Share issuance costs = (24,655) = = (24,655)
S Dividend - = = (20,000) 20,000)
EFAAETHRZEE  Total transaction with owners 19,990 80,355 = (20,000) 80,345

R2020F128318 R Balance at 31 December 2020

2021110 28 and 1 January 2021 20,000 80,355 67,898 (27) 168,226

2EkE Comprehensive Income
FRgH Profit for the year - - - 10,568 10,568
= - - 10,568 10,568

BREARTHRS Transactions with owners

®e Dividend = = = (10,000) (10,000)
REFAETHRZEE  Total transactions with owners - - - (10,000) (10,000)
R20215128318 244 Balance at 31 December 2021 20,000 80,355 67,898 541 168,794
1 94 WISE ALLY INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
Annual Report 2021



e M RRME

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

32 A DEBBRR K 2B
AR

(b) AT RARf#E2E (R)

it -

(i) 2019F12 8138 @ RELFEBER
Brilliant HoldingsH) 2282 1T H B8
EYAQF]  BUREUA AR B[ Smartview
* Smart Union X Grandview B¢ 2 &
% 17 4251 1,000,000 A% % {5 © Brilliant
Holdingsi42019F 12 A 13 AR FEELE
B8 11,000,000 % FRXE1E0.0135 7THY
TRRMOEENSD Bt ABREE
i+ ©%/467,898,000/57T °

33 iEB4ENEE

(a)

R20224F1 8288 - KA A2 EM
BRAREFTERARAR(IREBE
A1) B R 538 37 5 = 77 Talentone
Technology Limited ([ B A & 1) 5]
SR RE B R RRESFRE R
o Bl RBABBKRERESRIR
B mMEERARAKERES BT
RS - RIE A2,000,00078 7T ([ B
RRB) - RAUBERES  REAF
/£ 44,000,0007%8 7T ([ AT #2 B% & 35 R
B ) o ZIRM AR R HEIA2022F 1
H28H - 202292 H8H &2022%F3 A
RAZAE  ARBBEROARERA
BRESFREFB2EATHRERS °

BRARIEUEMERHESR
MR EE A (R BRRE = RERS)
WEREESBE D HHAELRR
FERPES TEM LERFARS -

R R R A R E 5 R B X
& ANEEFMNABRATNERK
HERKIRBELAEHE - R
HRAEENBAKIR

R% 15 7R 88 & 55 — L Al R AR (B 55 3R 8 (R
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&%) M202243 A22 B 5K °
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32 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND
RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

(b) Share capital and reserve movement of the

Company (continued)

Note:

(i) As at 13 December 2019, as directed by Defond HK, the entire
issued shares of Brilliant Holdings were transferred to the Company
in exchanges of the Company allotting and issuing 1,000,000
shares in total to Smartview, Smart Union and Grandview. The
excess of net assets value of Brilliant Holdings in aggregate as at 13
December 2019 over the par value of 1,000,000 ordinary shares at
HK$0.01 per share was credited to the capital reserve account with
the amount of HK$67,898,000.

33 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(@ On 28 January 2022, Wise Ally Holdings Limited (“the

Subscriber”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
entered into the share subscription agreement and the
convertible bonds subscription agreement with Talentone
Technology Limited (“the Target Company”), an independent
third party of the Company, pursuant to which the Subscriber
conditionally agreed to subscribe for, and the Target Company
conditionally agreed to issue the subscription shares at a
consideration of HK$2,000,000 (the “Share Subscription”)
and the convertible bonds at an aggregate consideration of
HK$44,000,000 (the “CB Subscription”) respectively. Reference
is made to the announcements of the Company dated 28
January 2022, 8 February 2022 and 22 March 2022 in relation
to a disclosable transaction regarding the Share Subscription and
the CB Subscription in details.

The Target Company is principally engaged in the development
and sales of the high technology floor care products including,
among others, vacuum cleaners and has been granted the right
to use the licensed trademarks in certain products in its ordinary
course of business as a wholesale distributor.

Upon the completion of the Share Subscription and the CB
Subscription, the Group can leverage on the Target Company’s
experience and sales network and start establishing its own
network while also expanding the Group’s revenue sources.

The Share Subscription and the first tranche CB Subscription of

the convertible bonds in a principal amount of HK$22,000,000
were completed on 22 March 2022.
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33 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (continued)

(b) Due to the outbreak of the novel coronavirus, a number of
provinces and municipalities in the PRC have taken emergency
public health measures and various actions to prevent the
spread of the novel coronavirus.

The Group will continue to assess the impact of the outbreak
of the novel coronavirus on the financial performance of
the Group and operation of the Group’s production plant in
Dongguan and Group’s exposure to the risks and uncertainties
in this connection. The Group will take appropriate measures as
necessary.
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